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continuing operations
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Profit/(loss) for the year from
continuing operations
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Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company
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Equity attributable to
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Earnings/(loss) per share
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Dear Shareholders,

It is a privilege to share an overview of the financial
performance of New Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (the “Year").

DELIVERING RESILIENCE ACROSS OUR CORE
BUSINESSES

The Year tested the Group's adaptability and strength during
significant uncertainty. While Hong Kong's economy showed
modest expansion, it remained under pressure from persistent
geopolitical tensions, a tightening global financial environment,
and restrained consumer confidence. The retail sector faced
challenges as shopping behaviours shifted rapidly, with more
consumers opting for online channels and prioritising cost-
conscious spending. Additionally, a notable shift of consumer
expenditure towards Mainland China dampened local retail
activity even with increased visitor arrivals. Together, these
factors led to a cautious retail market and limited investment

appetite.

The residential property market also encountered headwinds
throughout the Year. The Centa-City Leading Index declined by
6.9% from 147.1 as at 31 March 2024 to 136.9 as at 31
March 2025, due to high mortgage rates, cautious buyer
sentiment and an oversupply of completed but unsold units.
The Hong Kong Monetary Authority reported a 27% rise in
residential mortgage loans in negative equity, increasing from
32,073 cases as at 31 March 2024 to 40,741 cases as at 31
March 2025. These trends highlight financial stress within the
housing sector and reinforce the importance of vigilant risk

control.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHES

The challenges in the residential property market significantly
affected our money lending business. Declining property
values and high mortgage rates increased pressure on
borrowers. In response to these heightened credit risks and
continuing market uncertainties, the Group adopted a more
cautious lending approach, reducing the number of mortgage
loans granted during the Year to 28, as compared to 40 last
year. To manage credit risk, the Group takes legal actions and
obtains repossession of collateral to recover credit-impaired
loan and interest receivables. This reflects the Group's
proactive efforts to mitigate credit losses and actively manage
the process of loan recovery, although the ultimate outcome
depends on the realisation of value from these repossessed

assets amid ongoing challenges.

Turning to property investment, this segment faced obstacles
from reduced leasing demand and intensified competition. In
Hong Kong, the closure of retail outlets and changing
consumer preferences led to lower rental demand and
occupancy in retail spaces, while office premises experienced
elevated vacancy rates amid oversupply. Rental prices came
under downward pressure across commercial properties,
contributing to significant fair value reductions on our Hong
Kong investment properties. It is worth noting that our
mortgaged properties and repossessed assets under the
money lending portfolio — which include commercial,
industrial, and residential properties — were subject to similar
market pressures. Meanwhile, our Singapore investment

properties remained stable with a steady fair value.
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In contrast, our securities trading segment delivered robust
profits by leveraging market volatility and favourable policy
developments. The Hang Seng Index recorded significant gains
supported by robust showings in technology, healthcare, and
consumer sectors. Renewed investor interest in Chinese
enterprises and encouraging policy developments further
enhanced market sentiment, positively influencing the Group's

results and partially offsetting pressures in other areas.

Although the Group recorded a shift from a profit to a loss
attributable to owners, it showed resilience in the face of
difficult macroeconomic and market conditions. The change
from a profit to a loss mainly arose from substantial fair value
declines in investment properties, the absence of last year's
fair value gains on the Group's investment properties and gain
on the disposal of a subsidiary, and reduced mortgage interest
income from a smaller loan portfolio. These were partially
offset by an improvement in securities trading profits, less
advertising and promotion expenses incurred, and increased
bank interest income from strategic cash management,

underscoring the Group's prudent risk management.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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BUILDING SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND LASTING
VALUE

Preparing for what lies ahead, the Group adopts a positive yet
vigilant stance about the property market and economic
environment amid ongoing challenges. Recent government
measures — such as the reduction of stamp duties for
properties valued up to HK$4,000,000 and the easing of
transaction restrictions — have begun to stimulate activity,
particularly in the primary residential market. Early 2025 data
indicates a rebound in transaction volumes and a modest
recovery in rental demand, supported by stabilising interest
rates and expectations of US Federal Reserve rate cuts.
Nevertheless, escalating geopolitical tensions, including recent
US military actions against Iran, add layers of uncertainty to
the global economic outlook, warranting continued caution.
These uncertainties are expected to continue influencing
borrower sentiment and credit risk, prompting the Group to

closely monitor our money lending portfolio.

On a positive note, supportive government policies and
improving economic conditions are expected to benefit our
property investment portfolio over time. Infrastructure projects
and innovation-driven initiatives should gradually enhance
commercial property demand, helping to stabilise rental
income and property values. While office vacancies remain
high due to an abundant new supply, gradual market
absorption is anticipated as economic growth gains
momentum. Meanwhile, the retail sector has shown signs of
recovery with gradual rental improvements. The government's
ongoing support for small and medium enterprises — through
funding schemes, digital transformation initiatives and lease
incentives — strengthens business resilience and tenant
retention, fostering a more stable leasing environment across

both retail and office sectors.
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In securities trading, positive policy signals from Mainland
China, including encouragement of listings in Hong Kong and
proactive fiscal and monetary support, are expected to
enhance market liquidity and investor confidence. The Stock
Connect programmes facilitate greater cross-border capital
flows, while the shift of Chinese companies from the US to
Hong Kong listings reinforces the city's role as a regional
financial hub. These factors create favourable conditions for
securities trading, and the Group remains well-positioned to
capitalise on these opportunities through active portfolio

management.

The Group will continue to adopt a strategic approach to asset
management and portfolio optimisation, focusing on risk
mitigation and maintaining stable income streams amid
uncertainties, thereby creating lasting value for our

shareholders.

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRE ST

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the Year, the Group's revenue slightly increased by 2.2%
to HK$90,263,000 (2024: HK$88,291,000), comprising
interest income of HK$69,716,000 (2024: HK$72,744,000)
from money lending, rental income of HK$14,914,000 (2024:
HK$15,288,000) from investment properties, fair value gains of
HK$4,140,000 (2024: HK$74,000) on listed equity
investments, along with dividend income of HK$1,493,000
(2024: HK$185,000) from listed equity investments. The
Group's revenue increased by HK$1,972,000 primarily due to
an increase in fair value gains by HK$4,066,000 on listed equity
investments and an increase in dividend income by
HK$1,308,000 from listed equity investments, which were
partially offset by a decrease in interest income by
HK$3,028,000 from money lending.

Other Income

Other income increased by 12.6% to HK$17,377,000 for the
Year (2024: HK$15,434,000). The increase was driven by an
increase in bank interest income by HK$1,381,000 to
HK$16,363,000 (2024: HK$14,982,000), income from
forfeiture of rental deposits from a tenant totalling
HK$565,000 (2024: Nil) upon early termination by the tenant
of the lease of shop units at Dundas Square, Mongkok, and a
bad debt recovered from a defaulted borrower amounting to
HK$331,000 (2024: HK$186,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative and Operating Expenses

The Group's administrative and operating expenses decreased
by 4.7% to HK$44,531,000 for the Year (2024:
HK$46,731,000). These expenses mainly consisted of
employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration), depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
advertising and promotion expenses, auditor's remuneration,
building management fees, and other administrative expenses.
The decline was primarily driven by a reduction in advertising
and promotion expenses, which fell by 44.4% to
HK$2,539,000 (2024: HK$4,565,000).

Fair Value Gains/(Losses) on Investment Properties,
Net

The Group recorded net fair value losses on investment
properties of HK$69,400,000 for the Year, as compared to net
fair value gains of HK$10,149,000 last year. The shift from fair
value gains to fair value losses was due to the combined
effect of an increase in fair value losses on Hong Kong
investment properties to HK$69,400,000 (2024:
HK$13,131,000) while the fair value of Singapore investment
properties remained unchanged for the Year (2024: fair value
gains of HK$23,280,000).

Provision for Impairment Losses on Loan and
Interest Receivables and Repossessed Assets, Net
The Group recorded a provision for impairment losses of
HK$37,059,000, net, on loan and interest receivables and
repossessed assets for the Year, which decreased by 2.4%, as
compared to HK$37,964,000 last year. The decrease in
impairment losses was mainly due to the reduction in loan

portfolio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRE ST

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$55,659,000 for the Year, as compared to a
profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$22,413,000 last year. The change from a profit to a loss
was mainly attributable to the fair value losses on the Group's
investment properties of HK$69,400,000, which was partially
offset by an increase in profit to HK$5,693,000 (2024:
HK$315,000) in the securities trading business. There were
also fair value gains of HK$10,149,000 on the Group's
investment properties and a gain of HK$9,834,000 on the

disposal of a subsidiary recorded last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Money Lending

The Group’'s money lending business is conducted through
ETC Finance Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, holding a licence for conducting money
lending activities under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). This business
primarily provides mortgage loans to high-quality customers,
supported by a rigorous loan approval process and ongoing
portfolio monitoring. Prior to loan approval, comprehensive
due diligence is performed to assess borrower credibility and
collateral value. The Group actively manages repayments and
recovery efforts to mitigate credit risk. The challenges in the
residential property market significantly affected our money
lending business. The money lending segment continues to
be the primary revenue source for the Group, contributing
around 77.2% to total revenue for the Year (2024: 82.4%).
Due to the decline in the loan portfolio, revenue of money
lending decreased by 4.2% to HK$69,716,000 (2024:
HK$72,744,000). Interest income from mortgage loans and
unsecured personal loans amounted to HK$67,341,000
(2024: HK$70,370,000) and HK$2,375,000 (2024:
HK$2,374,000), respectively.
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During the Year, the Group granted 28 (2024: 40) mortgage
loans secured by various types of real estate located in Hong
Kong, including residential, commercial and industrial
properties and car parking spaces, to individuals and
corporations. The total principal sums was HK$188,530,000
(2024: HK$255,960,000), with principal amounts ranging
from HK$400,000 to HK$45,000,000 (2024: HK$460,000 to
HK$55,000,000), at interest rates ranging from 9.5% to
12.5% per annum (2024: 8.0% to 13.0% per annum), with
maturity profiles varying from 12 to 180 months (2024: 12 to
180 months).

The Group also provides a small portion of unsecured
personal loans to individuals who are mainly owners of real
estate assets under the Home Ownership Scheme and the
Tenant Purchase Scheme, as well as private residential
properties. During the Year, the Group granted 7 (2024: 5)
unsecured personal loans in total principal sums of
HK$5,230,000 (2024: HK$2,520,000) to individuals with
principal amounts ranging from HK$200,000 to HK$1,150,000
(2024: HK$100,000 to HK$1,200,000) at interest rates
ranging from 18.0% to 22.0% per annum (2024: 20.0% to
22.0% per annum) with maturity profiles varying from 36 to
120 months (2024: 36 to 120 months).

The Group's loan and interest receivables (after provision for
impairment losses) decreased by 20.3% to HK$577,338,000
as at 31 March 2025 as compared to HK$724,516,000 as at
31 March 2024. As at 31 March 2025, there were 93
mortgage loan customers (2024: 114 customers) with loan
and interest receivables of HK$568,258,000 (2024:
HK$715,029,000) and 21 unsecured personal loan customers
(2024: 22 customers) with loan and interest receivables of
HK$9,080,000 (2024: HK$9,487,000), representing 98.4%
(2024: 98.7%) and 1.6% (2024: 1.3%) of the total loan and
interest receivables (after provision for impairment losses),

respectively.
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In terms of the Group's loan and interest receivables of
HK$577,338,000 (after provision for impairment losses) as at
31 March 2025 (2024: HK$724,516,000), the loan and
interest receivables from the largest customer and the five
largest customers accounted for 9.9% (2024: 7.6%) and
33.7% (2024: 26.0%), respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, provisions for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables and repossessed assets
were assessed. The provision for impairment losses on loan
and interest receivables was assessed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer using expected credit loss
model of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9. For the
provision for impairment losses on repossessed assets, the
estimated market value of the underlying collateral was
determined based on actual transaction prices listed on
provisional sales and purchase agreements and valuation
carried out by an independent professionally qualified valuer.

Regarding mortgage loans, a provision for impairment losses
of HK$38,984,000 (2024: HK$25,771,000) was recorded for
the Year. Increase in provision for impairment losses on
mortgage loans was mainly due to an increase in credit-
impaired loan and interest receivables. Regarding unsecured
personal loans, a reversal of impairment losses of
HK$83 1,000 (2024: HK$218,000) was recorded for the Year
due to a reduction in credit-impaired loan and interest
receivables. As a result, the Group recorded a total net
provision for impairment losses of HK$38,153,000 (2024:
HK$25,553,000) on loan and interest receivables for the Year.
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The Group actively manages credit-impaired loans by taking
prompt legal actions for any default loan cases and obtaining
repossession and legal rights to rent or sell collateral. As at
31 March 2025, the gross carrying amount of repossessed
assets increased by 30.5% to HK$134,463,000 (2024:
HK$103,035,000) involving 16 loan cases (2024: 10). A net
reversal of impairment losses totalling HK$1,094,000 (2024:
a net provision of HK$12,411,000) on repossessed assets

was recorded for the Year.

The total net provision for impairment losses, combining loan
and interest receivables with repossessed assets, amounted to
HK$37,059,000 for the Year, slightly lower than
HK$37,964,000 recorded last year. This modest decrease
reflects ongoing adjustments in the Group's credit risk
estimates, including repossession of collateral of certain non-
performing loans for recovery management, and demonstrates
the Group's continued commitment to prudent credit risk

management in a dynamic market environment.

Taking all these factors mentioned above into account, the
money lending segment stood at a profit of HK$20,898,000
for the Year (2024: HK$20,766,000).
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Property Investment

The Group's investment properties, which consist of prime
office space and commercial retail units in Hong Kong and
Singapore, were affected by various unfavourable market
conditions during the Year. Retail properties in Hong Kong
experienced notable pressure on fair values, driven by softer
tenant demand, cautious leasing sentiment and structural
changes in consumer behaviour. Elevated vacancy rates and
subdued rental growth in the retail sector contributed
significantly to the decline in property valuations. Office
properties also faced challenges from oversupply and
moderate leasing demand. In contrast, Singapore investment
properties remained relatively stable, supported by steady
occupancy and tenant interest. These factors collectively
influenced the fair value adjustments and overall performance

of the Group's investment property portfolio during the Year.

The Group’s segment revenue from property investment
dropped by 2.4% to HK$14,914,000 for the Year, as compared
to HK$15,288,000 last year. In Hong Kong, the rental income
from investment properties decreased by 2.5% to
HK$12,355,000 (2024: HK$12,675,000). The decrease was
mainly due to (i) an early move-out by a tenant from two shop
units at Dundas Square, Mongkok, in early June 2024, resulting
in these units being vacant for some time and (i) a rental
reduction offered to a tenant at Chi Fu Building, Mongkok since
June 2024. However, the decrease was partially offset by the
increase in monthly rentals charged to tenants at Kwai Chung
Plaza, Kwai Chung upon renewal of tenancy agreements. In
Singapore, the rental income from investment properties
decreased by 2.1% to HK$2,559,000 (2024: HK$2,613,000)
due to two shop units being vacant for some time after the
expiration of the previous lease in March 2024. However, the
decrease was partially offset by the increase in monthly rentals
charged to tenants of shop units upon renewal of tenancy
agreements. As a result, the overall average occupancy rate
declined to 95.8% (2024: 96.9%) and the overall average
annual rental yield increased to 3.1% (2024: 2.8%) for the

Group's investment properties during the Year.
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At the end of each reporting period, the fair value of
investment properties is assessed through valuations
conducted by independent professionally qualified valuers.
There was a change from net fair value gains of
HK$10,149,000 last year to net fair value losses of
HK$69,400,000 for the Year, which was due to an increase in
fair value losses on Hong Kong investment properties to
HK$69,400,000 (2024: HK$13,131,000) while there was no
change in the fair value of Singapore investment properties
throughout the Year (2024: fair value gains of
HK$23,280,000).

As a result of the considerable declines in fair value of
investment properties in Hong Kong, the property investment
segment recorded a shift from a profit of HK$21,644,000 last
year to a loss of HK$57,788,000 for the Year.

Securities Trading

The Hong Kong blue-chip equity market remains a critical
indicator of investor sentiment and economic conditions in the
region. Supported by ongoing government initiatives and
improving economic fundamentals, the sector has

demonstrated notable resilience amid global market volatility.

The Group's portfolio of listed equity investments consisted
primarily of the blue-chip stocks in the Hong Kong stock

market.

During the Year, the Hang Seng Index showed significant
recovery, surging by 39.8% from 16,541 points as at 31
March 2024 to 23,119 points as at 31 March 2025. The
securities trading segment recorded an increase in profit by
HK$5,378,000 to HK$5,693,000 for the Year (2024:
HK$315,000). The increase in profit was mainly attributable to
an increase in net fair value gains on equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") to HK$4,140,000
(2024: HK$74,000) and an increase in dividend income from
equity investments at FVTPL to HK$1,493,000 (2024:
HK$185,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R 5 T

As at 31 March 2025, the Group's equity investments at
FVTPL amounted to HK$11,424,000 (2024: HK$15,375,000)
measured at market value. There was no individual equity
investment at FVTPL held by the Group with market value
exceeding 5% of the net asset value of the Group. The details

of the Group's equity investments at FVTPL as at 31 March

2025 were as below:

Name of stock listed on the Number of
stock exchange of Hong Kong shares
(Stock Code) held
REBBIMLTZREER EERG
(R4 5%) 8B
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited 40,000
RINTEXBRAA

(0001)

Henderson Land Development Company Limited 70,000
BEKEMEFR AR

(0012)

Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited 20,000
MBEMERRARAA

(0016)

China Construction Bank Corporation 200,000
PEERRITRMER DA

(0939)

China Mobile Limited 20,000
FEBEBERANA

(0941)

CK Asset Holdings Limited 55,000
RIBXEEERAA

(1113)

Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. 20,000
FETZRE (EE)ROERAF

(2318)

Bank of China Limited 200,000

FRRITRDER AR
(3988)

RZTE-_RF=A=+—H EmHEE:
B FAEEZERATEEFABRORER
& R/11,424,0008 L (ZF = £ -
15,375,000/ 7T) - REEYW EiFH H Mm%
BE G A& B & 2 F(E 8 B50%0 @5l 2
FEEFABENRERE R_TE_QF
ZA=+—H AEERQAFEEF AR
B RIER B 2 I ETIAT ¢

Percentage to

Percentage of net assets
shareholding Investment Market value of
held cost value the Group
BEkRH RE EAKEEE
ZEDH A mE FEZEIN

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET
0.0010 1,679 1,748 0.09
0.0014 1,751 1,561 0.08
0.0007 1,566 1,475 0.08
0.0001 1,225 1,376 0.07
0.0001 1,459 1,675 0.09
0.0016 1,769 1,727 0.09
0.0003 931 926 0.05
0.0002 749 936 0.05

11,129 11,424 0.60
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2025, the Company had an outstanding
guarantee of HK$70,000,000 (2024: HK$70,000,000) given
to a bank to secure general credit facility for a subsidiary. No
credit facility was utilised by that subsidiary from such
guarantee as at 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 March 2025, the Group's self-occupied office units

and a car park unit at Shun Tak Centre with an aggregate net
book value of HK$103,983,000 (2024: HK$108,681,000)
and listed equity investments with fair value of
HK$11,424,000 (2024: HK$15,375,000) were pledged to
banks and security brokers for aggregate loan facilities of
HK$78,620,000 (2024: HK$80,968,000) granted to the
Group.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group did not utilise any loan
facility (2024: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group maintained a sound financial condition. As
at 31 March 2025, the Group had net current assets of
HK$1,220,427,000 (2024: HK$1,164,969,000) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company worth HK$1,505,939,000
(2024: HK$1,561,876,000).

As at 31 March 2025, the aggregate cash and cash
equivalents of the Group were approximately
HK$682,206,000 (2024: HK$518,251,000), which were held
predominately in Hong Kong dollar, Singapore dollar and

United States dollar.
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As at 31 March 2025, the Group had an amount due to an
intermediate holding company of HK$80,000,000 (2024:
HK$80,000,000), which was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

New Century Maritime Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group that was struck off during the Year, owed a loan
of approximately HK$24,087,000 to its minority shareholder,
New Century Cruise Line International Limited (“NCCL").
During the Year, the loan of approximately HK$24,087,000
was waived by the minority shareholder which was accounted
for as a deemed capital contribution from NCCL. Accordingly,
there was no loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary as at 31 March 2025
(2024: approximately HK$24,087,000).

Stringent cost control measures have already been
implemented to monitor day-to-day operational and
administrative expenses. The management will continue to
closely review the Group's financial resources in a cautious
manner and explore opportunities for potential financing and
equity funding from financial institutions. Taking into
consideration the Group's current financial resources, the
directors believe that the Group will have adequate funds for

its continuing operations and development.

GEARING RATIO

The Group's gearing ratio, calculated as total indebtedness
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
reduced to 5.3% as at 31 March 2025 (2024: 6.7%). Total
indebtedness represents lease liabilities and the amount due
to an intermediate holding company as at 31 March 2025
(2024 total indebtedness represented the amount due to an
intermediate holding company and the loan advanced from a

non-controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Market Risk

The Group's business performance is closely tied to the
economic conditions and property market dynamics in Hong
Kong. Potential economic downturns or deterioration in the
property sector could impact property transactions, which in
turn could limit the growth of the mortgage loan portfolio. In
addition, a drop in property prices will cause declining
collateral values for the mortgage loans and, in turn, increase
the risk of impairment losses. To mitigate these risks, the
Group will closely monitor the property market trends and
collateral valuations affecting its mortgage loan portfolio. This
proactive approach allows the Group to promptly identify
market fluctuations and implement appropriate risk mitigation

strategies from time to time.

Credit Risk

The Group mainly focuses on entering into loan and/or lease
transactions with high-quality customers and obtaining
sufficient collateral and/or deposits as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults. Before entering into
these transactions, whether new or renewals, the Group will
conduct due diligence, including but not limited to identity
checks, credit reports and legal searches on the customers,
together with land searches and latest valuations on the

mortgaged properties, if applicable.

The Group has loan committees of different levels comprising
directors and senior management to approve and grant
different loan products with various loan-to-value ratios and
loan amount requirements. The Group continuously monitors
the property market and the collateral value of the underlying
mortgage loan portfolio to proactively manage risks. Through
the audit committee of the Company, the Group has
conducted a regular review on the internal control system and
identified no significant areas of concern that could affect the

operation of the money lending business.

TR Er RS

FERRRAABRREER

™ 5 E

AEEZXBRERETRE ZEBRRIE
MSBEETIRE BEZEEREIDE
MBRCAIEEFEINYMERS - EMAIE
BHETREBEREES 2R B WE
BERTHREEHRBESRERNREETR
EMIR IR ERBERER - SREZFRE
B AEERETYERTYEETRBER
MAEZYMEDTSBE RERMGE - ZER
A EAN B RS R B B 5K E - XA
BEEEE ZRRBER

FERR
AEBETRFINEEERTPETERRS
FEERS  WEBRAZEMR R HIR
T URERRZOMEREZ P BEKINE
e RETREXSHZA > TEERNKXS
BREBERS AREKETERES £
REMRR)BEPNEOHZE  ERERSE
FMOEREE UL EMREIREBYEE
TRAEE(ER) -

AEEZRETASFENERZEE (KBEE
REZERERERE)  UHHAEREE TR
MERERELREAFENTRAERSED
ERER AEEREERWEMS MIAMRA
ZBERMa BN RER UEREER
R BBARARERZER  AEEHAE
ERRmETER R YHEEEEREL
FERERHEFNEARA -

23



24

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
Annual Report 2025 F 3§

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRE ST

The Group closely monitors whether customers make timely
repayments and liaises with them for settlement if there is late
repayment. The Group will take legal action, when necessary,
as a means to recover the debts in default. In addition, the
Group reviews the recovery of each individual debt, including
but not limited to rental receivables, mortgage loan and
interest receivables, and unsecured personal loan and interest
receivables at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are provided for irrecoverable

amounts.

For more detailed information on credit risk management,
please refer to the Credit Risk section in Financial Risk
Management Objectives and Policies in note 37 to the

financial statements.

Equity Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in securities, which are listed on the stock
exchange of Hong Kong and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The management
manages this exposure by monitoring price movements and
changes in market conditions that may affect the value of the
securities and will consider taking appropriate actions to

minimise the risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group's revenue and costs were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and Singapore dollar. The Group's cash and
cash equivalents were held predominately in Hong Kong
dollar, Singapore dollar and United States dollar. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should that need arise.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a total of 32 (2024:

32) staff, including executive directors but excluding
independent non-executive directors. The employee benefit
expense (including directors’ emoluments) of HK$22,629,000
was recorded for the Year (2024: HK$22,663,000).
Remuneration packages for staff and directors are periodically
reviewed according to market conditions as well as individual
and the Group's performance. Benefit plans maintained by the
Group include salary increments, mandatory provident fund
scheme, medical insurance and discretionary bonuses. The
Group offers occupational training in the form of external
seminars to the staff and has subsidy plan for staff to enhance

their knowledge and skills for performing their job duties.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATES

The Group did not have any significant investments held, nor
any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and

associates during the Year.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on Tuesday, 16 September 2025 (the “Annual
General Meeting”). For determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 11
September 2025 to Tuesday, 16 September 2025, both days
inclusive, during which period, no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30

p.m. on Wednesday, 10 September 2025.
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The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices at all times. The Board believes that
good corporate governance helps the Company to safeguard
the interests of its shareholders and to enhance the

performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 March
2025.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code")
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. The Board has delegated to the
senior management of the Company the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group. These responsibilities include implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating day-to-day
operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the
Board, formulating and monitoring the operation and budgets,

and supervising and monitoring the control systems.

Board Composition

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Board comprises eleven members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Ms. Huang Si Teng

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Composition (continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board has at all times met the requirements of rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one of the independent non-executive
directors possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise and the
appointment of independent non-executive directors

representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a written confirmation of their
independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that each of them is independent in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the directors (including the relationships
among members of the Board) are set out under the section
headed "Directors’ Biographies” on pages 88 to 94 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 88 to 94 of this
annual report, the Board members do not have any family,

financial or business relationship with each other.

Directors’ Liability Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in
respect of potential legal action against its directors. The

insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Attendance of Board and Committee Meetings and
General Meeting

During the Year, the Company held four regular Board
meetings to review and approve annual and interim results

and to review quarterly management accounts.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EES ()
Attendance of Board and Committee Meetings and E=SeRZEEEEURRRASZH
General Meeting (continued) FERER (&)

The attendance of each director at the meetings of the Board, RAFE KEELFEEE BEEXZE
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the &  HMZEEE - BELZEe2ZHUL] %
Nomination Committee and the annual general meeting %@EK@Z&}%'I@,&%@EUQDTr

during the Year is set out as below:

/[II]I]

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
HE/BTEERE
Annual

Audit  Remuneration  Nomination General

Directors Board  Committee Committee ~ Committee ~ Meeting
RRBF
£z EE® ENZEe ¥HEEE REZEE -1
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Ng Wee Keat HEMRLLE 3/4 - 2/2 0/1 1/1
Ms. Sio lon Kuan EEELL 3/4 - . _ 11
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda =37 Bedan 4/4 . _ _ 11
Ms. Lilian Ng BFELT 4/4 . _ N 11
Ms. Huang Si Teng F 1 4/4 . . _ 11
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PR AR B4 £ 4/4 - 2/2 1/1 11
Mr. Yu Wai Man SENELE 4/4 - - _ 1/

Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok REBTLE 4/4 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth BRRELAE 4/4 3/3 2/2 1/1 /1
Mr. Ho Yau Ming o % B 5 4/4 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung BEEERE 4/4 3/3 2/2 1/1 11
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed directors will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the businesses and operations of the Group and full
awareness of director's responsibilities and obligations under

the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed

and relevant.

During the Year, all directors have participated various external
seminars relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
or the accounting issues. The Company has received from
each of the directors their individual training record for the

Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. The
Company did not officially have a position of chief executive
officer since 2 March 2012. During the Year, Mr. Ng Wee Keat,
the chairman of the Board, provided leadership to the Board
to ensure that the Board worked effectively and all important
issues were discussed and dealt with in a timely manner. The
Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
structure as business continues to grow and develop in order
to assess whether any changes, including the appointment of

a chief executive officer, are necessary.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years as referred to the bye-law
84(1) of the Company where provides that at each annual
general meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three
(3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation. The Company has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE VIEWS AND INPUT TO THE BOARD

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independence views and input to the Board for enhancing an
objective and effective decision making. Such mechanisms are

subject to annual review by the Board.

1. Four out of the eleven directors are independent non-
executive directors, which meets the requirements of the
Listing Rules that the Board must have at least three
independent non-executive directors and must appoint
independent non-executive directors representing at least

one-third of the Board.

2. The Nomination Committee will assess the independence
of a candidate who is nominated to be a new
independent non-executive director before appointment,
and the continued independence of the existing
independent non-executive directors on annual basis. All
independent non-executive directors are required to
confirm in writing their compliance of independence

requirement pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE VIEWS AND INPUT TO THE BOARD

(continued)

3. Adirector (including independent non-executive director)
who has material interest in any contract, transaction or
arrangement shall abstain from voting and not be
counted in the quorum on any Board resolution

approving the same.

4. The directors (including independent non-executive
directors), upon reasonable request, may seek
independent professional advice at the Company's
expense, to assist them to perform their duties to the

Company.

5. Al directors are encouraged to express their views at

Board meetings and to voice their concerns.

6. The chairman of the Board holds meeting with the
independent non-executive directors without the

presence of other directors at least annually.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the mechanisms and was of the view that

such mechanisms has been satisfactorily implemented.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three board committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee (collectively, the "Committees”) with clearly-
defined written terms of references. The Board delegated the
authority to the Committees and provided the Committees

with sufficient resources to perform their duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EESBETWZES (A
Remuneration Committee FMZEES
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the RAEERBEAFHAGP AL FHMEE
Remuneration Committee Members are as follows: EHRENT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ng Wee Keat mEREE
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PR B+
Independent Non-executive Directors HIIHRITEE
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok (Chairman) REESKL(ZE)
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth AR i ot
Mr. Ho Yau Ming A REAxE
Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung BEMSEE

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are  HNEZ B & 7 B & E a] /£ AN A 7) N2 B 32 By
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock  Z#uk#&R] -

Exchange.

The Company has adopted the model whereby the ZAAFRECHEAFHESenESeEEER
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the HITEERSRAEEAB 2 HMEBEZHERK -
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive

directors and senior management.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration HEEZEES X EHERBEOT

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the 1. MARAEERSREEAENEZES

Company's policy and structure for all directors’ and BAIOSR R 2848 - b aR S B #R i BB AR
senior management remuneration and on the EHREFHIFIFMBE mMEFGRLY
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for B

developing remuneration policy;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

2.

to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals

and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management. This should include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or

termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair

and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

to review and/or approve matters relating to share

schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

CHELEEEEFERBERAA

ESEBETHNZRES (H)
FHERS (M)
2. HAEEFEHMILEFHREEMRE

LitEEREENHMES

REFEEZENNTESTLSRER
AEBNFMEE - UEBEIFESEF
@m RREEMNEBESR (BERE

HAR BB HRENREE)

MIFITESNHFHNEST S RO ES

T GEVN R Ed N G
R X A 4 A B 0 1 R
s

A RHERRATEERSREEAR
PERRHR BB BEMAMND
RE1E LME(%EZ%”EM B R — 2

%% BHGEF—8 BETAEXT
518 'Kﬁ@y?

A R ERERITRKE MEERE
REREEMIRNBERHE AR
ZELTFEEBOGR % HREES
MIER— BEGETAREEES

FEMRIE (I E e H AT By
BEEEAGHOHMH: &

FBATS2HE

ER RS E AR AIE
BRABMAENEE -

TEEAM



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - it R S B & B B R 2 A

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the Year:

1. to review the remuneration package of the directors; and

2. to recommend to the Board on the year-end bonus of

executive directors.

The remuneration of members of the senior management for

the Year is set out as follows:

In the band of Number of individuals

Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2

Nomination Committee

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Nomination Committee Members are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board at least annually, assist the Board in maintaining a
board skills matrix, and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive;

5. to support the Company's regular evaluation of the
Board's performance; and

6. to review the nomination policy and the board diversity
policy of the Company periodically and make

recommendation on any proposed revisions to the Board.

The following is a summary of work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the Year:

1. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

2. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

3. to recommend to the Board on the reappointment of the
retiring directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Diversity

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in September
2013, which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that

the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board consists of a diverse mix of the members with
different appropriate skills, knowledge, experience and gender

to promote and achieve better performance of the Company.

The gender ratio of the directors of the Company as at 31

March 2025 is set out as follows:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

directors directors
Male 6 55
Female 5 45

The Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the
Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company's businesses, the Nomination
Committee considered that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required. The
Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,

as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Diversity (continued)

In addition, the total workforce (including senior management)

by gender of the Group as at 31 March 2025 is set out as

follows:
Percentage of
Number of the Group’s
employees employees
Male 13 41
Female 19 59

To achieve diversity at workforce level, the Group has put in
place appropriate recruitment and selection practices such that
a diverse range of both male and female candidates are given
equal opportunities to be considered for employment.
Opportunities for training, promotion and other career
development are equally opened to all eligible employees
without discrimination on gender or other unlawful grounds.
Currently, the male to female ratio in the workforce of the
Group including senior management is approximately 4:6. The
Company considers that the gender diversity in workforce is

currently achieved.

During the Year, the Board was not aware of any factors or
circumstances which make achieving gender diversity across
the workforce (including senior management) more

challenging or less relevant.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy in January
20109.

Objective

The objective of the nomination policy is to provide a
framework and set standards to assist the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship so as to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

requirements of the Company's businesses.

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria (as reference) in assessing the suitability of a proposed

candidate for directorships:

1. character and integrity;

2. qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the

Company's businesses and corporate strategy;

3. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a Board member and other directorships and

significant commitments;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy (continued)
Selection criteria (continued)

4. requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the

Listing Rules; and

5. board diversity policy and any measure objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the

discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the Company
and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in

relation to their standing for election as a director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered

necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

Nomination procedure

1.

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its
meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward

candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to

make recommendations for the Board's

stand for election or re-election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the

Board for its consideration and recommendation.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a general
meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set
out the lodgment period for shareholders to make the
nominations. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence,
proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included

in the circular to shareholders.

The shareholder of the Company may also propose a
person for election as a director, details of which are set
out in the “Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election
as a Director by Shareholders” which is also available on

the website of the Company.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election or re-election at any general meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy (continued)

Review and disclosure of the nomination policy

1. The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the

Nomination Policy.

2. The Company shall disclose this nomination policy in its
corporate governance report in compliance with the

Listing Rules.

Audit Committee

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Audit Committee Members are as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok (Chairman)
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung

One of the independent non-executive directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as

follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor's independence

and objectivity;

3. to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;

4. to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report, and to
review significant financial reporting judgements

contained in them;

5. to review the Company's financial controls, the risk

management and internal control systems;

6. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies

and practices; and

7. to review the external auditor's management letter and to
ensure that Board will provide a timely response to the

issues raised in the external auditor's management letter.

Annual Report 2025 F 3

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEELRE

ESEBRTHNZRES (H)
ERERS (M)
BREEAGCEEMERBEMT :

1. BINEERBMNERE ERZERER
REESREMHER  JESNBZEREH
Fr M IS AR - KBTI B &%
S0 B ¥ BB o Y AR A% AR B O R

2. BEAREFIBEZBOELBEITE

3. BEOMER B BURR IR 4 IR BB T B IR
% 0 T IABAT

4. BERARANHBHRERANFERSE R
RE  FFEERENTENE  YEHR
KEBERHABUHEHERNERER

5. MR ARBNPBKEE  RREEMA

MEERR

6. MEANRENMHELEAHRRLER
&

7. BREIBZBEGTEEEN(ERE
AR > WHERES S MEDE
ROMNBZ G TEREBN(ERIER
FEAKF)PIREMNEER °

43



44

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Annual Report 2025 F 3§

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ot 3

EiaRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the Year:

1.

to discuss and review with the auditor the audit plan and

matters relating to significant accounting and audit issues;

to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval;

to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September
2024 and to recommend them to the Board for approval;

and

to review the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following

corporate governance functions as required under the CG
Code:

to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior

management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (continued)

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the above corporate governance functions
have been performed and executed by the Board and the
Board has reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG
Code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year under review, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company's auditor, Ernst & Young for audit and non-
audit services to the Group, is set out as follows:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$

Audit services 1,780,000
Non-audit services

— Review of interim financial information 450,000

— Other non-assurance services 300,000

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2025.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
its responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 101 to 110 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems for the Group. The systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established internal audit
function. Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring the maintenance
of proper accounting records for provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensuring

compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls has been
conducted, and considered that the systems are effective and
adequate. The review is conducted at least annually. For the
year ended 31 March 2025, the Board has conducted a
review on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications,
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions and considered that they are adequate.

Whistleblowing Policy

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted a whistleblowing policy on 14 March 2023. It
provides employees and the relevant third parties who deal
with the Group (e.g., customers and suppliers) with guidance
and reporting channels on reporting any suspected
improprieties in any matters related to the Group directly
addressed to the Audit Committee. All information received

from a whistleblower and its identity will be kept confidential.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy

In compliance with code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted the code of conduct which provides guidance
and the standards of behaviour in relation to the anti-
corruption and anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees
to resist fraud, to help the Group defend against corrupt
practices and to report any reasonably suspected case of fraud
and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management or
through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would
not tolerate all forms of fraud and corruption among all
employees and those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity
on behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing with third

parties.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and
dissemination of inside information under the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “"SFO"). The Group has a policy on
disclosure of inside information which sets out the system in
place for monitoring the developments of our businesses so
that potential inside information can be escalated to the Board
so as to decide whether announcement in relation to such
inside information is to be made, in order to comply with the
Listing Rules and SFO. In addition, all employees are required
to follow the guidelines of the code of conduct and the staff
handbook to keep unpublished inside information strictly

confidential.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Suet Yi, is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance

matters.

During the Year, Ms. Ng Suet Yi has complied with the relevant
professional training under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a Special General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business or resolution specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held in the form of a
physical meeting only and within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists may themselves convene such physical meeting in
accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the

Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time to send their enquiries and

concerns to the Board as follows:

Unit 3808, 38th Floor,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

Telephone  : (852) 2530 1668
Fax © (852) 2530 1233
Email : info@ncgrp.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the

general meetings of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

(i)

director of the Company at shareholders’ meetings are

set out in the “Corporate Governance” section of the

Company's website.

The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company may submit a
written requisition to propose resolution(s) through

requisition of a special general meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of
the voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company may submit a written requisition to

propose resolution(s) at the next general meeting.

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must

@

(b)

©

(d)

state the resolution(s) with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the shareholders’

meeting;

be signed by the requisitionist(s);

specify the full name and address of the
requisitionist(s), as appear in the Company's share

register of shareholders;

specify the class and number of shares which are
beneficially owned by the requisitionist(s) on the

date of such written requisition or notice; and
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)
(e) be deposited at the registered office of the Company
with a copy to the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
3808, 38th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the board of directors of the

Company or the company secretary of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings and other general meetings to communicate

with them and encourage their participation.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its shareholders
through interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. All such reports, announcements and circulars can also
be accessed via websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly
by the Board to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with

the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) in January 2019.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account, among others, inter alia, the

following factors:

(i) the Group's financial results;

(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity

position;

(iii) the Group's expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

(iv) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider

appropriate.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the bye-laws of

the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be

proposed or declared in any given period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there was no change
in the Company's constitutional documents, and these
documents are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HEREGRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report provides an update of the environmental, social
and governance ("ESG") of the Group during the period from
1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 (the “Reporting Year” or
“2025") and is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide under Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules (the
"ESG Report”).

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

Board Statement

In assessing a company's performance, it is imperative to
consider not only its financial metrics, but also by its
commitments to environmental stewardship and social
responsibility. The board of directors (the "Directors”) of the
Company (the "Board") takes the overall responsibility for the
formulation and implementation of ESG strategy and reporting.
To ensure the effective implementation of ESG development
strategies, the Group's sustainability governance framework
consists of the Board and the ESG Working Group. The Board
provides strategic oversight of the Group's sustainability vision
and policies, develops and oversees ESG-related initiatives in
partnership with the ESG Working Group, which acts as the

operational arm responsible for executing sustainability efforts.

Further information of the Group's governance structure is

provided as follows:
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
The Board

Strategic Oversight: Guides the Group's sustainability
strategy, ensuring alignment with its long-term vision and

objectives.

Risk and Performance Review: Regularly evaluates ESG
risks, monitors performance, and tracks progress toward

sustainability goals.

Strategic Guidance: Provides direction for ESG initiatives,
ensuring they align with the Group’s broader business

strategy.

Risk and Opportunity Management: Identifies and
evaluates critical ESG risks, such as climate change and
supply chain issues, while implementing mitigation

strategies.

Policy Formulation: Develops and refines ESG visions,
strategies, frameworks, targets, and key performance
indicators (KPIs).

Compliance and Engagement: Oversees the implementation
of ESG policies, ensures adherence to regulatory requirements,
enhances communication with shareholders, and supports

external ESG initiatives to strengthen corporate influence.
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (continued)
ESG Working Group

+  Execution and Coordination: Assists the Board in
implementing policies and monitors progress across the

organisation.

« Data and Planning: Creates ESG action plans, gathers
data for reporting, and provides analytical insights to

support decision-making.

«  Capacity Building: Recommends improvements to
enhance ESG performance and conducts training
programs to foster greater ESG awareness within the

organisation.

Over the past years, the Company has conducted materiality
assessments of ESG issues concerned by its stakeholders, in
which the Board participated in the evaluation, prioritisation,
and management of important ESG issues and put in place an
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
supervision system. The Company has also set environmental
targets associated with its businesses and conducts regular

reviews of the progress of environmental targets.

A more comprehensive review of the Company’s performance
is provided in the Group’s ESG Report in the following

sections.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

We have taken the following reporting principles into account

in the ESG report.

Materiality

The ESG Report is structured and based on the materiality of
respectively sustainability issues as assessed and identified
with stakeholder engagement. The Board regularly reviews the
sustainability issues that are most significant to our businesses
and operations, and consider the issues discussed in the ESG

Report to be material to the Group.

Quantitative

The ESG Report provides information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools. Source
of conversion factors used for the reporting of emissions and
energy consumption are mainly referred to the ESG Reporting
Guide.

Balance

The ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group's
performance during the Reporting Year to avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately

affect the decision or judgement made by the report reader.

Consistency
The Group uses consistent methodologies with the prior year
to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data and enables

the stakeholders to understand the Group’s performances.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

Unless otherwise stated, information disclosed in the ESG
Report covers the Group's businesses including money
lending, property investment and securities trading for the

Reporting Year.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands its responsibility to all stakeholders
and recognises that understanding the needs and expectations
of stakeholders is the key to success of the Group. Therefore,
the Group values the views of different stakeholders and their
opinions on our businesses and ESG matters. A summary of

the stakeholders, topics concerned and communication

channels are as follows:

Stakeholders
=)

Stock Exchange

B 22 i

Government and Regulatory
Authorities

B M E s

Investors and Shareholders

BREHERBRR

K ES R

AEERAEUMAROENRE L THE
FNENTERHMESARERINOAER -
Ft - AEEER SR F D & BB A KK
FUAREEXRBLRR HEREAFTEN
BER-BOE BINEBEUAREBREN

Topics Concerned
BERNEE

«  Compliance of Listing Rules,
timely and accurate publishing
of announcements
BF ETHARA AR RERE

HEAE

«  Compliance with laws and
regulations
BPER IR

«  Fulfilment of tax obligation

BT &S

«  Corporate governance
tEER

+  Business strategies and
performance
E33 Ve

. Investment returns
& @

M2

Communication Channels

. Meetings, training, workshops,
programs, website updates and

announcements
g% 1B IRy 5TEl
WL E I R A E

+  Government inspections
BT AR 22

. Compliance report or questionnaire
ERBEXHES

«  Statutory filings and notification
VR TE 8 Kl A

. Tax returns

WK

«  Shareholders’ meetings

RERE

+  Annual and interim reports
FmEkpERE

«  Announcements and circulars

«  Company website
yNSIE D



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt @ E B EEE R 2 A 57
Annual Report 2025 F 3

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
IR - HEREGRSE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued) BFHESH(E)

Stakeholders Topics Concerned Communication Channels

0 E BE K A BERE
Customers Quality services Emails and phone
BF BE IR B RER
Reasonable price Site visits
BEER BHRD
Protection of privacy Business meetings
RELE B =
Company website
yNSIE S

Business Partners and

Quality of products or services

Business meetings

Suppliers EmdRENE = BB eE
BERH R HER Contract and agreements
CR Py E
Emails and phone
BN E A
Employees Remuneration and benefit Interviews with employees
(== ¥ BN K2 48 A HESEHR
Employee compensation Employee performance appraisal
EEME BEREEZ
Training and development Internal meetings
Bl R R W& &
Working hours Training and seminars
TERF &R Bl i a
Working environment Employee handbook
TERIE B8 FM
Email and internal memos
BE S A B T 8%
Suggestion box
B R
Community Environmental protection Supporting charitable organisations
a2 RIGRE RIFRERE
Employment Employees’ voluntary participation in
I community activities

Helping people in need and
poverty relief

EVEFEENEKE

EEAMELHYEES
Charitable donations
rEB
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The three steps the Group takes to prepare for the materiality

assessment:

Step One: Identification of Material Issues

With reference to the ESG Reporting Guide issued by the
Stock Exchange and combining factors such as comprehensive
company development strategies, industry development
trends, supervision and capital market requirements etc., to
identify the economic, environmental and social implications
of the Group's businesses, and potential material issues that
may affect the assessment and decision-making of

stakeholders.

Step Two: Determination of Material Issues

The Group collects feedbacks from internal and external
stakeholder representatives through online questionnaire to
understand the priorities of each stakeholder's concerns and
reviews the potential material issues and prioritises them
according to their impacts on the Group's ESG development

and on the stakeholders to map the matrix.

Step Three: Review and Confirmation

The ESG Working Group are responsible for reviewing and

confirming the assessment results with the Board.

After the communication with stakeholders through
questionnaires and on the basis of the materiality matrix, the
Group identified the following aspects recognised as the key
concerns to the Group's sustainability, which substantially
impact the sustainability of the Group. The Group will
continuously improve the ESG performance to meet the
expectation of stakeholders. In the future, the Group will
continue and expand stakeholder engagement to enhance the
materiality analysis, and will collect a diverse range of

stakeholders’ views through various activities.
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Materiality Matrix
Highr— - - - : : ..
= | Topics of Less Materiality Topics of Moderate Materiality Topics of High Materiality
= BEEESE hEEESRE BEEESRE
Employee Benefits
and Welfare Anti-corruption
B 5B NER RES
[ J [
Health and Safety @ @ Equal Opportunity
AR S o TSk
Development @
and Training ~ Labour Standards
» pRmE  HTEA
()
=
]
o4 .
R Product Responsibility
< Use of Resources L] EmEE
2 = EiRERA
i) I’ Community
§ X ln;f%?;%to @ SuPply FC:hain Management
- ) e ER
8 ™ The Environment and
o Natural Resources @
E‘ REREAER ®
= Climate
Change
RIERZE
Emissions
HERK
Low . High
Importance to Business ?g
& =

Topics of High Materiality
BEEZEZRB

Topics of Moderate Materiality
hWEEEEA

Topics of Less Materiality

BREEEZE

HEBNERM

+  Labour Standards
85 T2 R

«  Health and Safety
R 2

+  Development and Training
R B

«  Product Responsibility
EmEMT
. Use of Resources

BIREM

. Emissions
HEIR

«  The Environment and Natural
Resources

RENMBAER

«  Employee Benefits and Welfare
& B 1Fd RAEA

«  Equal Opportunity
FERE

*  Anti-corruption

R&ES

. Community Investment
HRRE

«  Supply Chain Management
HE e

«  Climate Change
RARE L
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Al.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group commits to fully endorsing all government
initiatives to execute the 14th Five-Year Plan and the
“carbon neutrality” policy, aiming to contribute to global

climate objectives in collaboration with other enterprises.

Due to the Group's nature of businesses, the operations

do not involve any production process, hence there is no

obvious exhaust emissions.

The Group's air and greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions

data during the Reporting Year and the year 2024 are as

follows:

Air Emissions

BER B

Nitrogen Oxides (NO,)
REY

Sulphur Oxides (SO))
maty

Particulate Matter (PM)

GHG Emissions

BEREBIHER

Scope 1: Direct emissions

HE: EEYK

Scope 2: Indirect emissions
#E2 - AR

Greenhouse gas intensity (per employee)

BRERBTE (BREER)

Unit
By

kg
T

T
kg
T

tCO.e
mE — S bR
tCO,e
WA — S AL AR
tCOe

A BIE
Al. BEHY
RE B R
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HFREN MR ] BERH X IREHE -
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2025
—EB-HEF

2.00

0.05

7.31

75.32

2.58

H

ERB) FHEIE

2024

2.27

0.05

8.50

65.32

2.31
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

. Emissions (continued)

Notes:

1. Scope 1 refers to the direct emissions from vehicles that

are owned by the Group.

2. Scope 2 refers to the indirect emissions resulting from the
generation of purchased electricity consumed by the

Group.

3. The emission factors used are based on the requirements
in "How to prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock

Exchange.

We have adopted energy saving initiatives mentioned in

the section “Use of Resources” of the ESG Report.

In long term, the Group has set target to support the
14th Five-Year Plan and strive towards carbon neutrality
by 2050. Besides, with 2025 as the base year, the Group
aims at reducing 5% GHG emissions intensity by 2030.

Rg - HEREGRE

R®E (&)

. BEmc (&)

GEX

1. BENEEAREERTEHNERIW -

2. BERREAKEEARNINBEENFE
AR BERR

3. EANSEREBREENERZTEMAD
A RERE e RERRE—M
B REBRAERERESDN

Ek o

HMERRRE HekEaRE[E
IRIER | — &I Tt W BT & BEIRFE 7 ©

REMT AKBECHEERIFS
THERFRE  ABMHIR_-_ZTHTF
RIERBAM e o U—FT—RFH
HEF AEEFIAR_Z=ZF58
= RSP E R 1K5% ©

61



62

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Annual Report 2025 F 3§

FHELEEEEERLA

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HEREEGRE

Al.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

With 2025 as the base year, the Group aims at reducing
5% non-hazardous wastes intensity by 2030. To achieve
the target, the Group has implemented following

measures to manage waste effectively.

The Company has implemented waste management
strategies to reduce waste production and lessen the
environmental impact of its operations. Hazardous waste
from office activities, such as toner cartridges, is kept to a
minimum and handled by certified waste collectors to
ensure complete adherence to relevant environmental
regulations and standards. Non-hazardous waste,
including waste papers of approximately 1.05 tonnes
(2024: 1.06 tonnes), is collected by specialised recycling

company on a regular basis for effective recycling.

Due to the Group's nature of businesses, it is not aware
of any non-compliance of laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to air and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation

of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Al.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A. ]RIE (&)
. Use of Resources A2. ERfEA
The Group's energy and resources consumption data AEBRREFER_S-_NFEAE
during the Reporting Year and the year 2024 are as BRERBFEEIENT
follows:
Unit 2025 2024
B —E-RE —E-F

Direct Energy Consumption

BHERRHRE
Petrol Litres 3,098.80 3,600.57
T 7t
Intensity (per vehicle) Litres 1,032.93 1,200.19
T (BHAE) 7

Indirect Energy Consumption

5 45 BE R OH #E

Electricity kwh 163,334.00 137,473.00
£ FRE
Intensity (per sq.m. of floor area) kWh 148.34 124.85
BE(BTFHAEEERE) T FL B

Resources Consumption

BIRH
Paper Tonnes 1.53 561
AR ok A
Intensity (per employee) Tonnes 0.05 0.18
mnE(BEEE) M8
The Group is vigilant to conserve energy, water and AREBBEHHEEIR - KMER - AR

E_hEREEF  AEEFER
=TFR KRB R E FE5% -
2030. To achieve the target, we have initiated the BERILERZE  BHMEHEITUATER
following measures to promote responsible use of WE&E’E\/ THfERER -

resources.

depletion. Hence, with 2025 as the base year, the Group —Z

%
resources as to relieve global concern of resource REHREERMBNES - Bk N
aims at reducing 5% energy consumption intensity by —=
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EiaRE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Electricity consumption

«  The Group advocates employees to switch off idle

lightings, computers, office equipment and air-

conditioning systems when they are not in use.

«  The Group has adopted energy saving practices in

its office building.

«  The traditional fluorescent tubes have been replaced
by LED tubes in the offices.

Fuel consumption
«  Regular maintenance on the Group's vehicles is
carried out to ensure a high fuel efficiency to reduce

emissions.

Water consumption

«  Water saving notices have been posted in pantry to

promote water conservation and usage awareness.

«  Prompt repair and maintenance when there is

dripping, spraying and leaky faucets.

Water consumption of the Group is entirely attributed to
domestic usage in the office building. However, water
consumption expenses are included in the building
management fee, and therefore water consumption
record of the Group was not available. Since the main
source of waste water came from domestic use, the

overall level of water pollution is relatively low.
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A2. Use of Resources (continued)

Paper consumption

The use of digital copies is promoted in the office to
save papers and to recycle envelopes that are used

for issuing internal documents and letters.

Double-side printing and copying.

Electronic means of corporate communications to
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to
receive corporate communication documents by
using electronic means through the Company's

website so as to reduce the paper consumption.

Increasing the portion of digital marketing tools and

cutting down the paper advertisement.

Packing material consumption

The Group, as a non-consumer goods manufacturer,
does not consume any packaging materials in its

principal businesses.

A2.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
The Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities of the Group have no direct/
significant impact on environment and natural resources.
The Group is committed to efficient use of natural
resources by encouraging the reuse and recycling of
materials across our daily operations. Aligned with
industry best practices and regulatory requirements, the
Group is committed in applying industry best practices
and complying with legislation, establishing and reviewing
safety, security, and environmental goals and targets,
effectively using energy and materials, reducing waste
and emissions, and communicating our environmental
protection policy to all employees. The Group also places
surplus cash with a bank for sustainable deposits of
which all assets reference against them align to the
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals addressing,
including but not limited to, climate change, poverty,

health, financial inclusion and education.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises that the corporation
must take responsibility for being a role model of industry
in relation to sustainability of the environment, and we
should bear the responsibilities and fulfill the obligations

in protecting them.

A3.

B®E (&)
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Climate Change

Climate change has attracted widespread international
attention. The Group has recognised the potential risks
and impacts of changing climate that may adversely affect
the Group’s businesses and financial performance. The

potential climate-related risks are as follows:

Physical risks

With the increase in frequency and severity of extreme
weather and climate events such as typhoons, rainstorms,
floods, thunderstorms and fire, the Group acknowledges
that climate change is a global issue that will impact
individuals and worldwide. Extreme weather events will
have adverse impacts on the Group's businesses and the
health and safety of our employees. In addition, extreme
weather events may cause damages to the Group's
properties, including collateral properties under our
Group’s mortgage loan portfolio. To minimise the
potential risks, the Group has established mitigation plans
including flexible working arrangements and precautionary
measures during bad or extreme weather conditions and
closely monitored the weather updates. The Group will
also perform regular assessment of office and building

facilities to secure a safe working environment.

A4.
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A4.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Climate Change (continued)

Transition risks

More stringent existing and emerging requirements in
policies and regulations related to climate change may
lead to higher operating costs to ensure compliance. In
response to the policy and legal risks, the Group
constantly monitors any changes in laws or regulations
and access the risk posed to the Group timely to mitigate

the effects on the Group.

Moving forward, the Group will consistently track the
impacts and potential risks of climate change, while
enhancing and applying preventive measures to mitigate

these climate-related risks.

SOCIAL

. Employment

The Group views its employees as essential assets and a
key competitive strength. The employee handbook clearly
outlines the Group's policies and regulations concerning
compensation, dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and additional benefits and welfare.

During the Reporting Year, the Group complied with all
the relevant laws, regulations and requirements, including
but not limited to, the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57),
the Employee’s Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282), the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485) and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) and
did not find any violations of laws and regulations and

requirements in relation to Employment.
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SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a total number of
32 full-time employees (2024: 32 full-time employees).
The key performance indicators related to the employee
structure and the employee turnover rate for the

Reporting Year and the year 2024 are as follows:

Employee structure EEEE
By gender R E o
Male S
Female geglid
By age group RERARE 5
Under 30 30 AT
Aged 30 to 50 305% 2505%
Aged over 50 505% A
By category RER &5
Senior Management SRERE
Middle Management hAREEE
General Employees —REE
By geographical region &Rt EE 5
Hong Kong EE

Singapore NI

Rg - HEREGRE

tE (&)

. B (&)

R-E_RAF=ZA=1+—8 A&EEZ
ZREBAHDA(ZT_NF: 28
EER2A) RBEFER_ZT_MF
EEHEERBEREE MK XMHERE
BREROT

2025 2024
—E-RHE —E-F
Number of Number of
employees employees

EEAH BE A
13 13
19 19

2 3
13 14
17 15
7 7
14 14
11 11
23 23
9 9
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B1. Employment (continued)

Employee turnover rate

By gender
Male

Female

By age group
Under 30
Aged 30 to 50
Aged over 50

By geographical region

Hong Kong

Singapore

Note: Turnover rate refers to total number of resigned/retired

employees divided by the average number of employees

during the Reporting Year and the year 2024.

B. #& (&)

B1. f&f% (&)
2025
—EB-HEF
Number of
resigned/
retired Turnover
employees rate
B
RES
A k=
(Note)
(B =E)
EERKLLE
BRI E D
St 0 0%
it 6%
RERARSE D
30BRA T 0 0%
308 E505% 1 3%
5088 A & 1 3%
R EE D
N 6%
EpIIE 0 0%

2024
—E_MmEF
Number of
resigned/
retired Turnover
employees rate
B
RINMES
AE RKHE
(Note)
(M 5E)
1 3%
0 0%
0 0%
1 3%
0 0%
1 3%
0 0%

MiaE : RARLXENREFER-_T_OF
[EAER,RINE B ABKRIATHR

A&
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SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Compensation and dismissal

The Group provides competitive compensation and benefits
to attract and retain talent. Employee remuneration is
determined based on factors such as educational
background, experience, job responsibilities, professional
skills, technical expertise, and industry salary benchmarks
for similar roles. Dismissal may occur in cases of serious or
repeated disciplinary violations or conviction of a criminal

offense.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their
social identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender,
religion, age, sexual orientation, marital status, pregnancy,
disability and political beliefs. The level of compensation of
our employees is reviewed annually in an annual appraisal
on their performance basis, during which process each

employee is given equal opportunity for promotion.

Working hours and rest periods

The Group understands the importance of “work-life
balance” to its employees and adopts five to six days
workweek dependent on level of duty and nature of
operations involved to ensure that the employees have
adequate rest. The Group determines working hours and
rest periods for the employees in line with Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and employment contracts with
the employees. In addition to statutory holidays, the
employees are also entitled to other paid holidays
including annual leave, sick leave, marriage and
compassionate leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and

compensation leave.

Rg - HEREGRE
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SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
The Group believes in the power of diversity, as it
believes that a varied workforce is essential to business
continuity. Therefore, the Group is committed to creating
and maintaining an embracing and collaborative
workplace culture. The Group aims to provide equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment and ensure
the workplace is free from discrimination, physical or
verbal harassment against any individual based on race,
religion, colour, gender, physical or mental capability, age,
place of origin, marital status, and sexual orientation. The
Group also strives to ensure that complaints, afflictions
and concerns, including whistle-blowing, are dealt with
promptly and confidentially. The Group has zero
tolerance for sexual harassment or abuse in the

workplace in any form.

Benefits and welfare

«  Benefits plans maintained by the Group include
mandatory provident fund (“MPF") scheme, medical
insurance, group life insurance, long service reward

and discretionary bonuses.

¢ Providing free fruit at work and encouraging our

employees to make healthy food choices.

«  Festive gifts were given to the employees.

«  Birthday celebrations were held for employees from

time to time.
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SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Benefits and welfare (continued)

On top of the statutory requirement, the Group makes
voluntary contributions to the MPF to enhance retirement
protection of the employees. The Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Group have received the Good MPF
Employer Awards for several years presented by the

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,
healthy and hygienic working environment. The following
sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to

workplace:

«  Office employees are assigned with individual
workstations. Offices are properly lit and ventilated,
kept clean and tidy with ample space between

workstations;

«  Office furniture and fittings are well-maintained and

replaced when necessary;

+  Smoking and drinking alcohol in workplace are

strictly prohibited;

«  Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection

treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;
«  Air defender and purifiers are equipped to protect
environment with antibacterial efficacy and to

remove air-suspended dust and odour;

. First-aid boxes are set up in the offices;
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B.

B2.

B3.

EiaRE

SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

«  The Group supported the employees’ roles and
responsibilities to their families and strives to
maintain a family-friendly work place for our
employees. We welcomed their kids to come to our
workplace in case of any suspension of classes for
all secondary schools, primary schools, kindergartens,

child care centres and special schools;

. Hand sanitizers are available at the reception areas;

and

. Public areas of the offices are cleaned and

disinfected every day.

There was no work-related fatality occurred in the Group
during the Reporting Year and the past three years. Apart
from these, there was no lost day due to work-related

injury during the Reporting Year.

Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for
the development of the employees as well as the Group.
The Group encourages and supports employees in
personal and professional training, through seminars,
workshops as well as reimbursement for external training
courses to enhance their competencies in performing
their jobs effectively and efficiently. For the Reporting
Year, 31 employees (2024: 31 employees) have
received training, representing 97% (2024: 97%) of the
employees of the Group. A total of 195 training hours
(2024: 239 training hours) were offered to the relevant
employees, of which 67 training hours (2024: 97 training
hours) for male and 128 training hours (2024: 142

training hours) for female.
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B. SOCIAL (continued) B. & (&)
B3. Development and Training (continued) B3. HERIEZI (&)
The percentage of employees received training by gender RBEFERZS-_MFE - BER R
and category for the Reporting Year and year 2024 are as BRIZEISHMEEXIBSLMT :
follows:
2025 2024
—E_RE —E-ME
Percentage of Percentage of
employees employees

received training  received training

ZillEgEZ XilEE 2
Batk BOL
By gender & 1Bl &l 5
Male S 39 39
Female ok 61 61
By category RE R &5
Senior Management SRERE 23 23
Middle Management FREERE 45 45

General Employees —REE 32 32
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B. SOCIAL (continued)

B3. Development and Training (continued)
For the Reporting Year, the average training hours per
employee received training was 6 (2024: 8) and the
breakdown of the average training hours per employees

received training based on gender and category are as

follows:

By gender Sk E by
Male EeRid
Female pgid

By category BrER &S
Senior Management SRERE
Middle Management PREEE

General Employees —REE

B. & (&)

B3. B R KRIE (&)
RBEFE  BEXIEE FH IR
BA6(ZTE_MF:8) MEMA R
BRIEHEEZEE T ZIRE
HIBRARLN TS -

2025 2024
—E_HRF —EomF
Average training  Average training

hours hours

F 39 2 3 B B F 19 X oI B B

6 4
10 13
2 3
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SOCIAL (continued)
Labour Standards

The Group adheres to all applicable laws, regulations, and
requirements set by governing authorities, maintaining a
strict policy against the use of child or forced labour.
Through robust recruitment policies, the human resources
department thoroughly verifies the identity documents of
all applicants during the hiring process to ensure that
every employee meets the minimum legal working age
and that no forced labor is employed. During the
Reporting Year, all the Group’s employees were aged
over 18 and no child and forced labour had been
employed (2024: Nil). The Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with child and forced labour-
related laws and regulations, including but not limited to,
the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) and other laws and
regulations relating to employment and labour practices

that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

The Group mainly engages third party services providers
to provide services such as information technology
services, advertising services, legal and professional
services, and also daily routine office equipment, office
supplies, stationery and printing materials. There was no

major procurement involved.
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EiaRdE

SOCIAL (continued)
Supply Chain Management (continued)

The Group strives to develop and maintain long-term and
stable relationships with our suppliers who are committed to
high quality, environmental, health and safety standards. In
selecting the suppliers, the Group takes into account their
prices, quality, services capabilities, credibility, environmental
and social performance. Meanwhile, the Group regularly
evaluates supplier performance, strengthens the
management of environmental and social risks, promotes
the sustainable development of the enterprise, in order to

build up the corporate social responsibility.

During the Reporting Year, there were 59 suppliers
(2024: 59 suppliers) of the Group, all of them are

located in Hong Kong.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to complying with relevant laws
and regulations concerning health and safety, advertising,
labelling, and privacy in relation to its products and
services, while ensuring effective communication
channels for addressing concerns and resolving issues. As
the Group is also conducting money lending business
through holding a money lenders licence in Hong Kong,
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163) of the Laws of
Hong Kong constitutes a significant influence to the

Group's money lending business.

During the Reporting Year, there was no non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

Protection of intellectual property rights

The Group values its intangible assets as much as its
tangibles. The Group protects its businesses against
intellectual property theft by refusing the use of illegal
software or anything without copyright or patents. The
Group supports the use of legal and intangible assets
with trademarks while protecting itself from expose to

cybersecurity threats.

Customer privacy protection

We only collect personal data for operational needs and
clearly inform all customers or persons about the
intended use of the data and their rights to review and
revise their information. All collected personal data is
treated as confidential and securely kept and processed

only for the purposes of which it had been collected.

During the Reporting Year, we were not aware of any
significant non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. We did not receive any compliant concerning
breaches of clients’ privacy nor we have identified any

leak or loss of client data.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity in all aspect of the Group's
affairs. The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards
behaviour in association with bribery, corruption,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in its business
operations. Employees should not offer, solicit or accept
anything of material value to or from his/her colleagues,
customers, suppliers or other business partners of the
Company. Our code of conduct has provided guiding
principles for the employees regarding to the acceptance
of gifts, declaration of interest and other misconduct.
Employees are required to declare any conflict of interest
by completing the required form as instructed by the
Group’s Human Resources Department. Accepting
voluntary gift must be declared and have undergone the
approval process as administered by the Group’s Human
Resources Department. During the Reporting Year, the
Group provided internal training on anti-corruption for all

directors and employees of the Group.

The Group encourages the reporting of suspected
business irregularities within the Group and provides
reporting channels specifically for this purpose. When
suspected wrongdoings, such as breach of duty, abuse of
power and receipts of bribes are identified, employees
should report to senior management for investigation and
verification, as well as other relevant regulators or to the

law enforcement authorities when necessary.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption (continued)

To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist
financing, the Group follows the “Guideline on
Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders” issued by the Companies Registry and has
incorporated policies and procedures in its operations
and credit guidelines and policies, which include
procedures for customer due diligence, enhanced due
diligence, reporting of suspicious transactions, record-keeping
and staff training. Any suspicious case of money
laundering or terrorist financing which comes to the
employees’ knowledge would be reported to the money
laundering reporting officer ("MLRO") of the Group.
Taking the relevant information into account, MLRO will
evaluate the suspicious case on a case-by-case basis and
when necessary, will report to the Joint Financial
Intelligence Unit of the Hong Kong Government as soon

as practicable.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in respect of anti-corruption, and no legal
cases against the Group in respect of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering have been recorded during

the Reporting Year.
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B8.

SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption (continued)

Furthermore, the Group encourages its employees to
report alleged malpractices or misconduct through various
channels. The Group has also adopted a whistleblowing
policy and procedures for all levels under the Group. The
Group's whistleblowing policy encourages all internal staff
to report actual or suspected improper conduct, in
confidence, to the Group's executive directors or the
Group’s audit committee if the suspected improper

conduct involves the Group's executive directors.

During the Reporting Year, there was no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or our employees (2024: Nil). The Group
endeavours to protect the whistle-blower from common
concerns such as potential retaliation and is assured that

their identity as a whistle-blower will be kept confidential.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to supporting the public by
means of social participation and donation and putting
the best effort into helping the local communities and
people in need through community services and

engagement, social support and sponsorship programs.

The Group contributes and gives back to the community
by donating to various social organisations and engaging
in community service activities, to fulfil its corporate social
responsibility. We encourage our employees to take part
in charitable activities and volunteer community services.
During the Reporting Year, the Group made donations in
aggregate of HK$63,000 (2024: HK$51,280) to certain
social and charitable organisations, to support

rehabilitation and community services for the needy.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment (continued)

Apart from donation, the Group also actively participated
in various social activities held by well-known
organisations during the Reporting Year, including but not

limited to:

Case 1: Storytelling Activity held by SAHK

SAHK provides comprehensive professional rehabilitation
services and facilities for persons with neurological
impairments such as cerebral palsy, physical handicap,
mental handicap, autism spectrum disorders,
developmental delay, specific learning difficulties, stroke
and Parkinson’s disease. On 7 June 2024, our employees
participated in the storytelling voluntary service organised
by SAHK. They spread love and joy through a storytelling
activity, aiming to bring smiles and warmth to those

children.

Case 2: The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation —
Flag Day 2024

On 6 July 2024, the Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation
(HKSR) hosted its Flag Day 2024 in the Hong Kong
Island region. The event aimed to raise funds for HKSR's
rehabilitation and social welfare services supporting
people with disabilities, chronic illnesses, and the elderly,
while promoting awareness of rehabilitation and
community inclusion. Our employees have actively
supported the activities in order to contribute to the

community.

In addition, certain companies in the Group have been
awarded for decade the “Caring Company” logo by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of its

contribution to society and serving the community.
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The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company comprise investment
holding and securities trading. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries comprise money lending, property investment and
securities trading. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a fair review of
business and an indication of likely future development in the
Group's businesses, can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report
and note 1 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report. Such discussion forms part of this “Report of

the Directors”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2025 and the

Group's financial position at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 111 to 260.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any

dividends in respect of the year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 261
and 262. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company's share capital

during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2025, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$679,995,000.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$354,993,000 as at 31 March 2025 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2025 is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$63,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate revenue attributable to
the five largest customers accounted for 19% of the Group's
total revenue and the aggregate revenue attributable to the
largest customer accounted for 6% of the Group’s total

revenue for the year.

No major suppliers were identified.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Ms. Huang Si Teng

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung

In accordance with Company's bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2), Mr.
Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda, Ms. Chen Ka Chee
and Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will

offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of Mr. Cheung Chun
Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth, Mr. Ho Yau Ming and Mr.
Wong Steve Cheuk Hung an annual confirmation of
independence and as at the date of this report, still considers

them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

(a) Executive Directors

CHELEEEEFERBERAA

EXEEE

(a)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chairman of the Company and the
Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 48. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
Director in January 2003 and was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in April 2004. Mr. Ng
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to the
chairman of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Ng has
also held directorships in various members of the Group
since January 2003. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics awarded by Indiana University
Bloomington. Mr. Ng is a director of Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited ("HWHL"), the immediate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific Limited
(“NCIPL"), which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. In addition, Mr. Ng is a director of NCIPL. Mr.
Ng is a younger brother of Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder
brother of Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Huang Si
Teng. Mr. Ng is a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. Mr. Ng is
also a son of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng, who is the
settlor and the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds
the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Ms. Lilian Ng,
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Ms.
Chen Ka Chee are executive Directors. Mr. Ng did not
hold any directorships in other listed public companies in

the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan Deputy Chairman

Aged 58. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
Director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Sio has also held directorships in various members of the
Group since August 2000. Ms. Sio has over 30 years of
extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investment, tourism and
entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of HWHL, the
immediate holding company of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, Ms.
Sio is a director of NCIPL. Ms. Sio is the mother of Ms.
Huang Si Teng, who is an executive Director. Ms. Sio did
not hold any directorships in other listed public companies

in the last three years.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 47. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
Director in June 2003 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company in October 2004. Ms.
Ng has also held directorships in various members of the
Group since November 2003. Ms. Ng holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree majoring in Telecommunications and a minor
in Computer Science awarded by Indiana University
Bloomington. Ms. Ng brings to the Group experience in
the fields of real estate management, human resource
management and retail operations. Ms. Ng is a younger
sister of Ms. Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat and an elder
sister of Ms. Huang Si Teng. Ms. Ng is a cousin of Ms.
Chen Ka Chee. Ms. Ng is also a daughter of Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee
of a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Ms. Chen Ka Chee are
executive Directors. Ms. Ng did not hold any directorships

in other listed public companies in the last three years.
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Aged 51. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
Director in July 2002. Ms. Ng has also held directorships
in various members of the Group since September 2002.
Ms. Ng holds a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration awarded by San Francisco State University.
Ms. Ng has extensive experience in real estate
management. Ms. Ng is a director of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Ms. Ng is the
elder sister of Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
and Ms. Huang Si Teng. Ms. Ng is a cousin of Ms. Chen
Ka Chee. Ms. Ng is also a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Ms. Chen Ka Chee
are executive Directors. Ms. Ng did not hold any
directorships in other listed public companies in the last
three years.

Ms. Chen Ka Chee Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 60. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an executive
Director in May 2000 and was appointed as the member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in July 2022. Ms. Chen has also held
directorships in various members of the Group since
August 2000. Ms. Chen holds a Bachelor of Commerce
degree awarded by Murdoch University and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has over 37 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 4 years in
auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng
Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Huang Si
Teng. Ms. Chen is also a niece of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda and Ms. Huang Si Teng are executive
Directors. Ms. Chen did not hold any directorships in
other listed public companies in the last three years.
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(a) Executive Directors (continued) (@) BITESE (&)
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Aged 60. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was an executive Director from October 2004 to
June 2022. Mr. Yu was appointed as an executive
Director in November 2022. Mr. Yu has also held
directorships in various members of the Group since
September 1997. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of both the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
has over 40 years of experience in the accounting field,
including 3 years in external audit and 2 years in internal
audit. Contemporaneously, Mr. Yu has acquired over 32
years of financial experience in companies listed in Hong
Kong and London. Mr. Yu did not hold any directorships

in other listed public companies in the last three years.

Ms. Huang Si Teng

Aged 30. Ms. Huang joined the Company as an executive
Director in June 2023. Ms. Huang holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree awarded by the University of the Arts London
and a Master degree awarded by the University College
London. Ms. Huang has over 10 years of property
investment and management experience in Southeast
Asia. Ms. Huang is a younger sister of Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr.
Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda. Ms. Huang is
a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. Ms. Huang is also a
daughter of Ms. Sio lon Kuan and Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda, Ms. Chen Ka Chee and Ms. Sio lon Kuan are
executive Directors. Ms. Huang did not hold any
directorships in other listed public companies in the last
three years and any other positions with the Company or

other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)
(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

EEEE (&)
(b) BAFHITES

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 60. Mr. Cheung joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2012 and
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee in September 2012.
Mr. Cheung is also the member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung graduated from Edith Cowan
University of Australia and received his postgraduate
diploma of financial management from the University of
London. Since returning to Hong Kong in 1990, he has
been extending international opportunities for Chinese
large state-owned and privately-owned enterprises. Mr.
Cheung is a Practising Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a Certified Tax
Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
Cheung is the director of Global CPA (HK) Limited
(Representative of Integra International) and has
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and the
tax aspect. Mr. Cheung oversees the day-to-day running
of the finance function and is directly responsible for
financial reporting, corporate governance, tax and
corporate finance for multi-national companies including
state-owned enterprises and listed enterprises. Mr.
Cheung also has extensive international accounting
experience and has worked in CPA firms in the US and
Australia. Mr. Cheung has served as a member of the
Small and Medium Practitioners Committee, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Professional Service Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council and International
Committee and a Certified Business Intermediary of the
International Business Brokers Association. Currently, Mr.
Cheung is a member of the Small and Medium
Practitioners Committee of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung did
not hold any directorships in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 78. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2003. Mr.
Kwan is also the member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over 44
years of experience in the real estate business and
business agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorships
in other listed public companies in the last three years
and any other positions with the Company or other

members of the Group.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 74. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2003. Mr. Ho is also the
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ho holds
a Master degree in Finance from the University of
Leicester in England. Mr. Ho had worked in the banking
industry for over 27 years in official and senior executive
positions including The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho
did not hold any directorships in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other positions

with the Company or other members of the Group.

Annual Report 2025 F 3

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

EEEE (&)
(b) BAFHITES (H)

BMRREEFLZES FHWZEEK
EEHEZRBEKER

BEER_ZEZT=FHAMA
AL EB Y IERNITES - EERED
2ZBg FHMEESRIREES
(B -BAEENRFEZ R yﬁE&
BREBBRZIATIRERRZ
&Iﬁa@“@ﬂiﬁuoﬁ%i
Egst EMBEES T EEGFLR
WHERMEXBREBRIBEFEERS
A4FIEE - B ERE=FWERNHAD
FHABRRRETEMNESHE  IE
RARASAREEH MK E AREEE
fa] EL b B AL o

~
®
S

B B W 2F Bt
_\i—i%%ﬂﬁ

ARAREFLZES  FHZEER

EEZTEEME

7455 o A EERZTE=FMAMAK
RAIHEBIIERITES - ALEENA
EZEZES FTWEEERREREELZEY
BXB o Al S 35 A R B AR B AR TR R
B eRMETEM - AEEBERTR
TYE®274 - R EEE LBEZRTT
ERAAKEZTHRITERAAZEES
RBERSRITHAB ZBA - Al 4E
BE=ZFWENHM ETARRAEE
ERESBRE  TERRAQAHAEE
H AR B A R E W E B -

93



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - Tt KR S B EE B R 2 A
Annual Report 2025 F 3§

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued) EEXZER (&)

(b) BYFHITES (H)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 79. Mr. Wong joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2023. Mr.
Wong is also the member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wong completed an advanced level
course in real estate at Ryerson University (currently
known as Toronto Metropolitan University) and was
admitted as Fellow of the Real Estate Institute of Canada.
Mr. Wong is currently a Real Estate Broker and was a
Professional Appraiser with over 57 years of experience
in real estate business. Mr. Wong was qualified and
registered as a Professional Appraiser of Alpha Appraisal
Association of Ontario, Canada and a member of Toronto
Real Estate Board and The International Institute of Public
Appraisers Ltd., Chicago, US. Mr. Wong was a co-founder
of Toronto Chinese Business Association (the
“Association”) in 1968 and was elected as the president
of the Association in 1975. Mr. Wong did not hold any
directorships in other listed public companies in the last
three years and any other positions with the Company or

other members of the Group.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors' fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to Directors’
duties, qualifications, experience, level of responsibilities
undertaken, contribution to the Company, prevailing market
conditions and the recommendation of Remuneration
Committee. Further details can be found in note 8 to the

financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
During the year ended 31 March 2025, a permitted indemnity

provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
was in force for indemnity liabilities incurred by the Directors

to a third party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of the
Company’s holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FHELEEEEERLA

EERBEETRAERKRSD  HE
ROORBEEIRz2EBERKXA

R-ZB-_AF=ZA=1t—H ARAEEK
REITBABRAR R SHEEMERER (GE
ERBLZLBAEGRE (EHEBEERG])
FEXVED) 2 iy - HEAR D REEETES
REBEEZ LA EGROIEI2HREBALARN
NAIRIFERMA S RAR - SRR
EHBTAEZETESRRINRETRZ
REMBAMNGARBIREBEHARZMER
RE(TEAMRM]) 2EEARIMT ¢

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BRELBERYE - SHORESENE

Directly Through Percentage of the

beneficially controlled Beneficiary Company's issued

Directors owned corporation of a trust Total share capital

Egcl EAARE#T

= ERERER ERENFE FEZEHA &t BRAZE D

Mr. Ng Wee Keat - 220,192,000 3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
BREHESE (Note 2) (Note 3)
(P #E2) (P3E3)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 52,000,000 220,192,000 3,556,133,691 3,828,325,691 66.23
mER T (Note 2) (Note 3)
(P #E2) (PH3E3)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda - 220,192,000 3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
BERBRT (Note 2) (Note 3)
(Ff&E2) (P &E3)

Ms. Lilian Ng - 220,192,000 3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
BEMERT (Note 2) (Note 3)
(P &E2) (P &E3)

Ms. Huang Si Teng - - 3,556,133,691 3,556,133,691 61.52
ERlEL T (Note 3)
(F5E3)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee 8,400,000 - - 8,400,000 0.15

Rs#zt
Mr. Yu Wai Man 3,360,000 - - 3,360,000 0.06

REXEE



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2025, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 5,780,368,705.

2. 220,192,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being a
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian

Ng are members and members of its council of management.

3. 3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, which is ultimately owned by Huang Group (BVI)
Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wee Keat,
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda, Ms. Lilian Ng and

Ms. Huang Si Teng are the discretionary beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2025, the following interests and short RZZT_HF=A
positions of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

Company were recorded in the register of interests required to

FHELEEEEERLA

FERRERHEMATRRG REH
Ry zEZRAR

=t—HB EERRACDH
TTRXARS%RIA £ 2 Mol KRB TR IE
EH R AEHRPIEIZ6HERERLARNRR

be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO: FriR7F 2 R E M
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARRIEBR TR
Number of Percentage of the
Ordinary Company'’s issued
Shareholders Notes shares held share capital
EERDB S #AT
IR B 5 BEEBERHAE RA&z2EDE
New Century Investment Pacific Limited 2,4 3,556,133,691 61.52
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited 2 3,556,133,691 61.52
Huang Group (BVI) Limited 2,3 3,556,133,691 61.52
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng 3,4 4,206,729,691 72.78
Ey e
Notes: Bt 3E
1. As at 31 March 2025, the total number of issued shares of the 1. RZZE-ZRAF=-A=+—H AARZBEZH
Company was 5,780,368,705. TTRR 17 42 #1 /&5,780,368,7050% °

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company
of New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,556,133,691 shares.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng in his capacity as the settlor and the trustee of a

discretionary trust.

Huang Group (BVI) LimitedZ&New Century
Investment Pacific LimitedZ S #&AER A A °
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited &New
Century Investment Pacific Limited” B 1%
f& A &) e Et - Huang Group (BVI) Limited
K Huang Worldwide Holding Limited ¥ 1% & %
B & #£3,556,133,691 IR 2 # 4k o

Huang Group (BVI) LimitedFh & M3 B 5t A& LA
—EAEREEZETFARGTEATORE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.  3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 220,192,000 shares were held by New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited while 430,404,000 shares
were held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng is one of the members of New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
was deemed to be interested in a total of 4,206,729,691 shares.
New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited is a company limited

by guarantee being a charitable institution of public character.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, no person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the

public as at the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBET RS

Ernst & Young ZKEETRI SR Tel EEE: +852 2846 9888
EY 27/F, One Taikoo Place & &HlI£E Fax {5E.: +852 2868 4432
577( 979 King's Road REEI795 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 111 to 260,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2025, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") as issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

FHELEEEEERLA
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RRETSEHE ()
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Key audit matter

HREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNBFONMEERARESER

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receiva

FE W B R % R B AR E RS

bles

As at 31 March 2025, the Group's net loan and
interest receivables amounted to approximately
HK$577,338,000, which represented approximately
29% of the total assets. Provision for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables under the
expected credit loss (“ECL") model amounted to
approximately HK$14,677,000.
RZEZRF=ZA=+—H  EBEENEKRER
KA B FEK /577,338,000  HREERN
29% - RIFEFAHAEAIEXR ((RHEREX]) RR
FHRRERUWERINENRBEEEEBELOR
14,677,000/ 7T, ©

The measurement of ECLs is inherently subjective and
involves significant management judgements and
assumptions regarding the probability of default, loss
given default, historical delinquency ratio of loan and
interest receivables, collateral values and economic
indicators on forward-looking information.
ATEEHERBARE LBEFEHL U RBHE
WERRMEBHENE X EBHNBRRX - EFLHERXR
xR -ERREE URBEBKBESNAEMLE
BHEXREREHE RRF -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's policy
on granting loans to its borrowers and the Group's
credit and impairment assessments including the
related credit control and loan monitoring process. We
evaluated the reasonableness of management's loss
allowance estimates on loan and interest receivables
by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates were appropriately
adjusted based on current conditions and forward-
looking information and examining the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year and
assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances.
We carried out procedures, on a sample basis, on the
settlements made by borrowers during the year and
their subsequent settlements with reference to the
repayment schedules, and tested the existence and
accuracy of the classification of stages of loan and
interest receivables applied in the ECL model as at
the end of the reporting period. We involved our
internal valuation expert to assist us in reviewing the
valuation methodology and approach adopted by
management in the ECL model. We also considered
the adequacy of disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FHELEEEEERLA

BRRETSEHE(H)

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANETNMEEFARETER

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receiva

FE W B R % R SRR E RS ()

bles (continued)

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
EASTBRRERBEESNGEE M B RERMT24 -3
K17 -

HMH EXERMEERARTERAR E£H
FERRENFGENERER (ERERNEEZRER
ERRE)DMSTH BMEEEFEEEEANLY
REBABNEN (BEANSELZOBIENERE
%)  FHEELBERAXREEREE MR LATHEE
ERFHEZERE URBENAMBFERESH
ERBER ULAFHEEEARABRBERES
FERILOTR KM GHEEBYEREREA
EHERBEGETNAEN - RAKRMELNX - 2
RERFHEEK - BERARKFE AL EE A
LEBRNERBERRITIERF  WEAFENRSEHR
ELARABEMEABRRREASRKER T EE
TREBEBANEERE - RFABRMANBOHEE
EX28 GHRMEAEEEEEREABLRRE
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RRETSEHE ()

Key audit matter

HMEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFOMEEFARETEER

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

REWMEN D FEEMES

As at 31 March 2025, investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$485,560,000, which represented approximately
24% of the total assets, with the corresponding net
fair value losses recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$69,400,000. The Group engaged
external valuers to perform the valuation for the
investment properties. The valuation process was
inherently subjective, and dependent on a number of
significant unobservable inputs, such as the market
price per square foot, market rent per square foot and
capitalisation rate.

RZTE_RF=RA=+—H URATEEFENK
B % 4 R485,560,0008 T HERBEEERN
24% WHEEBRGZANERAAFTEEEEFED
69,400,000/ 7T - EEMESNESEEMEREMRE
TEE -FEAEAE FEFEME TAERFET
BATABRGAE IS FIRTSER -
FHRASHEERERNMCEE -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included

in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.
FAZHTBRRERERESRNGEEMBHRENT24 3
K14 o

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation experts engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the work
of the valuation experts. In addition, we evaluated the
appropriateness of the work performed by the
valuation experts. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data used
as inputs for the valuation by comparing them to
market data if available, and assessing the relevance of
the major assumptions and methodologies adopted in
the valuation. We also involved our internal valuation
experts to assist us in evaluating the assumptions and
methodologies for the valuation of the investment
properties held by the Group. We also considered the
adequacy of disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
HMPEEE ESEMZENGEERNEN K
BEREEM - Hfth THEBMEEZIROIE - i
BAFETHEERMETHIERGAE -ER
1535 18 BT 5 BUR (A0 AT B ) AT L BT A 1E 1
BRWABEBNREBEOAEBE TEERERNE AR
FEBETPHARANIERK LR TERGHERE - K
TFWT FHRPIAMNEEER2E  HEBFIT
SEMFAEREDENHERT ZBERET L - &K
1?3%5%@%%%%#&%?\] MEESE R -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

FHELEEEEERLA

TR F /A HE MER
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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BILEERTIR &
AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF BB G ERREAEDN
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EE(E)

(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise  ERBBEBFEREITETHBRF - &
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism  MER T HEZXHE - RIFTEXERLEE -
throughout the audit. We also: BHAITF

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of -
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to -«
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used -«
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

AT BN R ERME AR S
MR RFEERNERBMARERE - &
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BB ET RS
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chau Suet Fung, Dilys
(practicing certificate number: P04199).

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

26 June 2025
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE

Other income

Administrative and operating expenses

Foreign exchange differences, net

Fair value gains/(losses) on
investment properties, net

Finance costs

Provision for impairment losses on
loan and interest receivables
and repossessed assets, net

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Income tax expense

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Loss for the year from a
discontinued operation

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - it R S B & B B R 2 A
Annual Report 2025 F 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

ZFeEEER
Year ended 31 March 2025
HE_T_AF=A=+—HILFE

2025 2024
—ECEHE k- a1 -2
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fiisE TAERT FHET
BEREEY
ON 5 90,263 88,291
HA A 5 17,377 15,434
THREEHRS (44,531) (46,731)
PN ERE - HE - (547)
BREMEZATER
Wz (BR) 58 14 (69,400) 10,149
BMEKAE 7 ) M
FEU & R R M B K&
KEEENNEESS
B 58 17,20 (37,059) (37,964)
BEREEBKEEWN
BB AER (FE) 6 (43,352) 28,631
FREHE R 9 (2,671) (2,943)
FEERBELSEEY
EEWETR/ (FR) (46,023) 25,688
DRIEEEEE
AFEE-HEKIE
ReXBEENER 10 = (531)
HERBEQRAIMKE 31 - 9,834
REERR/ (BR) (46,023) 34,991
AT AL
ZN/NETE DN (55,659) 22,413
IS 9,636 12,578

(46,023) 34,991
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

HFEEER (&)

Year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_ZT_AF=—A=+—HIFE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic
— For profit/(loss) for the year

— For profit/(loss) from
continuing operations

Diluted
— For profit/(loss) for the year

— For profit/(loss) from
continuing operations

AAREBRRE

BEAEGEER
2F/ (B#8)

EAR
—AEREN,/ (BR)

~REREXBELN
wH,/ (R

- REEEMN/ (BE])

~REREXBELN
wH,/ (BR)

Note
B &E

12

2025
—E"HEF
HK$'000
TER

HK(0.96) centi&{l

2024
—TomE
HK$'000
TEL

HK0.39 cent/& 1l

HK(0.96) centi&{l

HK0.29 cent/& ll

HK(0.96) centi# il

HK0.39 centi& Il

HK(0.96) centj& L

HK0.29 centi& il
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GZeEE2EWER
Year ended 31 March 2025
BE_ZT_AF=A=t+—HI-FE

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS)

Other comprehensive loss that
may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Reclassification adjustment for a
foreign operation disposed of
during the year

Net other comprehensive loss that
may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:

Change in fair value of an
equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EEERF(FE)

Hip 2wz~
(B#])

VA% HA ] A BE BB 3
DREREMN

Hith 2 HEE -

3 4 -
R E R OME B T
EEHENER

RAFEE HEFHI
REEBEHER

DR

LA1% B8 AT B S T
DEEREM

H 2 B 183 R

NEHES T eEH
DEREREN
H i 2 W s

BERRAFER
At AE A 2 U as
R E R R F

AEEHMEE
B8 MBRBIAK

rEEREKES
(1] BHE

AT AL L :
ZN/NIE SN
FEIE AR 25

Note
B 5

31

2025 2024
—E_RE —ET_mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT TFH&T
(46,023) 34,991
(365) (3,415)
= (9,487)
(365) (12,902)
87 362
(278) (12,540)
(46,301) 22,451
(55,937) 13,729
9,636 8,722
(46,301) 22,451
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HEMBRRR

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Prepayments and
other receivables
Loan receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Lease receivables

Amounts due from
security brokers

Loan and interest receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Repossessed assets

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

HRBEE
ME - BEMRE
REMF
EERERAFEE

P AR M2 W s

R HE A
AR RIE K

H b & U AR K
e M &K
ELEHBEE

FREEERE

REBEE

& W 7 & 7R

JIE UL 38 27 4 4 7 Y
A

& U B R R A B
BNRE ek
H{th & U AR R
BEEE
BRAFEERA
BamRERE
QR 4R
RelREEEY

MEBEERR

nREBAE

JESTFIR ~ b

ERkE ke
HERE
JEHBiIR
e R REE R A A

IR
AEBEMBRARZ

FEIRR AR

B ZER

UEJRENEEGE

RBEEFH

MEERRD
a8\

FHELEEEEERLA

Notes
B 5

13
14

16
17
24

18

19
17

16
20

22

23
13

32(b)

32(d)

2025 2024
—E-RE —E-ME
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT &L
108,348 113,429
485,560 555,300
3,434 3,347
453 445
71,446 81,904
7,534 2,002
676,775 756,427
1,057 1,242
13,583 9,341
505,892 642,612
9,993 8,757
88,249 80,982
11,424 15,375

= 3,200
682,206 518,251
1,312,404 1,279,760
8,576 10,425

83 -

3,318 279
80,000 80,000

= 24,087

91,977 114,791
1,220,427 1,164,969
1,897,202 1,921,396
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
HZEMBRAR (8)

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

2025 2024
—E-RE —E-pnE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FiE T FAETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Deposits received B iz e 23 1,209 2,620
Deferred tax liabilities RIAEFLIH B (& 24 16,209 16,851
Lease liabilities HEBE 13 73 =
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 17,491 19,471
Net assets BEER 1,879,711 1,901,925
EQUITY EH
Equity attributable to owners ARARERAEMSL
of the Company &
Issued capital BB ITR A 25 14,451 14,451
Reserves k] 27 1,491,488 1,547,425
1,505,939 1,561,876
Non-controlling interests IR R 373,772 340,049
Total equity e 1,879,711 1,901,925
Ng Wee Keat Sio lon Kuan
HEEG BOEE
Chairman Deputy Chairman

FE IEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEREER

Year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_ZT_AF=—A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAER
Share Asset Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  Contributed  revaluation  Fairvalue translation Merger  Retained controlling Total
capital  account surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
B&f kft Lt BEEl AYEE Ed &ft i H#ER i
s AR By i i i fif -0 & L 48

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TR TER TER TER TR TR TEx TER TEL TEL TEL

At 1 Apil 2024 14451 354,993 162,587 4,853 2,567 (7,038) (77,640) 1,107,103 1,561,876 340,049 1,901,925
Profloss) for the year TR/ (BR) = - - - - - - (55,659)  (55,659) 9,636 (46,023)
Othercomprehensie income/ ~ REF £ 28/
(loss) for the yer:
ichange diferences on

trnslton of oregn
aperaons

Change infir value o an
equiy investment designated
atfir vlue thiough other
compichensie income

: : - = - (365) - - (365) - (365)

Totd comprehersve income/ - 5EE 2 &/
(loss) forthe year
Deemed captal contbution
fiom a non-<ontoling HERRRL
shaehoder of e Growp's —~— HEAR
sibsidy (1o 32(0) (0) - - - = = s - - - 24081 24087

- - - - 87 (365) - (5565 (55937) 9636  (46301)

At 31 March 2025 R-3zR8Z3z1-8 14,451 354,993*  162,587* 4,853* 2,654* (7403)*  (77,640)* 1,051444* 1505939 373772 1879711

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — *  WWERHERBERGEEMBRARTNEE
HK$1,491,488,000 (2024: HK$1,547,425,000) in the % 81,491,488,0008 7L (= & — 14 4 :
consolidated statement of financial position. 1,547,425,000%8 7C) °



At 1 April 2023
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year:
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations
Reclassification adjustment
for a foreign operation
disposed of during
the year (note 31)
Change in fair value of an

equity investment designated

at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

Transfer of share option
Tesenve upon [apse of share
options (note 26)

At 31 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

GEEREER (8)
Year ended 31 March 2025
BE_Z_AF=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATERARS
Share Share Asset Eichange Non-
Issued ~ premium option  Contibuted ~revaluation  Fairvalue  tanslation Merger  Refained controlling Total
cptl  account  reseve  suplus  reseve  reseve  feseve reserve profts Totel  interests equity
B%f Rt BhE BN BEER  AVEE Ei af R FER i

Ba EER i g i i B8 1] il ait i ]
HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKS00D  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKS00O  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00
TEn  TEn  TEx  TEn  TEn  TER TR TRT  TAT  TEr TR TR

N-B-ZEMA-A 14451 354993 5068 162587 4853 2,205 2008 (77640) 1079622 1548147 331327 1879474
KEREA - - - - - - - - N4 R4 158 3499
KERAM2ENE/

(K8):

ARBNMIEEE

ELNEY

£8 - - - - - - (335 - N ) 61) (3415
REFRHE

EHEEZED

BRAEAR

(&31) - - - - - - (569) - - (569)  (371%5) (9487
ETARLTEMA

ALt 2ENE

HREREN

LYEESY - - - - - 362 - - - 362 - 36

KEERENE/
(BE4E - - - - - 362 (9,046) - 43 13729 8720 2451
REREENE
EREHE
Bl (Fisoe) - - (5089) - - - - - 5,068 - - -

R-F-E%
ZA=T-R 14451354993 - TGRS 48 26T (1038) (T7640) LI0TI03 1561876 340049 1901925
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FHELEEEEERLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GZERERER
Year ended 31 March 2025
BE-_ZT_AF=—A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(loss) before tax:
From continuing operations
From a discontinued operation

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Bank interest income

Dividend income from
equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Depreciation

Fair value gains on
equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, net

Fair value losses/(gains) on
investment properties, net

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Provision for impairment losses on
loan and interest receivables
and repossessed assets, net

Decrease in loan and interest receivables
Increase in lease receivables and amounts
due from security brokers
Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Increase/(decrease) in accruals,
other payables and deposits received
Increase in repossessed assets

Notes

Ff &£

REIH RERE
BREATER, (B18) -
REFELCEER
RE—EE
BRI R 10
BHTIIEEEL AT :
AR A
|ATH B WA
BATEESABREN
BRERE
BB A
nE 13
BATEESABREN
BEREZAFEBE
Wz - 58 5
REMEZATFEE
BB/ (&) F8 14
HEWBE AR MK E 10, 31
R E S R ) B A &
REEENNESR
BiE 38 17,20

BUERRFEZRD
JE YRR & R e 75
BrmaRZEM
BNFE  REREM
FEMER T 2
BRFEENABRZN
RERE 2D/ (Em)
JEEHFUR - Bt RN ERR K
Edze zEm/ Ond)
BEEELZM

2025 2024
—E_fF —E-NFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET
(43,352) 28,631
= 9,303

2 1
(16,363) (14,982)
(1,493) (185)
5,262 5,573
(4,140) (74)
69,400 (10,149)
= (9,834)
37,059 37,964
46,375 46,248
149,479 86,502
(4,057) (10,199)
(1,245) (1,681)
8,091 (15,301)
(3,258) 3,976
(46,627) (48,408)




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - ittt @ S B E B E R 2 7 119
Annual Report 2025 F 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
GERERER @E)

Year ended 31 March 2025
BE_ZT_AF=A=t+—HI-FE

2025 2024
—E-FHE —T-mEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TER FTET
Cash generated from operations REEBRMELEE 148,758 61,137
Interest received BUYF 8 16,363 14,982
Interest paid BERFE () (M
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBEBEMEE (2,437) (9.871)
Overseas tax paid BEH85MEE (169) (222)
Dividend income received from BlRBRAFEBRTA
equity investments at fair value BamRERSE
through profit or loss ZBREWA 1,493 185
Net cash flows from REEBMEL
operating activities REeREFHR 164,006 66,210
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBHZRERE
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BER
plant and equipment HEEE 13 (12) (102)
Subsequent expenditure on REMEN
an investment property BES 14 = (531)
Placement of non-pledged time deposits FAEARRERERHR
with original maturity of more than HB=A EER
three months when acquired EHEX (395,397) (574,672)
Withdrawal of non-pledged time deposits RO AR RE &R R
with original maturity of more than HB=EHZEER
three months when acquired EHER 542,384 400,121
Net proceeds from B D E A
disposal of a subsidiary S RIEEE 3] - 44,632
Net cash flows from/(used in) REESMB/ (B2
investing activities Rensg s 146,975 (130,552)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZHZRERE
Principal portion of lease payments MENRENTEHH 33(b) (13) (72)
Repayment of loan advanced from a EREAEENBAR
non-controlling shareholder of the FERAR AR
Group's subsidiary B2 ER = (47,736)
Net cash flows used in REEBMACHERE

financing activities R (13) (47,808)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

GZEHRERERG)
Year ended 31 March 2025

BE_Z_RF=A=+—"BLFE

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired
Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement
of financial position

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the

consolidated statement of cash flows

FHELEEEEERLA

Note
P &%

RERREE/YZ
#gm/ (Hd) RE
RENZRE R
ReEEY
NEEXEEH FE  FH

RERZRER
ReLEY

BeRkBLEENZ

EROW

Re RRTTER 22
BB R E Em R

PR=M@AZ

EEARTHER 22
T B R & B IR

BA=-@AZ

EEARTHER 22

FEMBRRERA
PR E &
e EED
BAK R Em AR
BA=MAHZ
BEERTHER 22

FeBReRERAMLA
RekReEEY

2025 2024
—E-RHE k==l 11 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
310,968 (112,150)
275,270 387,597
(26) (177)
586,212 275,270
30,307 90,846
555,905 184,424
95,994 242,981
682,206 518,251
(95,994) (242,981)
586,212 275,270
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries comprise money lending,
property investment and securities trading. During the
prior year, the Group ceased to engage in the provision

of chartering services of cruise ships.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. New Century Investment Pacific Limited is
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the directors, Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, which is beneficially and wholly
owned by a discretionary trust, is the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

Annual Report 2025 F 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 53R R P 5

31 March 2025
—E-RAF=A=+—H

AAREEESR
SHAEEEEBRAGEEBRE
A 2 BER AR - ANAQ A Z M
9% = p7 (i 72 Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

RAZIBXEBREREERLE

EE -HNBEARZEIBERBEEN
B -MERENBHFEE - NEFE -
AEEEFELLEERHEBHEERS -

ZN
7

KA 7 ANew Century Investment
Pacific Limited (/7 28 /& & 20 8% & 51l BX
SNz AR 2K B AR - New Century
Investment Pacific Limited/5Huang
Group (BVI) Limited(%%%ﬁﬁﬁi%i
MLz ReE) zEEE2ENRBL

EERR Hﬂ—lﬁzfgﬁﬁ%,a/\&iﬁ
TﬁﬁZHuang Group (BVI) LimitedJy 7k

N ZREER AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 3R R ML

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued
Name operations share capital
i
1 RemH EBRTRE
ETC Finance Limited Hong Kong  HK$700,000,000
SR BER DA &% 700,000,000% 7T
Gaintech Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2
MEREBERAT Bk 2ETT
New Century Group HK Singapore S$1
investment Pte. Ltd. N 17T
New Century Properties Hong Kong HK$2
Investments Limited B 28T
MEEMERERRAF
Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2
BMREBRAA &R 2BTT
Wise Century Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1
EHRERRARA Bk 187

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

RAREEER (&)

MEQRANER
ARRAEEZMBRARZFBTET

Percentage
of equity attributable Principal
to the Group activities
AEBEN
ERzESH TEXK
2025 2024

—E-RE —E-NE

60 60 Money lending
&
100 100 Property investment
ES 4
100 100 Property Investment
ESE
100 100 Property investment
ESE
100 100 Property investment
ES 4
100 100 Property investment
ES&

A ERBEEXEMBRARSHARRRE
SR

ERAIZARARMBERARIEZTRAR
HARBARFEXEAEAFZEIEAR
SEFEETZNMY - EFZAR - W5
HEMHBRARZHE  RESBNT
= o



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties, equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss and an
equity investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$") and all values are rounded to

the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2025. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

FHELEEEEETRAA
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B 53R R P 5

31 March 2025
—E-RAF=A=+—H

ERTEE
mEEE
Zliﬁﬁk#&%i'ﬁﬁﬁ%/%;\ﬁrﬁﬂi“‘\(f%
SRMAR) BH BB HRE
EH'JE AER(BEMATEMBRSE
R BESEN(TEB G ER])
N2E) REB(RAMGH) 2 BHERTE
Mmims - REREWE BRAFEEFTA
BRARERE RIEE R AFEER
AEMMEEK S REIRE TR A FE
Bt 4N N BRI IRIE LR A%
AlREL - BRIESINELAA - NEF ISR A
AT (BT I®R MESEELER
BT TIT -

B
HD—

B RE

e BREABERATRENE AT
(BRI EEDEBEEZE_ZT_1F=
A=+t—RIEFENMBHRE - WBAR
RIEARRAIBEE S RHERE %'JEI'JELET(
BEBLER) " EA5ERR2EY
®E 7B E B M A E R # B Wme &
sk ZzEREEm WHEBREIERY
WRETOEN(REAEBEAA
BENFEWIRE S NEEEEHHIR K’
M) HBZEFE WmE - BNES G -

o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER R

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the

date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

FHELEEEEERLA

2. BFHEEK(E)
2.1 B EE (&)

ERE(R)

—RME - HEAZBRORES T HRE
B - BEARREBLRNERET KRS
BRERORIBUEN  EFGEERLHE
BHWEETWRNAE AKEEEE
FEHRBEREMNER B

(@) EWERETHMZREFHEANA
[ %2 HF

(b) HibERZHEENEN &

(0 ANEBEHRRENBERRE -

B 8 B BR A B 1 B) 2 B A R HY
EHEMER - WHRA A ERRR
i) o B N B O AR B AN 5 B R SR
HzBEHESRe  TESGENBRF
HERBRL -

BalAtE2mRanSAXT D R
BRAEEERRHEA ARIEEERE
o BMEN RS BOHE RS ER R A
B AEEANLS AR ZEXZEBN
PEEENRAE #m WA FAXK
ReRENGRERERDEUENE -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as

an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the exchange
translation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities.

FHELEEEEETRAA
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B 53R R P 5

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

2 ECR (&)

fim B EL % ()

REEEE)

WMREFERISRBER LAtz 6 =
BREF-BXZHRAZ  AAKEE
EHAGERTDAEHRRET - 1
—RNBARIZEAEESELIREFHM
WE|EBHREERE  NEREHIIK

MRAEBRET HH B R R A Z S
B BRIEREHEEE (RERE) -
BE TR ERER RELFEE X
ERTARERENAFEERERD
MELZEARKRIEM -  NEB LA
EANEME2EEEBEREBY BEE
BB ABG  HREBEN AL
HiEAEEERNEEHEEXAE
P& EMER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER R

31 March 2025
—E-_RAF=A=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 2.2
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRS

Accounting Standards for the first time for the current

year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the 2020 Amendments")
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments")
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and HKFRS 7

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRS

Accounting Standards are described below:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease
liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to
ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of
use it retains. Since the Group has no sale and
leaseback transactions with variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate occurring
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
amendments did not have any impact on the

financial position or performance of the Group.

2R ER (&)
EUEFBRRKE
AEBERAKNFENPBIRER A ERK
RATRETNE BV HEREER S
8 -
BAMBREER E%ﬁ@*gl
F165ZEFT HEEE
BRGHEANR R  HRENRHEA
A H] FRHrH
(TZ2=2FEF))
BRGHEMNR R  HRIENIRHDRE
pALH] (T=ZF==F#7))

BRGHEANRTR AEBBELH
REERBRE
ERETH BT

N%ﬂ%%%%ﬁﬁiﬁ%@%ﬁﬁm
HE kP EE T XM

(@) BEAMBHRELERBFEI6H 2EF]
RETEF REATEHEERM
BRSGHEENHERERTEA
BV E SRk - AREIRE 7 — A AT
B H AR B B (50 F AR R e A el Uk
T ok B 18 o BN AR S B I WA FE A
BEEMBHRELENFEIHKE BT
EEEEATIRNE —HIEEK
FERAEMAERERNR 2 ERA
B2 5  BUEETEH A& B 2 B ik
KRB EEMEE o
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(b) The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for

©

classifying liabilities as current or non-current,
including what is meant by a right to defer
settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the
end of the reporting period. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement. The
amendments also clarify that a liability can be
settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if
a conversion option in a convertible liability is itself
accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification. The
2022 Amendments further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-
current. Additional disclosures are required for non-
current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions
of its liabilities as at 1 April 2023 and 2024 and
concluded that the classification of its liabilities as
current or non-current remained unchanged upon
initial application of the amendments. Accordingly,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments are
intended to assist users of financial statements in
understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk. As the Group does not
have supplier finance arrangements, the
amendments did not have any impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

2. BFEEK(E)
22 EREGTHERKE (#)

b) —F-TFEIEEXREEED

©

BARBDNIERBHER - BEM
BHEEBFENERN - ARKEERET
RBERREBEEFE - ABNSE
TEZERITERESENERNAA
BEERE - BRI MBEAREUE
AEMBREILSLE UEKREBRE
AEREENERERELAIIER
BRETAEARBBRT  BEOK
RATHERA S T ZZF &
RIE— R HERTHELEN
BENREY RAEZERAERESH
REZAINBBTHRESELE
BENRBIERDDE - BRI E
ko mMREEFETDEEEENR
MECRREBERSHHEI2EA
KRR HNERIBR - BIELD
RN FE -

REFEER_Z=Fk -2/
FOMA—HEHAHEBEZER
RigH  WREHEBEN RBIHIE
MBS ERVIIAERERREFT
o A BITHAEEH B
MK KR EERFE -

ER G ERETRREE B ®
FERIET7IHR ZER] BB MR R
BRI YBRAREHL
BHEHBIMEE - BRATHREEXR
SHEMB MBS HRRERE T RIE
FARELHFHERENAE RER
ERRBECRBNEE - HRA
SEYEHEEHRELH - SUER]
BAKEMBEHRRLBEAZE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER R

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) SR (@)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting 23 ERMEMRERZEBHMBERS
Standards Z Al Es A
The Group has not applied the following new and revised REERARRAMBHREREA T2 2
HKFRS Accounting Standards, that have been issued but i 1B 180 AR A RO T B T AR S T B BB
are not yet effective, in these financial statements. The MR EEAN G ER - REBBNE

Group intends to apply these new and revised HKFRS U A 2 R I ET B RT BB B

Accounting Standards, if applicable, when they become BmE LG ER (ER) -

effective.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in BEANBRERERE 8 JEFANEIRRE
Financial Statements®

HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public EAMBRERAT19% FLATHERF

WEL: RE
EHTAR BRI EZET

Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and Amendments to the Classification BRI BRRE LR R

HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial REABBREER
Instruments? EYE VA
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and Contracts Referencing Nature- EAUBRERNES FREEEAEFLE
HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity? REABBREER ENZE4
EYE VA

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets EANBRERERE 0% HEEZLERBERTE

HKAS 28 between an Investor and its RERGHERNE0Y AELLAZFHEE
Associate or Joint Venture* ZET HEZTE
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability' BEEEHENENR Rz A BL
2T
Annual Improvements to HKFRS ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, BRUFHEEA S BAMBREERIEIR
Accounting Standards - HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72 ER) 2 FEHE— ERVBREENETS -
Volume 11 Z1ff BANBREEAFF -

ERMHREEAF0%
REEGHEANETHRZ

il

RZZ-RAF-A-B&Z2&RAKZ

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January !

2025 FREBBER

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZBEZRE-—A—BxzERBZ
2026 FEHBER

: Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after E RZE-_+F—A—Bs2E&HBZ
1 January 2027 FEREHHEEK

R R BT TE 58 B AR R B B - (BRI ER AR

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available 4

for adoption

T 200 P 70 A 4 B 4 5 78 B 7 3 45 5 B
BEHERI M — S AR T -

Further information about those HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is described below.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (continued)

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have been
brought forward from HKAS 1 with limited changes,
HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements for presentation
within the statement of profit or loss, including specified
totals and subtotals. Entities are required to classify all
income and expenses within the statement of profit or
loss into one of the five categories: operating, investing,
financing, income taxes and discontinued operations and
to present two new defined subtotals. It also requires
disclosures about management-defined performance
measures in a single note and introduces enhanced
requirements on the grouping (aggregation and
disaggregation) and the location of information in both
the primary financial statements and the notes. Some
requirements previously included in HKAS 1 are moved
to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, which is renamed as HKAS 8
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements. As a
consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited, but
widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
and HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition,
there are minor consequential amendments to other
HKFRS Accounting Standards. HKFRS 18 and the
consequential amendments to other HKFRS Accounting
Standards are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2027 with earlier application permitted.
Retrospective application is required. The Group is
currently analysing the new requirements and assessing
the impact of HKFRS 18 on the presentation and

disclosure of the Group’s financial statements.
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B RS ER R

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (continued)

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply
reduced disclosure requirements while still applying the
recognition, measurement and presentation requirements
in other HKFRS Accounting Standards. To be eligible, at
the end of the reporting period, an entity must be a
subsidiary as defined in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, cannot have public accountability and must
have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that prepares
consolidated financial statements available for public use
which comply with HKFRS Accounting Standards. Earlier
application is permitted. As the Company is a listed
company, it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS 19.
Some of the Company's subsidiaries are considering the
application of HKFRS 19 in their specified financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to
the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments clarify the date on which a financial asset or
financial liability is derecognised and introduce an
accounting policy option to derecognise a financial
liability that is settled through an electronic payment
system before the settlement date if specified criteria are
met. The amendments clarify how to assess the
contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets
with environmental, social and governance and other
similar contingent features. Moreover, the amendments
clarify the requirements for classifying financial assets
with non-recourse features and contractually linked
instruments. The amendments also include additional
disclosures for investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial instruments with contingent
features. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively
with an adjustment to opening retained profits (or other
component of equity) at the initial application date. Prior
periods are not required to be restated and can only be
restated without the use of hindsight. Earlier application
of either all the amendments at the same time or only
the amendments related to the classification of financial
assets is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

2.3
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Contracts
Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity clarify the
application of the “own-use” requirements for in-scope
contracts and amend the designation requirements for a
hedged item in a cash flow hedging relationship for in-
scope contracts. The amendments also include additional
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
understand the effects these contracts have on an entity’s
financial performance and future cash flows. The
amendments relating to the own-use exception shall be
applied retrospectively. Prior periods are not required to
be restated and can only be restated without the use of
hindsight. The amendments relating to the hedge
accounting shall be applied prospectively to new hedging
relationships designated on or after the date of initial
application. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 shall be applied
at the same time. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
was removed by the HKICPA. However, the amendments

are available for adoption now.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial

statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards —
Volume 11 set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7
(and the accompanying Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to

the Group are as follows:
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting

Standards (continued)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The
amendments have updated certain wording in
paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs I1G1, 1G14
and 1G20B of the Guidance on implementing HKFRS
7 for the purpose of simplification or achieving
consistency with other paragraphs in the standard
and/or with the concepts and terminology used in
other standards. In addition, the amendments clarify
that the Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7 does
not necessarily illustrate all the requirements in the
referenced paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it create
additional requirements. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial

statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments
clarify that when a lessee has determined that a
lease liability has been extinguished in accordance
with HKFRS 9, the lessee is required to apply
paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise any
resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition, the
amendments have updated certain wording in
paragraph 5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of
HKFRS 9 to remove potential confusion. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting

Standards (continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described
in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just one example
of various relationships that might exist between the
investor and other parties acting as de facto agents
of the investor, which removes the inconsistency
with the requirement in paragraph B73 of HKFRS
10. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial

statements.

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments
replace the term “cost method” with “at cost” in
paragraph 37 of HKAS 7 following the prior deletion
of the definition of “cost method". Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of

cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

0)

(i)

(iii)

(V)

W)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or

fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and

location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates

them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis, with
the exception of motor vehicles which are calculated on
the reducing-balance basis, to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 4%
Leasehold improvements 33'/.%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 15%
Motor vehicles 20%
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the

year in which they arise.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the

year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property
and/or accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under "Right-of-use assets” for property held
as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use,
and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”

above.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated

useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 23 to 44 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful

life of the asset.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the

event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of car parking
spaces, office equipment and public space (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of

its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease term and is included in revenue in profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as

revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the

lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective

of the business model.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the

Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified

or impaired.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive

income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value

with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on the equity investments are also
recognised as revenue in profit or loss when the right of

payment has been established.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment occurs if there
is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

«  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

« the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could

be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in

calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,

as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's financial liabilities include accruals, other
payables and deposits received, lease liabilities, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company and a
loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the

Group's subsidiary.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other

payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortised
cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting

short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets represent credit-impaired loan and
interest receivables and their related reimbursable
expenses for which the sole and exclusive right and
privilege to hold, use, occupy and enjoy (including the
right to sell and rent) the collateral assets have been
acquired through court proceedings upon default of the
related loan borrowers. However, the Group does not
obtain ownership of the underlying collateral. Repossessed
assets are classified as financial assets at amortised cost
and subsequently measured at amortised cost less

provision for impairment under HKFRS 9.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is

presented in profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

«  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

« when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences; and

« in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the

practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses are recognised on changes in

fair value at the end of the reporting period.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources (continued)

Dividend income from equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). The
cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details
of which are given in note 26 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are

satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised

immediately.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of

the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group's employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting

fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared, because the Company's
memorandum of association and bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of the advance consideration.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Material accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the

transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange translation reserve, except to the extent that the
differences are attributable to non-controlling interests.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign

operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2025 was
HK$9,229,000 (2024: HK$9,140,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2025 was
HK$283,870,000 (2024: HK$283,936,000). Further
details are contained in note 24 to the financial

statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. FESTHE KA (F)

ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from

a variety of sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to

reflect those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and
discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts and
(when possible) by external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash

flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March
2025 was HK$485,560,000 (2024: HK$555,300,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, are given in note 14 to the financial

statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECL calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting

period.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers’ actual default in the
future. As at 31 March 2025, provision for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables amounted to
approximately HK$14,677,000 (2024: HK$16,978,000).
The information about the ECLs on the Group's loan and
interest receivables is disclosed in note 17 to the

financial statements.
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31 March 2025
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into

business units based on their businesses and has three

reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the money lending segment engages in the provision

of mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans;

(b) the property investment segment invests in prime

office space and commercial shops for their rental

income potential; and

(c) the securities trading segment engages in the trading

of marketable securities for short-term investment

purposes.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax from continuing
operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the
Group's profit/loss before tax from continuing operations
except that bank interest income, corporate income as
well as corporate expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, tax
recoverable, deferred tax assets, and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group

basis.

Segment liabilities exclude a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a

group basis.

Intersegment revenue are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at

the then prevailing market prices.
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4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEHHBER (K)
(continued)
Money lending Property investment Securities trading Total
B VES ¥ 2588 it
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Z8CEE CETCME ZRCRE CFCMF Z®CRF CRCMF ZBCRF CROME

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR Thn ThR Titn ThAn Titn Thn Titn

Segment revenue

ABRA

Revenue from external customers S EZE 2 A

Intersegment revenue
Other income

Total segment revenue
and other income

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment revenue

Total revenue and
other income from
continuing operations

Segment results

Recondiliation:

Bank interest income

Comorate and other
ungllocated income

Comorate and other
ungllocated expenses

Profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations

Segment assets

Reconciliation;

Comporate and other
unallocated assets

Total assets
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., BRESHER (R)
(continued)
Money lending Property investment Securities trading Total
VES ¥ 2588 it
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
“RCEE -T-RF CRCEE CT-PF CRCRF CECRF CRCEE CROPF
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TET TR Tin TEn T TR Thn
Segment liabilities AREE 3,245 6,001 4,094 4457 - - 7339 10458
Recondiliation: HE:
Comorate and other tERE
unallocated liabilities AOEREE 102,129 123,804
Totel ibiles AE8E 109468 134262
Other segment information ~~ £H2BEH
Depreciation il 3 27 - - - - 35 247
Fair value losses/(gains) on -~~~ K ENEZATER
investment propertes, net B/ bz 58 - - 69400 (10,49) - - 69400 (10149)
Falr value gains on BRATEEA
equiy investments BRMRERE,
at fair value through DYEREYE
profit or loss, net ] - - - - (4140) (74) (4140) (74)
Provision for impaiment losses ~ BAEF RAI 2 R
on loan and interest receivables  EEEENEEEE
and repossessed assets, net Bl FE 37,059 37,964 - - - - 37,059 37,964
Capital expenditure EyStng - 28 - 53] - - - 559
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to office * O EASHEEERAERERREDME
equipment and investment properties. HIRE °
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31 March 2025
—E-_RAF=A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEHWER ()
(continued)
Geographical information ih & & R
(a) Revenue from external customers and other (a) SNREPZ WA REMPA
income
2025 2024
—EC-HE —E_mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Hong Kong B 88,717 86,120
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong REE(TEEES) 2,560 2,613
Total revenue and other income WA K H A U A 4258 91,277 88,733
The revenue and other income information of il E TS E IR K E Ath Uy
continuing operations above is based on the ABRABEPHE RIS AER -

locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets (b) B EE

2025 2024
—E-HF T _mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Hong Kong B 468,947 553,878
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong KM (TEEEE) 196,860 197,200
Total non-current assets FEMEEELE 665,807 751,078
The non-current asset information of continuing PR E BN ERDEEE
operations above is based on the locations of the BUEEMERBAER  WIAE
assets and excludes an equity investment designated BEEREAFEEFAELMEE

at fair value through other comprehensive income Wes R ERE RELERIBEE -

and deferred tax assets.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

FHELEEEEETRAA
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Revenue represents interest income from mortgage loans

and unsecured personal loans, gross rental income from

investment properties, net fair value gains on equity

investments at fair value through profit or loss and

dividend income from equity investments at fair value

through profit or loss during the year.

An analysis of revenue and other income from continuing

operations is as follows:

Revenue
Interest income from mortgage loans
and unsecured personal loans
Gross rental income from
investment properties
Fair value gains on equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss,
net
Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Total

Other income

Bank interest income

Forfeiture of rental deposits from a tenant
Bad debt recovery

Others

Total

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

5. WAREAMBKA
WAERFERBERRERRLAE
FEOFMBWA  REMEZHS WAL
B RATEESABZOREREZ
NEEEFRE  UAREBRQAFEEFA
BRORERE ZBRSKA -
SEKEEBEENBAREMKRAZ
DT
2025 2024
—E-RE —E - OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
A
RIS E K &
FLANE BT S WA 69,716 72,744
KEWMEZES
N 14,914 15,288
BAFEEFABRRSN
BERE 2 AT EBE
e FE 4,140 74
BRATFEEFABEN
RiERE 2 IREBA 1,493 185
a5t 90,263 88,291
Hibp A
RITH B WA 16,363 14,982
RUBHEPHEESZS 565 -
b= gl 331 186
EHAh 118 266
a5t 17,377 15,434
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31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit/(loss) before tax from continuing

operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation
Auditor’s remuneration:

Audit services
Non-audit services

Total

Employee benefit expense

(including directors’ remuneration
in note 8):

Salaries and allowances

Pension scheme contributions*

Total

Lease payments not included in

the measurement of lease
liabilities

Foreign exchange differences, net
Direct operating expenses

(including repairs and
maintenance) arising from
rental-earning investment
properties

Fair value losses/(gains) on

investment properties, net

Provision for impairment losses

*

on loan and interest receivables
and repossessed assets, net

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by

the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of

contributions.

e

ZBED N 2 -
=B RS
FEZBURT

BER/MFAX
(BIEMEsZ
E=M2) -
Fra MoRRA
RKEE B R*

TEEEHE
BETEN
HENZHE

fENZ% - 55

MEIEEMEZ
HemELD
HERLERX
(BIEHE
MRE)

BREMEZNFEE
BiR (s) - FE
& U & 3R e A BUA B2

HEEEMRIE
EIERE - FER

6. BRBLATEA (H51R)
R WA RS R BLATE T (8

B) B, (GEA) ¢

2025 2024

—E-ERF —E-gF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FE T FET
13 5,262 5,573
1,780 1,900

750 470

2,530 2,370

21,599 21,629

1,030 1,034

22,629 22,663

13(c) 558 504
= 547

3,258 3,334
14 69,400 (10,149)
37,059 37,964

TEASEESBEEATAIEND K
SRR - LUBIEIR B B TR -
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FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is

as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

7. WERK
HESEEBELEOREKARINMT :

2025 2024
—E_RHE —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T

2 1

8. EERTNUREHEEMNS

() EEM=
BEBBHEXIMERAT (&
B ES EmRAI([ £
WAL - BABLRAKGH) E
383(1)(a) * (b) » (O BME &
(PRl (BRBEEZENRER) A0
E2ERBENAFEESHESOT ¢

2025 2024

—E_REF —E-ME

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAET

Fees we 600 575

Other emoluments: Hi < -

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EEMK

in kind BEWH = 8,898 8,412

Discretionary bonuses [E=ReAAN 1,047 1,245

Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIE R 497 484

Subtotal NEE 10,442 10,141

Total &t 11,042 10,716
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31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(i) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok ok $R B 5 A
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth A R i St A
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al & B &
Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung mEERE
Total CE

There were no other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during
the year (2024: Nil).

8. EERTUBESHEENE (K)

() EEM< (&)
() BUIFBTEE
RAFEXNTBILFAT

BEFRzHEESO
2025 2024
—E_REF —E-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#B T FET
150 150
150 150
150 150
150 125
600 575

RAFE  WEENBILIEH
TEEZHMME (ZT_MF:
&) -
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(ii) Executive directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Annual Report 2025 F 3
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BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

8. EERTUBESHEENE (K)

() E=M < (F)
(i) BiTEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
¢ =28 Birg
REWFZ BERA BHERGEN WeriE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHET FHT
2025 “Z-1F
Executive directors; HITES:
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BRERAE 1,869 216 104 2,189
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (ki 1917 224 107 2,248
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BREBLL 1,156 137 65 1,358
Ms. Lilian Ng BAELL 1,045 119 58 1,222
Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRIR BT 918 111 51 1,080
Mr. Yu Wai Man REN KA 1,417 180 80 1,677
Ms. Huang Si Teng BEaRLL 576 60 32 668
Total G 8,898 1,047 497 10,442
2024 —EToE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BEALE 1,879 277 108 2,264
Ms. Sio lon Kuan REHLL 1,927 289 111 2,327
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BRBLL 1,166 178 67 1,411
Ms. Lilian Ng BEFELT 1,050 150 60 1,260
Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRI B+ 896 140 52 1,088
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXAE 1,114 178 65 1,357
Ms. Huang Si Teng B 380 33 21 434
Total a5t 8,412 1,245 484 10,141

There was no arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

RAFE  WEEAESIED
BMEIRBERAETANE Z
L2 e

179



180

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Annual Report 2025 F 3§

FHELEEEEERLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE
31 March 2025
—ET-_RFE=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees during the year

included five (2024: five) executive directors, details

of whose remuneration are disclosed in note 8(a)

above.

9. INCOME TAX 9.
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2024: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2024: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2024:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5% (2024: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Current — Hong Kong BVE— &%
Charge for the year REEER
Underprovision in prior years MEFEEEBENR
Current — Elsewhere BN R — H fh 3 [
Charge for the year REEER
Overprovision in prior years BEFERREEE
Deferred (note 24) EFERIE (i 5E24)

Total tax charge for the year from

continuing operations

AT EHEEEET
SEE LR

EEROUESHFEEMNE (H)

b) ELBEFEEHS
RAZE ABSHESOER
f (B AR RTES
H S 7 HBE K L XA 38(a) M
W -

Frigm

RAEE BEMNEGHIREREEL
Z I R B m A #%16.50%0 (ZF =/
F:16.50) ZHEEE  HEREFE

HRAE  AEE—HHBERARAGE
I E R - 2Z M B2 R 52,000,000 7T

ZZ Z P94 : 2,000,000 L) K JE &R
TR A8 1%8.250% (= F — U4 : 8.25%)
BB R A R E R R A Bl IR

16.5% (ZZ Z P04 : 16.5%) AT & &L
B o HoAth 3[R 2 F& AR T8 M BB T AR IR
AEBEEBAELEER CBRITHE

DE—O

2025 2024
—E_EHF —E o gF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
8,672 5,606

14 —

271 280

(112) —
(6,174) (2,943)
2,671 2,943
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BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

INCOME TAX (continued) 9. Fi8% (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/ RAXRRREABHIWNBARIEER,
(loss) before tax at the statutory tax rates for the AEEZREBEBER ZEEMEFHEZ
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its BRBARF (BB BERZHERX
subsidiaries are domiciled and/or operate to the tax BIRERMEAE 2 HIERZ 2 B -
expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of URBEBRARE (EEHMEK) HERH
the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the RKZHEBRWAT :
effective tax rates, are as follows:
2025
—EB-HE
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
BE bt @ &t
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TER TER TET

Profit/(loss) before BEORER

tax from continuing EEMBRBA

operations w¥l/ (E8) (45,627) 2,275 (43,352)
Tax at the statutory tax rate  BETEREHE 2 HA (7,529) 16.5 387 17.0 (7,142) 16.5
Lower tax rates enacted by Ak Bz 7 )

local authority RERE (165) 0.3 (101) (4.4) (266) 0.6
Income not subject to tax ~ BAEH YA (2914) 6.4 = S (2914) 6.7
Adjustments in respect of ¥ 3B HifS 2

current tax of previous B EA T IE A

periods HAE 14 - (112) (4.9 (98) 0.2
Expenses not deductible a1z

for tax Bk 11,608 (25.4) - - 11,608 (26.8)
Tax losses not recognised KR LK ER 1,535 (3.4) - - 1,535 (3.5)
Others At (37) 0.1 (15) 0.7) (52) 0.1
Tax charge at the Group's ~ RASBERHZ

effective rate and tax FEZHEERR

charge from continuing ~ REBRRZHEZ

operations at the BEAEEH

effective tax rate EENHEER 2,512 (5.5) 159 7.0 2,671 (6.2)
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31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

9. INCOME TAX (continued) 9. 8% (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/ RAXRARREABHHBRREER,
(loss) before tax at the statutory tax rates for the REEZREBEBER ZEEMEFHELZ
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its BRBARF, (BB BERZHERX
subsidiaries are domiciled and/or operate to the tax B BRI EFE 2 HIER S 2 HiR
expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of UERERRE (AEEHREK) BERM
the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the RZHEBEWAT : (B)

effective tax rates, are as follows: (continued)

2024
—T-mEF
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
B AR Ch
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THT THT TET
Profit before tax from BEMEXBELR
continuing operations BBt A& 7 3,168 25,463 28,631
Profit before tax from a —BERIEERE
discontinued operation EEHRTAEN 9,303 - 9,303
Total Ch 12,471 25,463 37,934
Tax at the statutory tax rate  EEHE:E 2 #HE 2,058 16.5 4,329 17.0 6,387 16.8
Lower tax rates enacted by Ak Bz &)
local authority BEM= (165) (13) (101) (0.4) (266) 0.7)
Income not subject to tax  BERT KA (4,299) (34.5) (3,958) (15.5) (8,257) (21.7)
Expenses not deductible ~ Fal#1f 2
for tax % 2,707 21.7 - - 2,707 7.1
Tax losses not recognised ~ KHERHKEE 2,210 17.7 - - 2,210 5.8
Others Eth 152 13 10 - 162 05
Tax charge at the Group's ~ BRASEERHE
effective rate AR HEER 2,663 214 280 1.1 2,943 7.8

Tax charge from continuing REBRHEHE
operations at the BEEEER
effective tax rate EENREER 2,663 84.1 280 1.1 2,943 10.3
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In March 2023, the directors decided to cease its cruise
ship charter service business and dispose of Kingston
Maritime Limited (“KML"), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which was solely engaged in
cruise ship charter services. Upon completion of the
disposal of KML on 28 April 2023, the Group had ceased
its cruise ship charter service business. As at 31 March
2023, the cruise ship charter service business was
classified as a discontinued operation (the "Discontinued
Operation”) and was no longer included as an operating
segment since the year ended 31 March 2023.

The results of the Discontinued Operation during the year
ended 31 March 2024 were presented below:

2024
—T-F
HK$'000
FHET

Revenue WA 705
Administrative and operating expenses TR REERY (1,236)
Loss for the year from the RFEFELIEEE

Discontinued Operation XBEEMERE (531)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEME QAW

(note 31) (FH5E31) 9,834
Profit for the year from the REFDRIEEE

Discontinued Operation EEE = A 9,303
Attributable to: AT AT

Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZ 2SN 5,442

Non-controlling interest FEERER 3,861
Total =H 9,303

Annual Report 2025 F 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 53R R P 5

31 March 2025
—E-RAF=A=+—H

10. RIS ETE

MRZZEZ=F=F EFRERILER
HHERKES  LEEARAZ—M
fE# JE 2 & W /8 2 AlKingston Maritime
Limited (KML]) » &2 R1E ¢ FH i H
ER® - EKMLZ HEFER T =4
MAZ+NBEKE  AEEEEIEE
HmHBERBEL RZT_=F=FH
=+—H BHESERBEBESER
—HERIEREEXB(ERERER
%) BB E_T_=F=A=+—
HIEFERTHI A BLEEDE -

BHE-_Z-_WNF=ZA=1+—HILFE -
BRI EEFHEENNRAT ¢
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31 March 2025
—E-_RAF=A=+—H

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 10. ERIEREE XK (&)
The net cash flow incurred by the Discontinued BHE_T_NF=A=+—HILFE
Operation during the year ended 31 March 2024 was as ERIEREXBEFNR S REFAN
follows: I
2024
—T_mEF
HK$'000
FHET
Operating activities and net cash outflow REFEPRF ML TR (23)
2024
—E-mEF
Earnings per share: BRARM :
Basic, from the Discontinued Operation AR REERIEEEER HK0.09 centi& 1l
Diluted, from the Discontinued Operation e REDKRILEREER HK0.09 cent& 1l
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share BE_Z_HNF=A=+—HILFE -
from the Discontinued Operation during the year ended REERIEREEBNERERNRE S
31 March 2024 was based on: BNTRATRIEFTE -
2024
—E_mEF
Profit attributable to ordinary RARERBRKREREA
equity holders of the Company FEIERB B IEEE
from the Discontinued Operation E oyl HK$5,442,0007% 7T
Number of ordinary shares in issue RAFEFETRERNR
during the year, used in the basic and BERMNSERZ
diluted earnings per share calculation EETEBEREAE
(note 12) (fF5E12) 5,780,368,705
11. DIVIDEND 1. KR
The directors do not recommend the payment of any EETREENBZEZE_ZE_0F=A
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil). =t—RBLEFRERNEAMEE (ZF

—POEF ) o
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company,
and the number of ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705
(2024: 5,780,368,705) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/
(loss) per share amounts presented for the years ended
31 March 2025 and 2024 in respect of a dilution as the
impact of the share options outstanding had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts presented.

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on:

FHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2025 F 3
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12.

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—E-RAF=A=+—H

EAREBERBRESE AEML
BRERN (&HE)
BREXNRFN(&EB) 2BHERRBARQ
AT ARREREAREAFEE R
(BB ERAFEERITEBREE
5,780,368,705K& (=& = 4 4 :
5,780,368,7050% ) st & -

BHE-_Z_AFEK=-ZT_WMF=H
=+—HIEFE  WEBEELE R
BREAXRF,(EB) SB\IELAE -
REBRRITE < BREET MO TR
EREFR/(BR) 2EEETREF

SRERRF, (FR) HELTEE
S

2025 2024
—B-RHEF —ZT-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTHET
Earnings/(loss) 2R (B8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity FEESREALEEAF],
holders of the Company, used in the (BB RBEAZARF
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) TimARAR RS B AT
per share calculation: w1
From continuing operations REFERERED (55,659) 16,971
From the Discontinued Operation BRI EER - 5,442
Total &t (55,659) 22,413
2025 2024
S —TmEF
Shares g
Number of ordinary shares in issue during EAZIKEE%M’_HX%ZF&
the year, used in the basic and diluted SBAF /(FETE ) (A
earnings/(loss) per share calculation ZE%‘ B EE 5,780,368,705  5,780,368,705
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B F5 3R R ML

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13. W% -BEERREBEURBEES R

LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
REEE fEhEE
Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land  Buildings Total  Buildings improvements ~ equipment ~ vehicles Total Total
HENE  HER-%E
BELH 52 At 22 &8 it RE /it i
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKFO0O  HKS000  HKS000
Thn Tin Thrn Thn Tin Tirn Thrn Thn Tin
31 March 2025 CECREZAZT-R
At 1 Apiil 2024: RZFZRERA-R:
Cost KK 138,343 = 138,343 10,875 5,443 4,650 2,125 23,093 161,436
Accumulated depreciation giENE (33,023) - (3300 (3,652) (5,443) (4.267) (1622)  (14984)  (48,007)
Net carying amount BEFE 105,320 = 105,320 1223 = 383 503 8,109 113429

At 1 April 2024, net of RZEZmEMA-B:

accumulated depreciation Nk2ENE 105,320 - 105,320 7,223 - 383 503 8,109 113,429
Additions hE - 169 169 - - 12 - 12 181
Depreciation provided MEEZ

during the year AERRE (4,647) (14 (4661) (336) - (165) (100) (601)  (5262)

At 31 March 2025, net of i

accumulated depreciation ZR=t-R"
Nk2ENE 100673 155 100828 6,887 - 230 403 750 108348
At 31 March 2025 RZE-RE=A=1-H:
Cost KA 138,343 169 138,512 10,875 5,443 4617 2,125 23,060 161,572
Accumulated depreciaion  ZEE (37,670) (14 (37,689) (3988) (5443) (4387) (1722)  (15540)  (53,224)

Net canying amount ERFH 100,673 155 100,828 6,887 - 230 403 7520 108,348
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31 March 2025
—E-_RFE=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13.M%¥E -BEERREBEURBEESR

LIABILITIES (continued) (#&)
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
ERERE FahEE
Fumiture,
Leasehold Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
lnd  Buldings Total  Buidings improvements  equipment  vehicles Total Total
BENE  GA KB
BELH g7 it g £E &L it ai At

HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSOO  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKS000
thr TR TR TR TR TEn  TEn  TAn  TEn

31 March 2024 “E-PMEZA=1-H

A1 Apil 2003 R-E-ZEmA-R:
Cost i 138,343 358 138,701 10,875 5443 4548 2,125 291 161,692
Accumulated depreciation 2iENE (28378) (289)  (28,667) (3317) (5443) (3870) (1495) (14125 (4279
Net canying amount FRER 109,965 69 110,034 7558 - 678 630 8,866 118,900

At 1 April 2023, net of RZEZZ%¥0A-R-

accumulated depreciation NE2ERE 109,965 69 110,034 7558 - 678 630 8,866 118,900
Additions AE - - - - - 102 - 102 102
Depreciation provided MEEEY

during the yeer FERE (4645) (69 (@719 (335) - (397) (127) 69  (557)

At 31 March 2024, net of RZE-mE=f=1-RB-

accumulated depreciation ThEERE 105,320 - 105,320 7223 - 383 503 8,109 113,429

At 31 March 2024: WZZZRE=A=1-R:

Cost B 138,343 - 138,343 10,875 5443 4,650 2,125 23,093 161,436
Accumulated depreciation 2B E (35,023) - (330) (5,652) (5,443) (4267) (1622) (14984 (48,007)
Net canying amount BAEFE 105320 - 105,320 1223 - 383 503 8,109 113429

Notes: B sE -

(i) The Group's right of use of leasehold land represents () AEBRELHWERELSENHE
prepaid lease payments. The leasehold land, together with NpE -HETHEREAENEFTR
the owned buildings, is held for own use. The leasehold BEER HELinihBHEERES -
land is held on medium-term leases expiring between May HR -_Z=+FARE_FTLEF
2037 and December 2055. t - AZMEER -

(i) The Group leases properties used in its operations. Leases (i) AKEEEHBMXEHLZETER - %
for these assets are negotiated for terms ranging from two SEERERENTHERAME=F -
to three years with no extension or termination options and TEEMSKRIEERE RAEEN

all the lease payments are fixed. HEE REE °
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31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13. W% -BEERREBEURBEES R

LIABILITIES (continued)

At 31 March 2025, the land and buildings in Hong Kong
with net carrying amount of HK$103,983,000 (2024:
HK$108,681,000) were pledged to secure a banking
facility granted to the Group (note 29) which was not
utilised as at 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land
and buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leasehold land with
lease periods of 23 to 44 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases.

Leases of properties generally have lease terms between
two to three years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

As at 1 April 2023 RZZEZ=FMHA—H
Depreciation charge ~ &£

As at 31 March 2024 RZ-T-F=A=+—H
and 1 April 2024 M Z_ZEZ_NFMA—H

Addition NE

Depreciation charge ~ T E &M

As at 31 March 2025 R=-ZE-_HFE=HA=+-—H

(&)

MR_ZE-_R&E=ZA=+—8B EEFH
£103,983,0008 0 (Z T — 4 £ :
108,681,000 ) < & /& T REF
EEER URBASEEER ZHRTH
& (Mi#29) ZeBER-ZTE-_RAF=
A=+—BXESHH(ZT_WF &) -

AEBEEREEA
AEEREEETERANTE LI RE
FHERI THEAN RRBHEEL
M ARELEXN—FRBMNKRIEF
BHE M R23E44F  BEZE i
HEMGER - BABENR -

MENHER -—RABBME=F - —K
mE - AEEERAEELINGEM D
HHEEETEX AR -

(@) ERHBEEE
RAFE  NEEEREEENK

HeBEME@EEZSHWT :
Leasehold

land Buildings Total
HELH gF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
109,965 69 110,034
(4,645) (69) (4,714)
105,320 - 105,320
- 169 169
(4,647) (14) (4,661)

100,673 155 100,828
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BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

13X -BERRBURBEESE
(&)
AEBEREEA ()
(b) HEERE

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

RAFE HEABHNEREASER
BRZgesmT

Lease liabilities

HEAE
2025 2024
—E-RHF —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Carrying amount at beginning of year  REFIHEET 4 5 = 72
New lease Mg 169 -
Accretion of interest recognised 7R 2 W R A
during the year FI2 3% 0 2 1
Payments (NN (15) (73)
Carrying amount at end of year RELNEREEHE 156 -
Analysed into: DR
Current portion mENER 7 83 -
Non-current portion FERBE D 73 -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed

in note 37 to the financial statements.
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—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13.
LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amount recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

ME - BERREUAREESE

(#&)

AEBERRBEA (H)

© REEHBRAERNEH
o

2025 2024

—E-REF —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Interest on lease liabilities HERBBNHNE 2 1

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets £ FH#EEENITE E 4,661 4714
Expense relating to short-term leases HEEHMEERENRMX

(included in administrative and (BREETER R
operating expenses) KEREZA) 558 504
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 7E Bz N IER K 2 ¢ 58 5,221 5219
The Group as a lessor AEBEFESHEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14)
comprising five commercial properties in Hong Kong and
one commercial property in Singapore under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was HK$14,914,000
(2024: HK$15,288,000), details of which are included in

note 5 to the financial statements.

AEERBEEHERHBERENME
(FF314) (BREURBEENAIBEED
EURMRIAMEN —BEEYE) B
H-HERRKR—BRERKBEP ZNREF
© 0 W E AR & B &) T35 48050 7E B
AEBEEE  MNAFE  AEBEERNHE
WA E14,914,0008 70 (T W4 -
15,288,000/ 7T) * BB F 5 &# N M %
RERMTFHSA o
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

At 31 March 2025 and 2024, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods

under operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

—FRA
—FREMFA
MERE=FRN

Within one year
After one year but within two years

After two years but within three years

Total A5

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
At 31 March 2025, the Group's investment properties

consist of five (2024: five) commercial properties in
Hong Kong and one (2024: one) commercial property in
Singapore. The Group’s investment properties were
revalued on 31 March 2025 based on valuations
performed by Knight Frank Petty Limited and PREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate balance
of HK$485,560,000 (2024: HK$555,300,000). Each
year, the Group's executive directors decide to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's executive directors have discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuations are performed

for interim and annual financial reporting respectively.

13.

14

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

NE BERKBURBEEAE
(%)

AEBEEREBEA (E)
RZE-_AFR-ZT-_MF=A=+—
H AEBEREBEEEBEPTIVALER
B AR SR EA R B W ) R AT R A & A R
wm

2025 2024
—E_HE —EopOE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH& T FET
10,874 10,973
3,869 6,189
1,054 1,615
15,797 18,777

. REY=

WZE-_RAF=A=+—0 A£EH
REVELFERBE(ZT_WF : AH)
UREBZEEMER —B(ZE XN
F:—H)URFMEZEAEDE - R
ZTE-RF=A=1T—H FEEBEHE
BEMEDBBEHBIEEES ERGERD
A9y B £ RD 1T A R A B RPREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd.
#1789 B & L & 42 18485,560,00078
7T (ZZ Z M : 555,300,000/ 7T) °
BF AEBRTEFARAETEZEW—H
SNEHEMBERSEY XN
B mERUDETISHE B2 B
VUMHERREEFERKE - KEEHRTT
EFHEGEMD RISt R 2 FHBR
TEFHETHERTHEERRKRLEE
ERMIR -
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—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties

under operating leases, further summary details of which

are included in note 13 to the financial statements.

Further details of the Group's investment properties are

included on pages 263 and 264.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Recurring fair value

measurement for:

2025

Commercial properties

2024

Commercial properties

FEMRT

EEHE

—E-HE
[EEXZES

—EComE
EENE

14. REY % (&)

BELKLHE REWEDATE=
B EBE—SPHMEBABIRNTBERE
BaE13, o

AEBRENMEZ2E - FTHFBHANE
2632648 -

AR EEERX
TRETAEEREMEN R FEER

BEX:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZBE=Z+-BAFEEFERRA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R B Eb) BEARRT
M5 RE HEBAE BEEnAE
(F—BX) (BZBR) (B=ZBR) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET THET
= = 485,560 485,560
- - 555,300 555,300

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2024: Nil).

RAFEE BEEE-BARE_EX
ZHEBBREBEEE -_EREALEL
ANFEEFE(ZTMF : &) o
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Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Addition (from subsequent expenditure)

Net gains/(losses) from fair value
adjustments credited/(charged) to
profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at end of year

RENHRESER

REORAGET )

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

14. REY % (&)

[V EEEBEX(A)
PERAFEEBRAZE=ZERNIF
EBEAENHE:

Commercial properties

FEEEAEA () 8

NFEBEFHEZ
s (B1R)
BE 5 58 B

RELRHRE SR

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and

EMEME

2025 2024
—E_REF —E-ME
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
555,300 547,700

- 531

(69,400) 10,149
(340) (3,080)
485,560 555,300

AT AR EYEAEMRAOMBER

the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation

techniques

fEERM

Commercial Direct comparison
properties approach method
[EEZ/ES BERLEBE

Income capitalisation
approach method
LN - (7

Significant
unobservable inputs

ERTUBRBAE

Market price per square foot
BEHRMIBER

Market rent per square foot
BFHRMEHE
Capitalisation rate

B R

MEkEE@HAENHRE -
Range
& E

2025 2024

—E_RE — T4
HK$12,000 to HK$13,400 to
HK$33,061 HK$37,802

12,0007 T & 13,4008 L%
33,0618 T 37,8028 7T

HK$228 to HK$256
2287 JT 22567 T
3.25% to 3.50%
3.25%%3.50%

HK$250 to HK$340
2508 L E 3404 T
2.75% to 3.00%
2.75%%3.00%
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. BEW (R)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The direct comparison approach method provides the
market value of an expropriated property by comparing it
to values obtained in the open market of similar
properties. It follows three basic steps in arriving at the
value of the properties, including identifying the highest
and best use of the property; identifying similar
properties that have been previously sold (the
“Comparable Sales”); and adjusting the value of the

Comparable Sales.

The key input was the market price per square foot,
where a significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair

value of the investment properties.

The fair value determined by the income capitalisation
approach method is the sum of the term value and the
reversionary value by discounting the contracted annual
rent at the capitalisation rate over the existing lease
period; and the sum of the average unit market rent at

the capitalisation rate after the existing lease period.

The key inputs were the market rent per square foot and
the capitalisation rate, where a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the

investment properties.

AFEEEEX(E)
BEELBEBBLEEEQNRAMISISE
UmEHEEMRLZI MM ENTHE
B HEEEEYEEBERKBE=EERX
TR BREBEIAMENZARKERSR
BREAMEEENEUDE (AR
HED  REFHEBHEENEBEELS

%‘go

FEHABABEFTRMIGER - mH
B AEEZ N SR eERIEEWERN
FEEXEBE MR -

MBABEROEEEN R FEBE/AE
A ERENFESBBERBAEY
FROMAEEEREREENEM &
REHERRNFOEUMSHEEE
AL R @A -

TZHAERBFAIRTBEERENR
e - M5 BEBABE M, R
SEPREMELX T EBEAEE M,
Do PARE AL e R BB AR N, R
L EERREMERTEERNERD
=P

\\

o

—+—
i[5 9

=]
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EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

15. EEAR LAY EEAHMER
WENRERE

2025 2024
—E_RHE —E &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Equity investment designated EEREAFLEETA
at fair value through other Hitb 2 K 2= 1
comprehensive income BRERE
Unlisted equity investment, BRAFEERN
at fair value JEEMRERE 3,434 3,347

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the

Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group did
not receive any dividend (2024: Nil) from its unlisted

equity investment.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments TE A FRIE

Deposits and other receivables B R HEAMEKER
Total CE

Less: Non-current portion W FERENE D

ok

Current portion MENEB D

R ED NA MBI EE /A
FEEFARCEZEKD  RESAE
ERSERREMNIEEBREE -

BE_T_RAF=-A=1+—HULEFE"
AR E A H IE B AR IR B EUE

AR E(ZE-Y4E : M) o

16. AR - REREMWERERR

2025 2024
—E-RE —E-puE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FE T

2,165 1,958

b7 8,281 7,244
10,446 9,202

(453) (445)

9,993 8,757
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16.

17.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent
professional and other expenses reimbursable from
borrowers, as well as interest receivables for time
deposits at banks. Where applicable, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss
record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions, as appropriate.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2025 and

2024, the loss allowances were assessed to be minimal.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Loan and interest receivables EWEREF S
Less: Provision for impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables

Loan and interest receivables,
BNk E
A EREN AL D

net of provision

Less: Non-current portion

ok

Current portion B

FEM B SR A S

FHELEEEEERLA

16.

17.

B YR R R
B R 8 18 B

ANRE BEREMERERER
(&)

e MEMEBKEREZRARMERA
HENBEXERAREMASN - ARRTT
ERERORENE - ER AKH
REREAR2EAREENELBRA
REABRRRETREIN - BEX
SEH AR - ARBRE IR K R KE
AARTER (EE) -

FiEBRAEENeREEDERE
3 HA NI 8 6 R 5K IE Tk 80 B B TE A0 SR ) B
WER R E_AFR_T_NF=
A=+—H EBEBEBRIEHERTIK -

EWRERKRAE
2025 2024
—E_REF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHETT
592,015 741,494
(14,677) (16,978)
577,338 724,516
(71,446) (81,904)
505,892 642,612




New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - it R S B & B B R 2 A

17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group's loan and interest receivables, which arose
from the money lending business of providing mortgage
loans and unsecured personal loans in Hong Kong, are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for loan and interest receivables of HK$10,339,000
(2024: HK$11,577,000) as at 31 March 2025, which are
unsecured, interest-bearing and repayable with fixed
terms agreed with customers, all loan and interest
receivables are secured by collateral provided by
customers, interest-bearing and repayable with fixed
terms agreed with the customers. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting dates is
the carrying value of the loan and interest receivables

mentioned above.

The movements in the provision for impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables are as follows:

Annual Report 2025 F 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 53R R P 5

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

17. ERERKRAE (&)

AEENRKERMMNETIRENERE
REZIBERNEERLAERZHE
B UABTREEEN -

R-—ZZTE-_FEHE=ZA=Z+—8" K
10,339,000 T (Z T =M & :
11,577,000% 7T) B9 E W E K & F & T)
| SR RIREE PR E R i E B
BAERIN  FTERKE R KRS H
EPRHMERMEER 58 RIRE
EFHENETHEANER E5RE
HE®MEERRE=RAR A LMEKE
HEFEEOREE -

FEWEREFNERREEBEREZEHN
I

2025 2024

—EB-REF —E-mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

At beginning of year RFH) 16,978 4,573
Provision for impairment losses on loan FEWE R F ER R E

and interest receivables, net EIEEE  F8 38,153 25,553
Transfer to provision for impairment EREEEEAEMNAE

losses on repossessed assets (note 20) e (M15E20) (40,454) (13,148)

At end of year NG S 14,677 16,978
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31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. ERER R A E (&)

As at 31 March 2025, loan and interest receivables of
HK$7,345,000 (2024: HK$6,622,000) were past due.
Except for overdue unsecured personal loan and interest
receivables of HK$654,000 (2024: HK$811,000) with no
collateral, the overdue balances of HK$6,691,000 (2024:
HK$5,811,000) were mortgage loans and were related to

a number of third-party customers.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there was a
provision for impairment losses of HK$38,984,000
(2024: HK$25,771,000) and a reversal of impairment
losses of HK$831,000 (2024: HK$218,000) for
mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans,

respectively.

R-_ZE-_RAFEF=A=+—H ' 28aHHz
fERE K F B B7,345,0008 T (= F
Z P4 ¢ 6,622,000 7T) © K FEUE K
AR AE R K 26540008 T (ZF
Z VU4 811,000/ 7T) @ HASN - @ B 4
#:6,691,0008 T (=& = I £ :
5,811,000 7T) BIRIBER Rt T H %
BE=ZAEPEMR-

HE-_T-_AF=-A=+—HLEFE "
DRBERBER K EEPLAE RS
{E /&5 18 # 1#38,984,0008 7L (ZZ =Y
% : 25,771,0005% 7T) K F B & 18 # [
831,000/ 7t (= Z — PU4F : 218,000/

JL) °
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31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment

losses on loan and interest receivables are as follows:

As at 1 April 2023
Loans recovered or repaid during the year
Transfer to lifetime ECLs
not credit-impaired
(Stage 2)
Transfer to lifetime ECLs
credit-impaired
(Stage 3)
Total transfers between stages
Impact on ECLs exposures
transferred between stages
during the year
Movements due to changes in credit risk
New loans originated

Transfer to provision for impairment
losses on repossessed assets

As at 31 March 2024 and
1 April 2024
Loans recovered or repaid during the year
Transfer to 12-month ECLs
not credit-impaired
(Stage 1)
Transfer to lifetime ECLs
not credit-impaired
(Stage 2)
Transfer to lifetime ECLs
credit-impaired
(Stage 3)
Total transfers between stages
Impact on ECLs exposures
transferred between stages
during the year
Movements due to changes in credit risk

New loans originated

Transfer to provision for impairment
losses on repossessed assets

As at 31 March 2025

R-_E-_=FMA—H
WAFEEREHERBENER
BRERATERES
EREX(RERAE)
(=)
BRERATERES
EREX(EERRE)
(F=K8)
BEzRER AR
RAFER R ORBE 2
MERHBEREREX
iof2
REERBKE mERME
REMER

BREABREEMRE
BEREE

R-ZE-_EF=A=+—H
k=Z-MWEMA—H

WAFEEREHERBENER

BEE1DEAES
ERBX(KERRE)
(F—K&)

ERERERERES
EREX(RERHNE)
(B=fEE)

ERERETERES
EREX(BEERRE)
(F=BE)

e v MR EE

RAEER R OB 2
MEREEREREL
mEe

REERBKE mMERMNE

REFMER

ERTHEEENRE
BiERE
R-ZE-Z§=HA=+-H

17. ERERKRAE (&)

AEBEREWE R R SR EREEE

ZEBHmT :

Stage 1 Stage2  Stage 3 Total
F-ER F-ER Z=ER &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT TET TET TET
951 37 3,585 4573
(296) - (383) (679)
(73) 73 - -
(110) (38) 148 -
(183) 35 148 -
98 1,080 22,705 23,883

159 1,017 917 2,093
256 - - 256
985 2,169 26,972 30,126
- - (13,148)  (13,148)

985 2,169 13,824 16,978
(249) - (678) (927)
121 (121) - -
(13) 13 - -
(141)  (1,943) 2,084 -
(33)  (2,051) 2,084 -
(717) 247 34,146 34316
4,045 348 52 4,445
319 = = 319
4,990 713 49,428 55,131
- - (40454)  (40,454)
4,990 713 8,974 14,677
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17. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. ERERKRFE (F)

For loan and interest receivables that are not credit-
impaired and without a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition (“Stage 1"), ECLs are measured at
an amount equal to the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
results from default events possible within the next 12
months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed
to be credit-impaired, the ECLs are measured based on
lifetime ECLs. In general, when loan receivables or their
related instalments are overdue by 30 days, there is a
significant increase in credit risk. As at 31 March 2025,
provisions of HK$4,990,000 (2024: HK$985,000) and
HK$713,000 (2024: HK$2,169,000) were made under
Stage 1 and Stage 2 respectively based on assessment
from the ECL model.

In general, loan and interest receivables are considered in
default when the loan and interest receivables or their
related instalments are overdue by 90 days (“Stage 3").
As at 31 March 2025, loan and interest receivables with
an aggregate amount of HK$120,534,000 (2024:
HK$95,787,000) were in default under Stage 3 lifetime
ECLs and a provision of HK$8,974,000 (2024:
HK$13,824,000) was made.

HEERBBEVBEBERERBEE MK
TRERARENEERERRME (TF
—BEDME  HHRERBXRIREE
REEGFERBREABRPEBATE
RARRI12ME A A 3R 8 E 4 F 45 3B
DH eI E - WEBANIEERR S
VmEREC BB M ((EZMER]) -
BEREEECERRE  BHRERE
KN RBEEFEREHERBRGE -
—MmE EEKERXEBBRN D H
3@ #3008 - Bl BER K E 78 & 18
m -RZFE_RAF=A=+—8B " RE
TBEIERBREXE  EE—BRE
8 & R 9 Rl 1E B 8 54,990,000% T
(ZZZ_MWMF 985,000 ) &
713,000/ 7T (=& Z 0 £ : 2,169,000
BIT) °

—RMmE  BRERRFESEMERED
S HEIE a0 ([ = E]) - &
WERKF SR GHBEERLL - RZF
“THE=ZRA=+T—RH #L28AE
120,534,000 7t (=& — /0 4 -
95,787,000/ 7T) Z BRI E R KA E B
BAMBAZ=REREEFEBESRE
8%k - I 1F B # #8,974,000/8 7T
(ZZ VY4 : 13,824,000 7T) °
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LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)
A maturity profile of the loan and interest receivables as
at the end of each reporting period, based on the

maturity date, net of provision, is as follows:

FHELEEFTEERQA
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STATEMENTS

BA 5 3R R P 5E
31 March 2025

—F_AF=A=F—8H

17. ERERKRAE (&)
REREHREKE R RN ERIZD B
B (EMERERE) 22RO T

2025 2024

—E_EHF —EomF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET

Current BN HA 505,892 642,612

Over one year and within five years —FUAERAFLZA 29,930 37,684

Over five years AFE 41,516 44,220

Total =X 577,338 724,516
LEASE RECEIVABLES 18. ERFEE R

2025 2024

—E-RE —ENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T T FHBTT

Lease receivables B W & 3K 1,057 1,242

The Group's billing terms with customers are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. The main type of collateral held by
the Group as security is deposits received from tenants
of HK$3,881,000 (2024: HK$4,021,000). Lease
receivables were due from tenants and bear interest at a

fixed rate on the overdue amount.

AEEHEEFPACEREREENEE
AT BEBTAENBELEI0OAN
BE-B—REPZAGEELR -KA&H
IE 7 SRE R (B8 2 FEURBR R0 A R 22 4%
#l o mBREBAEETHES BB 2N

HeAKRBEREIERERZERARTE

B|R & m AP Y

3,881,000/ 7T

ZE P04 : 4,021,00087C) 21R8E

EWHERTIEP RS

TEMEEE -

AN BRI E
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18. LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. EWEHER (&)

An ageing analysis of the lease receivables as at the end

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

Within 1 month — @ AR

1 to 2 months —ZE=mEA
2 to 3 months W2 =18 A
Over 3 months —{EANE
Total A5F

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, lease receivables are written off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement

activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9 which permits the use of
the lifetime expected loss provision for all lease
receivables. The expected credit loss rate for the Group's
lease receivables is minimal for all the above bands of

lease receivables.

REXRAH NeEHRHEEEKEE
FTETHRRER DT

2025 2024
—E_REF —TMEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
108 273

108 273

108 272

733 424

1,057 1,242

REREAH  NEBRBBEEME
EFRHEREX  VETRED T - 18
RERBUNTREFDBEETH
A BERAsEANER AR ER-
BRGTERRE R NEERA RN H®E
BRI GEEBESN - BRI LK
REBEMRRBRNAEBBRENE
Beo—RmME  FREBRERNAHES
—F R EETETMRBRITES > B
S o

AEERABEEVHEHREERFIFRL
BT AHRBRERBRER  EA
AUMARKEEREREEFEDRE
HiE AR - LR AR ERAEE
RME  ARERKEERNEHER

BAETHE -



19.

20.

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SECURITY BROKERS

The balances represent deposits with security brokers
with no recent history of default and bear interest at
floating rates. There were no overdue amounts due from
the security brokers. As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the

loss allowances were assessed to be minimal.

REPOSSESSED ASSETS

Repossessed assets represent credit-impaired loan and
interest receivables and their related reimbursable
expenses for which the Group has acquired the sole and
exclusive right and privilege to hold, use, occupy and
enjoy (including the right to sell and rent) the collateral
assets through court proceedings upon default of the
related loan borrowers. The nature and carrying value of
repossessed assets held as at 31 March are summarised

as follows:

Repossessed assets represented by the

rights to the following collateral: HEEE
— commercial properties - R EME
— residential properties -FEWME
— industrial properties - TEME
Less: Provision for impairment losses W BEEEL
on repossessed assets A E R B

Repossessed assets, net of provision

FHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2025 F 3
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19.

20.

HEEE  HKER

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—E-RAF=A=+—H

PE N & 5 KA BRI KT
BEREBRATEHRNBFELANES
TE 3 BN 46 ) SR IE A0 8% KR F B I K
FHE o FEULEE F A8 42 7 HY R IE I £ 160 HR
HE - RZBE_hFR-ZT_MNF=H
=+—B BEBERIGER/TAKA-

EEEE

BEEEREERENBKEREF S
AR HEBE R REFAS - MABERE
RABNE  NEBEBEEEEFRDRIE
FREEE A HAEKER (B
HERHHENEN) EREENEBE
FRFE R=A=T - BFAENERE
BEMEEREmEMLLT

BMATHERRENZSZ

2025 2024
—E-EF R HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
14,132 25,055
77,390 75,751
42,941 2,229
(46,214) (22,053)
88,249 80,982
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued) 20. IKEEE (&)

The estimated market value of the underlying collateral
repossessed by the Group as at 31 March 2025
amounted to HK$91,728,000 (2024: HK$86,270,000),
which was based on actual transaction prices listed on
provisional sale and purchase agreements that the Group
had entered into to dispose of the repossessed assets up
to the report date and valuation carried out by Knight
Frank Petty Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, using the market comparable approach
that reflects recent transaction prices for similar
properties, adjusted for differences in the nature, location
and condition of the properties under review. Each year,
the Group's executive directors decide to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuation of the Group's repossessed assets. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group's executive directors have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting

respectively.

BEAEEHEREAHEAEEERE
BEMIUMBRREERRMINER
RHEHRARBBLEES BB GER
HIAEMITAR A BHKA TS LB E
(RMEUMERTIAORSEE LU
ERAMENEE  FLERMKANERE
HAR)ETHEHE XREER-F
—HFE=A=+—BKEZABER®R
B & 5F % EE /91,728,000 7T
(ZZ — /04 : 86,270,000/ 7T) °
FAEERTESRAEZEH—KH
BEEMAEAEEEEEENISD
fhE - ELERBEMSNE B8
BUMRREHFEEKRE - REE
HITEFHBBEM SRR BARFE
MERETFRETEERIREBRR
REELERWK -
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2025, a provision for
impairment losses of HK$3,876,000 (2024:
HK$12,280,000) was made for repossessed assets
whose carrying amounts exceeded the market values less
costs to sell and a reversal of impairment losses of
HK$4,970,000 (2024: HK$131,000) was made for the
repossessed assets whose market values less costs to sell

exceeded the carrying amounts.

The movements in the provision for impairment losses

on repossessed assets are as follows:

At beginning of year RF )

Transfer from provision for EEAOEWER
impairment losses on K AE BB E
loan and interest receivables EiEEE
(note 17) (H&E17)

Provision for/(reversal of) KEAEN
impairment losses on MEBERE
repossessed assets, net (@) - FHE

Write off on disposal 5 S5 IR 8

At end of year KIS

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

20. LEEE (&)

HE-_T-_AF=-A=+—HLFE "
FEESEBATSEERLERAZ
& B E 1F LR B &5 18 8 153,876,000
BT (ZZ P04 : 12,280,000 7T)
i Bt 135 B B R & A AN R B BR T € 58
BB B E 1R E 518 % 214,970,000
B (ZT W4 : 131,00087T) °

HEEEMHEBSRREBZEHWT

2025 2024
—E_REF —E-ME
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
22,053 1,796
40,454 13,148
(1,094) 12,411
(15,199) (5,302)
46,214 22,053
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)
The fair value of the underlying collateral repossessed by
the Group and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZB=+-BAVEEERA

20. HEEEE (&)
RZE-_AFR-_T-_MF=A=+—
H AEEKE 2 EEERRORQFE
BEARAFEEEIAZERRAT :

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B BARH BARH
TEHE BEBAE BEBAE
(B-BR) (BZBR) (B=BR) &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FTET FET
2025 S 3
Commercial property HEME - - 9,520 9,520
Residential properties FEME 23,880 - 32,694 56,574
Industrial properties IEME 3,880 - 21,754 25,634
Total CEl 27,760 - 63,968 91,728
2024 —T-ZNF
Commercial properties [EEX/ES - - 17,570 17,570
Residential properties FEME 38,660 - 28,080 66,740
Industrial property THEME - - 1,960 1,960
Total A&t 38,660 - 47,610 86,270




20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued) 20.

21.
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Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and
the key input to the valuation of the fair values of the

underlying collateral repossessed by the Group:

Valuation technique

i B B AiT
Commercial, residential, and Direct comparison
industrial properties approach method
EE - -EERTEDE BELEBE

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21.

PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, BRAFEED
at fair value FHRERE

The above equity investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were

held for trading.

At 31 March 2025, the Group's equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss amounting to HK$11,424,000
(2024: HK$15,375,000) were pledged to secure banking
facilities and securities margin account facilities granted
to the Group (note 29).

Assuming that the portfolio of the Group's equity
investments remained unchanged, the market value of the
Group's equity investments at the date of approval of these

financial statements was approximately HK$12,981,000.

BAF5 R R P EE

31 March 2025
—_E-_RAFE=A=+—H

BEEEE (&)

AT AT EEKEZ BRERANAT
EENEEMRANEERTREES
ANERBEE :

Significant unobservable input

EXTUBRGAE

Market price per square foot
FFHRTIZER

BATEEFABRENRERE

2025 2024
—E_REF —E-ME
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
11,424 15,375

MR AR A B E - A H
EREATEEABSNSAREE -

R-E-_RAF=A=+—H KAEEA
211,424,000 L (Z T =MW F -
15,375,000 7T) Z & A FEFT A=
MRERECERR  UEREETASE
B RITRERBLARESEPHE (M
#£29) °

BEAEBNRESEAGHERZ T
AEBRERE R AR RE A E R E
R MIBEE A A12,981,0005 7T °
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22.

23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired
Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents

22.

Be kR1THET
AR R Eim R
DR={EA 2 EE A
E B TF 3
BARRERERHR
HBiE={8A KA
E B TF

RekBeFED

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between seven days and six

months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 23,

RECEIVED

Accruals
Other payables and deposits received
Receipt in advance

Total

Portion classified as non-current liabilities

Current portion

RERBEEEY
2025 2024
—E_HE —E &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET &L
30,307 90,846
555,905 184,424
95,994 242,981
682,206 518,251

RITREIREE B RITFRMRRF
BHEHE - BEHMEMERZFHREHE
NFELAERNEATSE  RFAEEZ
RBESHEMTE @ LiRTEHPEHRF
RMEGE - RITEEFEREHRFRLF
TS 2 R o B3 83T B34 R SRR AC 8%
ZIRAT e

FEETRIE - HENRRRE W
e

2025 2024

—E_RHE —E-puE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

fETFRIB 3,212 3,020
HEMEMERRE WIES 6,530 9,857
B F IR 43 168
= 9,785 13,045
NEAERBEENILS (1,209) (2,620)
mENE S 8,576 10,425

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 90-day terms.

H At A BR 3K R A B R — BRZAR90
HAKHE -



24. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At beginning of year

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
profit or loss during the year
(note 9)

Gross deferred tax liabilities

at end of year

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHELEEFTEERQA

Annual Report 2025 F 3
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31 March 2025

—E_hFE=A=1+—H

24, EEBLIE
BEHRBEEEREERAFEZEEHN
T
EZEHEEE
Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant and
equipment
M- BERRKRE
9 B 3R B 5 4T B
2025 2024
—EB-HEF —ENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
REH) 26,940 26,693
RAFEEBRAMBR
(Gt A) ZBRERIA
(FF3E9) (470) 247
MER 2 EERIA
REEE 26,470 26,940
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24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax assets

At beginning of year

Deferred tax credited to
profit or loss during the year
(note 9)

Gross deferred tax assets

at end of year

24, EFERIE (4])
EXHBRBEREENAFREZ

T (&)
ELEBBEEE
2025
—E-RE
Provision for
impairment
losses on loan Losses
and interest available for
receivables and offsetting

£ B

repossessed against future
assets taxable profits Total
ERERRFE ] {5 8
UREBEEEMN ARERB
HEEERE BRZER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER
REA (2,951) (9,140) (12,091)
RAFEEREN
FAZERRE
(Pr359) (5,615) (89) (5,704)
RELZBELRIE
BERE (8,566) (9,229) (17,795)




24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
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24, IEEFIE (&)
EEHEREREERAEE ZEFHN

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows: (continued) T (&)
Deferred tax assets (continued) EEBIEEE (&)

2024
k- el
Provision for
impairment
losses on loan Losses
and interest available for
receivables and offsetting

repossessed against future
assets taxable profits Total
FEU & R A E AT 8
WRIEEEEDN ARIERM
REEBBER w2 BB CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
At beginning of year REH] (428) (8,473) (8,901)
Deferred tax credited to RAFELEBREA
profit or loss during the year SFAZEIERIE
(note 9) (fig5E9) (2,523) (667) (3,190)
Gross deferred tax assets RELZ BLFIE
at end of year EEHRE (2,951) (9,140) (12,091)
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24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24.

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE MR &
in the consolidated statement of R 2 EEF IR
financial position BEFE

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised Rira B

in the consolidated statement of R ZIELER IR
financial position BEFE

Net deferred tax liabilities in respect of ~ BRFELLEEELERN
continuing operations BEH BB EFHE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$339,804,000 (2024: HK$339,330,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets of HK$46,839,000 (2024:
HK$46,849,000) have not been recognised in respect of
tax losses because these tax losses have arisen in
companies that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will

be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

EER IR ()

BIMME - BHRRKAE FEEH
HEERBEETHEY - UTAEHS
HERR 2 AEBETPIRLSRZ S -

2025 2024
—ECEHE —EZAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
7,534 2,002
(16,209) (16,851)
(8,675) (14,849)

AEBREABAEALADNEEIE
339,804,000 T (=& — I & -
339,330,000/ 7T) - B A MR HA A {F
HEBEEBRB AR ZRKERT &
Mo REEW AR ZEFRIAEBERIE
JEFLIEE EE46,839,000/8 T (ZZF — P04
46,849,000/ 7T) - AZ ERIEE BT
RECEE—BEHE QG  MBEREA
ARATBEE L ERTOR M IAEHZ F N
HEE -
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24 EEHIE (&)
W-E-RE=A=+—0 A£@E>
WEARTERALELBARAELN
REHBREARERZELEHAAE
(ZZ-—mE: %) EHZEREE
H o REEYEENBIEOEE

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 March 2025, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2024: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax

should such amounts be remitted.

A A ) H e BROIR A B B 3E 4 B (AR
FTEm®ER -

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. R4
Shares % 4
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FTET
Authorised: EIE
40,000,000,000 (2024: 40,000,000,000) 40,000,000,0008 (= Z Z M4
ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 40,000,000,0000% ) & % mE (&
(2024: HK$0.0025) each 0.00258 T (= =M% :
0.0025/8 L) 2 Lk 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITNAR

5,780,368,705 (2024: 5,780,368,705)
ordinary shares of HK$0.0025
(2024: HK$0.0025) each

5,780,368,705f% (=T = U4 :
5,780,368,705/% ) G iR (B
0.00258 7L (ZE M4 :
0.002587T) 2 Ei®MR 14,451

14,451
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25.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
share options outstanding under the scheme are included

in note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, an ordinary resolution was passed for

the adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”).

The Scheme was operated by the Company for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's

operations.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(a) Participants

Participants are any directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and
employees of the Group and any advisors
(professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters,
service providers of any member of the Group who
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board")
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

FHELEEEEERLA

25.

26.

IR (4])

i e A2

AR B BB AR 5 B DA AR 4R & 5T B T 1
RATE B0 BB AR A 2 ¥ 1B 800 B 7% 3k
FE26/ °

i8R RSt &
RZE——FNAMNBERITZARAERK
HEFARE L —HERRERDHESB

PASR B it &1 ([=% =t &1)) o

ZAtEIZ B RAAREEEERNIE
HEBMZAERSEEL TR LD

Zat Bl 2 BT

(a) 88EE
2EELAEARNANEMES (BER
TESE  ERTES BT IENTT

EF)MAKEZRERARAE
Fe((E5g8) REBYNER
REBEEIBERAAEEEHERZ

TE{TEHFEJ (EDMEDE%) uﬁgﬁj
ﬂﬁﬁﬁ\7¥K\j—/%‘L\K§\ﬁ;ﬁ\1‘ﬁ
BA TP EBRBH LXK

B BREA AEBEAKER
Al RIGHIERE -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Scheme are as follows: (continued)

(b) Subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the

Board in its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of grant

of an option (the "Date of Grant”) which must

be a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the five

business days immediately preceding the Date

of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

(¢) Maximum number of the Shares

The maximum number of the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence
of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 10%
in nominal amount of the aggregate of the Shares in
issue on the adoption date of the Scheme (the
"Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme and (as
the case may be) such other share option schemes

of the Company will not be counted for the purpose

of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Annual Report 2025 F 3
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26. BB ESTE (&)
EHEZHBNT  (F)

(b) REBEE
REESHESSREBHBGE
o EERNEASER TSR
FHREE

() AR AEFKREEO.0025/% T
Z B (TR 1) 12 i IR 7 %
HHRMB(EEBEHD (KER
EEH)NWTE (AEBH
RETBMEMEERE)

(i) B ERZRRG A R 0@
EEANFHRTE (LEE
i 2P A R PR ELE R
54

(i) PRt mEE -

(c) B LR

REERRBLERT - TR B RIEZ
=1 81 K 7R~ B ] E At 8 A hE =1 2
BB T AT EREITRR
D ER - Bt T SBBENZET IR
MEEIE EATRIRR (D E E 4258 10%
([FrEIRERE]) - BE SRR
PREENE - BRI 2 R GRIEAM
E)ARRABEMBRER SR
BRERBOERESTEE -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Scheme are as follows: (continued)

(d)

(e

®

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each grantee under the Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any Shares
subject to options granted during such period under
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being
(the “Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each grantee at the time of making an
offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years from

the Date of Grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme expired on 3 September 2022. No
further share options shall thereafter be offered
under the Scheme but the share options which had
been granted are still valid, unless otherwise lapse

of options or upon expiry of the option period.

FHELEEEEERLA

26.

BRESTE (&)

Zat 8l BT

(d)

(e

®

(&)

E2RERBRBEREZ LR

FEARANEEMI2ME A AR E %
ATEIERNBRE (BEETER
RNITEREIRE) T LATT R P EE
TREBEITORMD LR - T1F (BE
A BB R R B AR B E ] K
BRETTESIEHOERES BT
R &s  TEERBERRER
RARGLEAMEMEEHNZERE
M) HBiB E B BITIRG 891%
(TMEAREE]) -

fBIR R 2 1T E
BREATREEHRBRERES
SHNEEEREAZHEAITE - 1

ARE L BHEF10FAER

#Zat &l 2 5 &R 8
ZEER T - —_FhA=HE
e HETNSEERBZAEEZR
HEMmERE  BEERE 2 ERE
MARB R FRFERE AR M SR sk BB IR
REHARE W - BIVERIER -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. ERESTE (&)

Details of the Scheme are as follows: (continued)

(g) Acceptance of options
The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of grant,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1

in total by the Grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at general meetings.

In the prior year, 116,200,000 share options had lapsed.
An aggregate amount of HK$5,068,000 was transferred
from the share option reserve to retained profits upon

lapse of share options.

The outstanding share options under the Scheme during

the year are as follows:

a8l HBWT - ()

(g) BEZBERE
EEF& HEEE28R R AR AR
BNEHXIBETZRBARER
AAEERTHEREZZL -

BRELYERTHESE ABD KRS
EBRRRKEGREZEN -

REFE  B116,200,00010 BRZEE
SRR o 484 585,068,000 T C £ B MK
ERBENEREFEPERERE G
I o

RAFEE  REZEMRARITEZE
PrERFBEMT -

2025 2024
—E-RE —TZmE
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of

exercise price  share options  exercise price  share options

39
THEE

HK$ per share
BRET

At beginning of year REA] =
Lapsed during the year RARFERHY —

At end of year NGRS =

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
share options outstanding under the Scheme (2024: Nil).

Y15
BREHA B EREHE
‘000 HK$ per share '000
T BRET T
- 0.1532 116,200
- 0.1532 (116,200)

REBEHR  RIBZXTE - AR L E
BRERRITE(ZZ_MEFE - &) -
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27. RESERVES 27. #E

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 116 and 117 of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group’s reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the shares
and share premium of the former holding company

acquired by the Group; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant

to the capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Group is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. In the
prior year, the amount was transferred to retained profits

upon lapse of the related options.

The exchange translation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financial statements of foreign operations.

AEBREFBERAFERBESF
EzREZHRTEHREKFEI16K117
BZREHREERED -

AEBZEHRBKRE -

() AEER-ANZTFARAT=B#
T2EH  RARABRBEAEEHE
APTETT IO M{E BB AR B AT
B 2 AR R IR A T E S AR i
BEMZELD &

(i) RE-NANFRAZBETZR
AEMLMBERMDEERPREL -

RIEBARZEQIBIFERRE)(EERT) -
EZEPIESAGFM 2 ETIHERT » &
SEZEHRBRAUDIKRTER -

BEEREBEERCEOLBFITEZR
Bz RFEE FBERYBRERME
Q4N BERON K Z @5 R E
—HRE-RNEFE  ZTBERNBHEE
BB ERERE G o

[E R R RN E RIS E RS
WEAMEEWAAMRBELEZHE -
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RESERVES (continued)

The merger reserve represents the difference between (i)
the amounts at which the assets and liabilities are
recorded under a business combination under common
control in prior years, net of any reserves of the acquired
entities, and (ii) the fair value of consideration paid for

the business combination.

The asset revaluation reserve represents cumulative gains
and losses arising on property revaluation as a result of
the change in use from owner-occupied properties to
investment properties. Such items will not be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The fair value reserve represents the subsequent changes
in fair value of the equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income since its
initial measurement. With the exception of dividends
received, the associated gains and losses are recognised
in the fair value reserve. Amounts represented in the fair
value reserve are transferred to retained profits upon

derecognition of the financial assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had an
outstanding guarantee of HK$70,000,000 (2024:
HK$70,000,000) given to a bank to secure a general
credit facility granted to a subsidiary of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the assets pledged to secure the Group's
banking facilities and securities margin account facilities
are included in notes 13 and 21, respectively, to the

financial statements.
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o R ()

At B AN BEFEETHREH
ﬁ%eﬁaaﬁM§F&af@ﬁ@u
I T B B B8 0 4 (T B8 48) R (GiD)BE R 3
ASEHHNRENRFEERSE Z/HH
2R

BEERHESANAEHERANEE
BAREMEMETOREBAELN
RFEKRENER - ZFEERAKEE
KA gEHHBERD -

NFEERE/EE/EAFEEFA
Hp2mEKREBREREBEGE
AR RERFEEZES - BRI
B S50 - 1R A e K B R R P EE
Fﬁﬁﬁ\]ﬁ@f’\ cRERMEERILHERE

AP EERBEANEESEERE R
%'J°

RREE

RBERIR - ARAE FIRITZERES
# /70,000,000 7T (ZF Z I 4 -
70,000,000/ 7T) " fEAREE 2 — M
MBARIMER —REERMEZER -

EEER
BEHEARBSASERITREREFRE
CHRPREMERZEENFHBS BIH
R BIRERMT13R21A ©
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30. COMMITMENTS 30. A&
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not ez

31.

have any significant commitments.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

3. HEKMEB A H

HIR - N B E A ©

2024
—F-lEF
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets disposed of: HENEEFHE
Property, plant and equipment Mz BB RERE 66,075
Accruals and other payables (Note) JE &t R I8 I Ho At 8 < BR 3R (BT 3E) (21,790)
44,285
Exchange translation reserve PE 34, (9,487)
Disposal expenses incurred HPEFHELANER 350
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEME QA8 W
(note 10) (BF3E10) 9,834
Total consideration BARE 44,982
Satisfied by: XA
Cash R 44,982
Note: Included in the accruals and other payables as at 28 M RZZEZ=FWAB=-+/N\BZE:

April 2023 was an amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, New Century

Cruise Line International Limited, of approximately

HK$7,572,000.

RERAEGENERERERNE
SEWME R F Z IF =B RNew

Century Cruise Line International

Limited 89 X TE 477,572,000/ 7T ©
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31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 3. HEME A A (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FRALEWBARNE KRB SEEY
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: HFERADHTIT
2024
—Z M
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration ReRE 44,982
Disposal expenses incurred HEFBEEEANER (350)
44 632
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 322 E@BAEXRS
(@) The Group had the following transactions with @ RAFE AEEEBABTETT
related parties during the year: IR 5
2025 2024
—E-RE T NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt = FTERT FHET
Salary paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Y EBEBEE S
Cheow Leng e 0] 135 138
Salary paid to Mr. Wilson Ng SINEEKEEZEHS (i) 1,059 1,091
Salary paid to Mr. Huang Wai lp X &EHErxE2H & (i) 529 366

Management fee paid to a X RAEE R R Z
related company BB iii) 105 105
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) The Group had the following transactions with

related parties during the year: (continued)

Notes:

(i) The salary was paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng,
who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group

(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the

Company.

(i) The salaries were paid to Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr.
Huang Wai Ip, who are discretionary beneficiaries of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in

Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

(i) The management fee was charged based on an
agreement entered into between the Group and a
related company, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("Huang & Co"), for administrative services provided
at a monthly rate of approximately HK$8,750 (2024:
HK$8,730). Huang & Co is beneficially owned by Mr.

Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng.

(b) Due to the intermediate holding company
The Group had an outstanding balance due to the
intermediate holding company of HK$80,000,000
(2024: HK$80,000,000) as at the end of the

reporting period. This balance is unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

N.HEBERS (&)

(a)

(b)

RAFE - NEEEEMHETT
515 (&)

s -

() HFehXHTEmBBEE HR

— (A2 REEZETARETEA -

e EEERHERR A REE

% 2 ®lHuang Group (BVI) Limited
2R o

(i) HeDNIERNTEBREERER
Ernk BEA—BAZERERZ
ERZHEA MZEREREE
N A B B 4825 B A B]Huang Group
(BVI) Limited,z & B fEZS o

(i) BERERAEEE DR A A
Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
([Huang & Col) BtATHR 1T HUAR
BAZOHZH KRFAERE
#98,750%8 7T (ZZF W4 : 8,730
77T) ° Huang & Coi BB 4
EnlES -

J& - R Bk A B 3RE

RS BR $%3%1ﬁ¢ﬁaﬂ%§ﬂﬁ
RARBBZRENES B
80,000,000 7t (=& = Y £ :
80,000,000/ 7T) © A B 4 &4 J) &
R 2O RBEREREER-
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

©

(d)

Commitment with a related party

On 1 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a service agreement with three-month
termination notice with Huang & Co, a related
company of the Group, for the provision of
administrative services to the Group. The
management fee paid to Huang & Co for the year is
disclosed in note 32(a)(iii) to the financial
statements. As at 31 March 2025, the Group had a
total future minimum management fee payable to
Huang & Co amounting to approximately HK$26,000
(2024: HK$26,000).

Loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder of

the Group's subsidiary (Note) B ZER

Note: Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement entered into
between the Group and New Century Cruise Line
International Limited (“NCCL"), the non-controlling
shareholder of New Century Maritime Limited
(“NCML"), a subsidiary of the Group which was
NCCL was not to

demand repayment of this loan unless a resolution

struck off during the year,

in writing signed by all shareholders of NCML for
the demand of repayment had been duly passed
at its general meeting. The loan was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. NCCL is
beneficially owned by Huang Group (BVI) Limited,
the ultimate holding company of the Company.
During the year, all shareholders of NCML resolved
by way of a resolution in writing to waive the loan
which was accounted for as a deemed capital
contribution from NCCL. Subsequently, NCML was
struck off on 1 November 2024.

REEE M E R
FEFR AR
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32. B LS (&)

©

(d)

P4

GED

B R Bt 07 B0 7GR
RZE—=FMOA—H AEE—

[ Bt /B8 1 ) B 7K £ (B — Rl A gt 1 R

Huang & Corl Z PR W& - AB A
BAANSERETHRRE  F@AR
IEBABMA=EA - RANFERE XN
FHuang & CoMER B E MK HRE
MEE32@)(INAEE - N=ZZT_RHF

A=+ -8B - AEBEH
Huang & Cof) R R &K E IR &
#926,0008 L (Z & =10 & -
26,000 L) °

NEEHE R R 2 IR R DA
ZE®

2025 2024
—E-EHF —EomF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T T T

= 24,087

Mish: MEBEAEEEAEE—HHE
2~ AINew Century Maritime
Limited ([NCML] - ERRFE
W HIFREE ) 2 FF 12 IR AR R New
Century Cruise Line International
Limited((NCCLJ)%TiZHﬁ?Tﬁ%
B JENCMLEY 2 38 B R 28

x*@«ﬂZ%@R%%EE@E
BEARg FEX@B - FA
NCCLh & BREEZIBEERK
ZERREHET RERERE
ZEREE - NCCLEA R R Z &
442 % A "lHuang Group (BVI)
LimitedBE R R - RAFE -
NCMLZ 2 B8R R AEmE AR
FRBABEZER  HEE
ENCCLZ & A8k - H 1% -
NCMLE R ZZ ZMEFE+— A —
H % 51 Bk 51 it
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) R.BBMARS (&)
(e) The compensation of key management personnel of (e) NEEXZERBABZHFMERH
the Group has been disclosed in note 8(a) to the HmANE8(Q)NIFE -

financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a) to Fat(a)E(d)BE 2 B R 5 TMERK E
(d) above also constitute connected transactions or MRENETWAEMATE 2 BERX Hk
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter FRBEERS - A HRZERFHE
14A of the Listing Rules. However, these transactions are REEEREKFEHIBE EMRNESTT
exempt from the announcement and reporting He AHZERFIEREETRER
requirements as they fall below the de minimis threshold B SRARE o

or otherwise exempted under the Listing Rules.

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 3. 5 HERERMEE

CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) TEFREXRSB
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions RAEE  AEBEREFEHETH
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of DRREERAREEREERELZ
HK$169,000 (2024: Nil) and HK$169,000 (2024: RS A E169,0008 7L (= F
Nil), respectively, in respect of lease arrangements Z V4 &) 169,000 T (ZF
for building. ZOEF ;M) o
During the vyear, the loan advanced from a non- RAFE  NEBEWE QR 2 IEE
controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary of A% B B # 5 2 B 524,087,000/ 7T
HK$24,087,000 was waived by the non-controlling EEAEEWNERR 2 FIERRKRE
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary. Details of the HE - RDFBRI BRI
transaction were disclosed in note 32(d) to the 32(d)MHFE o

financial statements.
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF B GBEEESREXRNTE (E)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) EMETHELENEESS
activities

Loan advanced

from a
non-controlling

shareholder

Amount
due to the
intermediate

of the Group's holding Lease
subsidiary company liabilities
rEE
HEQRZ
FERRER FE A
BRZEN BROARE HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL TiET THET
At 1 April 2023 RZZE-_=%HA—A 71,823 80,000 72
Changes from financing REHSREEL
cash flows MEE (47,736) - (72)
Interest expense MERX - - 1
Interest paid classified as PERRAREREREN
operating cash flows EfFIE - - (M
At 31 March 2024 and MRZE_MF=A=+—H
1 April 2024 RZTZMFEMA—H 24,087 80,000 =
Deemed capital contribution from  # R EAREE KB A 7
a non-controlling shareholder FERRER 2
of the Group's subsidiary HE AR (24,087) - -
New lease nHE - - 169
Changes from financing REREREES
cash flows ik - - (13)
Interest expense MERX - - 2
Interest paid classified as NERAKEREREN
operating cash flows ERFE - - )
At 31 March 2025 R-B-HEF=A=1-H - 80,000 156
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Within operating activities REFHN
Within financing activities BEEBNA
Total X

34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests are set out below:

. 40 BeRERMEE (E)

(c HEZRERHAE

2025 2024
—E_RF —E-MEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHETT
560 505

13 72

573 577

M. EEEREEREENB S
BZHEBRE
BEAEBRIERD T EEHE A A
HERIMT

2025 2024
—E-HE —ETZMF
Percentage of equity interest held by JFFERERISEN
non-controlling interests: BRAEZBDL
ETC Finance Limited SRR BAERAT 40 40
Kingston Maritime Limited* Kingston Maritime Limited* - -
New Century Maritime Limited* New Century Maritime Limited* - 40

Century Rich Investments Limited** Century Rich Investments Limited** - 40
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 34 EEERFEREZNI 2%

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) BE2HEAR (&)
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material BERFEEREZNAEERNE TN
non-controlling interests are set out below: (continued) FIEEINET  (B)
2025 2024
—E-RHE —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated PETFHERERW
to non-controlling interests: EEERH (BB :
ETC Finance Limited HRFABARAF 9,638 8,508
Kingston Maritime Limited* Kingston Maritime Limited* - (212)
New Century Maritime Limited* New Century Maritime Limited* ) 3,989
Century Rich Investments Limited** Century Rich Investments Limited** - 293
Accumulated balances of REBEBH
non-controlling interests FERERD
at the reporting date: RitiEss
ETC Finance Limited SRFHEER AT 373,772 364,134

Kingston Maritime Limited*
New Century Maritime Limited*

Century Rich Investments Limited**

Dividend paid to a non-controlling

##

Kingston Maritime Limited* — -
New Century Maritime Limited* - (24,085)

Century Rich Investments Limited** - -

X F-EFEREDS

interest: WIRE :

Century Rich Investments Limited** Century Rich Investments Limited** - 15,450
40% of equity interest was held by a non-controlling * RZEZ=FWMA-F+N\BHEMNH
interest before disposal on 28 April 2023 FEVERR 2 15 4000 % AN 1 2

Struck off on 1 November 2024
Struck off on 1 May 2024

O RZEZWEFE+— A B SIREM
o N ZF_NFERA BRI BER
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries, excluding the

subsidiary under a discontinued operation. The amounts

are disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

2025
—E-REF

Revenue and other income
Total expenses
Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Net cash flows from
operating activities

Net cash flows from
investing activities

Net cash flows used in
financing activities

Net increase in cash and

cash equivalents

WAREMHA

7 S 43R
REREN/ (BE)
rEERENE/
(BR)B%

REEE
FRPEE
REEE

RERGHE
ZREREFR

RERBME
ZREREFR

RERFMAZ
REREFE

it

RERALFANL
#MEE

34 BEFEREEREZND DB
BzHEBLT (&)
TRERLEHBAR (FRE—HED
ISR EBEONTE L R) O S RE
BE o B E RRSEMND R MK

AR SR8 ¢

New Century
ETC Century Rich
Finance Maritime Investments
Limited Limited Limited

SRMEE

BERAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THERT TAET
79,868 - -
(54,604) (4) -
25,264 (4) -
25,264 @) -
1,043,909 - -
95,729 - -
(206,832) - -
164,163 - -
92,000 - -
(583) - -
255,580 - =




34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries, excluding the

subsidiary under a discontinued operation. The amounts

are disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

(continued)

2024
—E-EF

Revenue and other income
Total expenses
Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

Net cash flows used in

financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in

cash and cash equivalents

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
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3 BEFEREEREZNB OB
BzHEBLTE (&)
TRERLEHBAR (FRE—HED
RS ISR B A F) MBS E
B o B E RARSEM DR RIER

Ik

New Century
ETC Century Rich
Finance Maritime Investments
Limited Limited Limited
HRAI B
BRAHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET
LONSEY LN 80,356 38,976 740
MY @ (57,600) (143,434) 9)
KEEEF/ (B1]) 22,756 (104,458) (731)
AEEZERE/

(B#R) &% 22,756 (104,458) (731)
mEBEE 1,012,497 4 -
ERBEE 102,193 - -
BB E (207,052) (60,216) -
ERBAE (96) - -
mEEEmE/ (FA)

ZHREREFHE 95,025 34,909 (34,265)
REZBME/ (FTA)

ZBREREFE (28) 83,608 -
BMEEEMA

ZHEMEFE (553) (119,340) (38,626)
BeRkASEBM2

g/ (hd) 28 94,444 (823) (72,891)
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

35. RERE s zEem I A

REBEPR SEERIAZEESR

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period mr
are as follows:
2025
—E-REF
Financial assets
SREE
Financial asset
Financial assets Financial at fair value
at fair value assetsat  through other
through amortised  comprehensive
profit or loss cost income Total
BRAYER DEERE BRATEETA
TTABREM RN Ht2EkREN
SREE SHEE SHEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TEL TEL
Equity investment designated BERRATER
at fair value through other stARMEE
comprehensive income WanRERE = = 3,434 3,434
Loan and interest receivables EREZKFE - 577,338 - 577,338
Repossessed assets HEEE - 88,249 = 88,249
Lease receivables ERAER - 1,057 - 1,057
Amounts due from security brokers [EUEHE LB - 13,583 - 13,583
Deposits and other receivables e REMBEKER
(note 16) (HE16) - 8,281 - 8,281
Equity investments at fair value BRTFEERA
through profit or loss BankEREg 11,424 - - 11,424
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEESEY - 682,206 - 682,206
Total Ch 11,424 1,370,714 3,434 1,385,572
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. RERE S 2T A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEHR SEERIAZERESHE
financial instrtuments as at the end of the reporting period R ()

are as follows: (continued)

2025
—EB-HEF
Financial liabilities
cHmas
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
LU 88 AR A
TEM
=R
HK$'000
FTERT
Accruals FEETRRIA 2,249
Other payables and deposits received Hin A BRRREWRE
(note 23) (Pff5E23) 6,530
Amount due to the intermediate JE A R R R
holding company NGIE /S| 80,000
Lease liabilities HEBRE 156

Total A&t 88,935
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2024
- NF
Financial assets

TREE

35. BERE s 2T A (])

RBEEHR SEERTAZEAERE

4

A

T ()

Financial asset

Financial assets Financial at fair value
at fair value assets at  through other
through amortised  comprehensive
profit or loss cost income Total
BATER DB#ERA RATEREA
AR FHEH EbZEREH
eREE CREE tREE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAER TAR THET
Equity investment designated REREATER
at fair value through other SAEMEEH
comprehensive income WasH RERE - - 3,347 5,347
Loan and interest receivables JEWEF R H S - 724,516 - 724516
Repossessed assets HEEE - 80,982 - 80,982
Lease receivables JEY R E - 1242 - 1,242
Amounts due from security brokers B4 H 42 F M) FUE - 9,341 - 9,341
Deposits and other receivables Re REMEKER
(note 16) (Ffrzz16) - 7,244 - 7244
Equity investments at fair value BATEBEHA
through profit or loss RENRERE 15375 - - 15375
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRLEED - 518,251 - 518,251
Total CH 15,375 1,341,576 3,347 1,360,298
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2024

T HF

Financial liabilities

THAaE

Accruals FEET FRIE
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35. RERE s zem I A (B)

RHBEHRR SEEMIAZKEESHE
(&)

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
LA 35 5 AR
FFE/

TRIBE
HK$'000

FHET

2,054

Other payables and deposits received HMENERREWZS

(note 23) (P 5E23)
Amount due to the intermediate FE AT AR R IR
holding company NGBS

9,857

80,000

Loan advanced from a non-controlling REBME QR 2 IEERBRER

shareholder of the Group's subsidiary BT 2B

Total BFF

24,087

115,998
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

EHMITANAFPEERDFE
EEX
BEESERAATEEABELEN -
AEESRTANKASBRATEE
mT

as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
REEHE nNTEE
2025 2024 2025 2024
—E-HE —_TNEFE —ZEBE-HE —T-_NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET FERT THET
Financial assets tREE
Equity investments at fair value 182 FEEF A
through profit or loss REmRERE 11,424 15,375 11,424 15,375
Equity investment designated EEARATFEE:A
at fair value through other H A2 E s 1
comprehensive income BiERE 3,434 3,347 3,434 3,347
Total Gl 14,858 18,722 14,858 18,722

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, loan and interest receivables,
repossessed assets, lease receivables, amounts due from
security brokers, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, an amount due
to the intermediate holding company, a loan advanced
from a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's
subsidiary, lease liabilities and the non-current deposits
received approximate to their carrying amounts and
accordingly no disclosure of the fair values of these items

is presented.

EEECKNE AeMBRFEY -
ERERENE  HEEE BERHEE
R BRESELCEHNTIA  BRER
NHE R REORBEERNSRE
E - BREEMENRRRESFRIEN
TREE  EBNPRERZERAFRE K
SEMNBLAR ZHFERRRENZE
R HERBBUEIERBERZRESHD
FEEASLEERESERE Bt
WENHRZERBNDFEERE -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - it R S B & B B R 2 A

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's management is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the Group's management analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. Independent
professional valuers are engaged for the valuation as
appropriate. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the Group's management. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a

year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on

quoted market prices.
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B 53R R P 5

31 March 2025
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6. TRMITEAENAFEERAFEE

EHEX (&)
AEEHEEERREEERT
Bt EZBRREERF - F%E B
AEEEEEE e TABECE
HUYBTEEMBCEZHAE - B
EXHEMTEEEER2EGEE -G
ERAKEEEEEMRIE - HESB
BREREBFMARNTHRFENH
BERREZZE G -

,fﬂf

w

PRMEERBENATEERELEARE

REG5FTZENENRSGFIBRIENE
BMIAREAREREE - T HER
BT AT A T EE -

FHRERENAFEBEATSRER
-
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income has been estimated using a discounted cash flow
("DCF") model. The valuation requires management to
make certain assumptions about the model inputs,
including forecast cash flows, the discount rate, credit
rate and volatility. The probabilities of the various
estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed

and are used in management's estimate of the fair value.

The directors believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which were
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which
were recorded in other comprehensive income, were
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period. For the fair
value of the unlisted equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income, management
has estimated the potential effect of using reasonably

possible alternatives as inputs to the valuation model.

FHELEEEEERLA

6. cEMITAENAFEERAFEE

EHEX (&)
BE/EAFEEFARMEE SN
FLETRERENDTFEEESEBITR
BernE((HRASRE]) BAMGE -
BEEREEEREABABHELET
BR BFEEIRSRE HRX F
EXRRFE - EHE RN TR
BMERALGEFNG LAREEEHA
FEENMGE

BEEME HMERMEENGTAFE
BEEELEFREAMBRARA) &
HEAFEEZS (HeKERNEm:
BlREAN)BEE  BREARBEH
AEBEANHBE EHEERRAFE
BEEf AEM 2 E W8I EHRERE
MAFEE EEECDHASERRE
MERIER BIERERANEAENE

5/ 45
EE -
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2025 and

2024:
Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input  Range
fEERH EATTBRGAE B
Unlisted DCF method  Long term growth 2025: 3.0%
equity investment T HRH & rate for cash flows (2024: 3.0%)
FETRERE mEE for subsequentyeas  —ZZFHF 1 3.00%

B 53R R P 5

31 March 2025
—E-RAF=A=+—H

EMITANDFPEERDTFE
BB X (&)
ATAR-ZE-AFR-F-WF=A

=+t—H *ﬁ‘%ﬁfﬁmﬂlﬁi\ﬁﬁﬁ’JiKTT
BB A AENMZUNEEFREST

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

NYEEHBAENSRE

5% increase/decrease in growth rate would result
in an increase/decrease in fair value by
HK$13,000 (2024: HK$12,000)/

BREEENRARS (ZEZF :30%)  HK$12,000 (2024: HK$12,000)

EELE

Weighted average cost ~ 2025:15.2%
of capital ("WACC") (2024:16.0%)
MEFHERKAR “ERF 0 152%

BREEN,/RDSneERATEEEM
13,000/ 7 (ZZ 24 : 12,00087)/
12,0007 (Z 2 =M% : 12,0008 7T)

5% increase/decrease in WACC would result
in a decrease/increase in fair value by
HK$107,000 (2024: HK$112,000)/

(TIEFHER (ZZZmF:1600%)  HK$121,000 (2024: HK$127,000)
RA]) MEFHERRRIEN,/ H5%GEH

Discount for lack of 2025: 15.6%
marketability (2024: 15.7%)
(“DLOM") ZZTRF 156%

NEBERD107,0008 L (ZE-MEF :
112,0007%70) /¥ 11121,000/ 70
(7 T 204 127,000 7T)

5% increase/decrease in DLOM would result
in a decrease/increase in fair value by
HK$31,000 (2024: HK$31,000)/

BEmERALRN (ZZ-m%:1570%)  HK$32,000 (2024: HK$31,000)

([BzmEREs
10l

Discount for lack of 2025: 17.5%

fﬁ}%zm SRBETNEN/ HDsneER
NEEERD31,0008 L (ZE-HF
31,000/ L) /48 10132,0007 7T
(ZZZI4F 31,0008 7T)

5% increase/decrease in DLOC would result

control ("DLOC") (2024' 17.4%) in a decrease/increase in fair value by
B E SIS “E-RF175% HK$36,000 (2024: HK$35,000)/

(TEhZ 11 (ZZ-M4%:174%)  HK$37,000 (2024: HK$35,000)

#rml) ﬁ?%i?‘*%l BRI,/ H 5w EH

TEER 36,0008 T (ZE-MEF
35, oooﬁén /137,000 7T
(ZZ % : 35000 L)
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

DLOM and DLOC represent the amounts of premiums
and discounts determined by the Group that market
participants would take into account when pricing the

investments.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2025

Equity investments at fair value

through profit or loss

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Total

As at 31 March 2024

Equity investments at fair value

through profit or loss

Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Total

R-BE-HEF=A=1+-H

BRAFEETA
BaRORERE

EEARLATERE
ATAEMEE R
MR R &

RZE-MF=A=+—H

BATEEFA
BEMRERE

ETRELTEE
STARMEEKRE
MRERE

FHELEEEEERLA

6. cEMITAENAFEERAFEE

EHEX (&)

R = T 57 B M AT 0 SR = 4 AR AT 4
RASEMEEMS2EBEERKREE

BREEEHRERTES

B o

DNFEERER
TRETASEEH T ANRFEER
BENR:
B FIEERENEE
Fair value measurement using
AFEEHERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
g EAT EART
THEEE BEBAE BEAAE
(E-ER) (BZER) (B=FER) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT TR FHET
11,424 = = 11,424
- - 3,434 3,434
11,424 = 3,434 14,858
15,375 - - 15,375
- - 3,347 3,347
15,375 - 3,347 18,722
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. EMTANAFEERATE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEERX (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERX(E)
The movements in fair value measurement within Level 3 RAFE  F=ZBARNAFEEGTED
during the year are as follows: BEIIT
2025 2024
—E-RE —EoNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Equity investment designated BER/BRATFEETA
at fair value through other H th 2 TH W 2 Y
comprehensive income MR &
At beginning of year RE A 3,347 2,985
Total fair value gain recognised in FEH A 2 W R
other comprehensive income H) A B (B Y 4 58 87 362
At end of year INEGSFES 3,434 3,347
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured R_BE_RAFR-_T_MFEF=ZA=+—

at fair value as at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2024:

Nil).

H-

30

AKEH R
&) -

WAERE  SRAERKESR
B =R A R = R
FREE (CT-ME:

REBEYW EEMIRAFEETEN
=]

R R
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. K EMEE R ERBE

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as lease receivables, amounts due
from security brokers, loan and interest receivables and

other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs were
denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

AEBZIESHMIABKEESIEHY
TR MFESRTIAZIEZEBENTIAR
KELERE -AKEAEREAEMER
BELBE  PlonREEER - BIE
FREENRIE  BRREREMNERE
fENRR - REEREHESETESL -

AEBeRMTIAES 2T EZRABRRIME
Rk EERR - RBE S E R & E
ERRER EE2FHNIERETERE
R BR - ZEFRBRHANT

S EE = B

AEEHRHEIZFEERR - ZFRBRT)
ARAKREEMABRNGREEAINZE
BETEEMEL - ARB 2 KHMO W
ARRAETIAF M T R AT RERE
i o NEE B AT B SME S PR - A
m-EEEeTYERINERRE - I #
REFBERZEHFERIINERR -

o
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit/(loss)
after tax (arising from Singapore dollar denominated
financial instruments) and retained profits (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and

liabilities).

2025 —E-HF

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens el 7 7T 5,
against the Singapore dollar N TRz B

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens {7 7t 5%,
against the Singapore dollar ¥ T E

2024 —F-NEF

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens W T
against the Singapore dollar TR A

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens {7 7T i,
against the Singapore dollar g T E
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37. M EREERERBE (&)

SME LB (4R

TRERAE S IR R BRI

T 57 003 B S A A 3R A TR B
ZHERT R EBB B R AL ()
(A3 A3 70 0 4 S By ) & B T AL
MES) RREUF (AEBEEERS
EATEELRED) HEDHHBE -

Increase/

(decrease)

in loss

Increase/ after tax and
(decrease) decrease/
in foreign (increase) in
currency rate  retained profits
BRBEEER

®gm GRD)

IS RE = KRB ER
®m, O A) WA (i)
% HK$'000

THET

10 2

(10) (2
Decrease/

(increase)

in profit

Increase/ after tax and
(decrease) decrease/

in foreign (increase) in
currency rate retained profits
B 5t 12 0% A

"L (&)

NI B N AR B A
#gm,/ CRsd) "L, ()
% HK$'000

THETT

10 2
(10) 2
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EMEEEZERBEK (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk
As at 31 March 2025, the credit risk of the Group was

primarily attributable to lease receivables, amounts due
from security brokers, loan and interest receivables,

repossessed assets and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group provides services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the

Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

One of the Group’s main income generating activities is
lending money to customers, and therefore, credit risk is
a principal risk. It is the Group's policy that all new loans
are subject to stringent credit check procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of its customers before the loan applications are accepted
or rejected. If there is no independent rating, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer by taking into
account the financial position, past experience and other
factors of the customer. The Group holds collateral
against certain loan and interest receivables in the form
of first legal mortgages over individual properties located
in Hong Kong which mainly comprise residential,
commercial, industrial properties and car parking spaces.
The Group approves and grants loans to its customers
pursuant to its pre-approved credit policy with tightened
management measures whenever an adverse condition
in the property market occurs. The Group has loan
committees of different levels comprising directors and
senior management to approve and grant different loan
products with various loan-to-value ratios and loan

amount requirements.

EERR
RZE-_AF=A=+—0 A£EH
EERBRTEREEKBEER  BKE
SELEOTIE  BRERRAE - K
BEEUNRBEERESEED -

AEBARAARAMERAZZF =TT
HRY - AEBZBRAFLEREED
ETEECMBREFPABETEERE
TR o Mo USRS RIS EE

BEEE ZJSE@Z?’EEH B AEK o

AEEZEFP-HIBEEFRARSZ
REFKE Bt EERARAS—EE
ERk - ANEEZHBRBAAFERA
iELPﬂ&E’HZfT*E%‘iF BESh - U
RRERDIRFEREET -

AEBEENIERBTEPNERBRE
ZH - AEEEEAMEEFPNEER
o fr B WA TTIE AT AR - BIRIER
REEREF @EREFPHOMBMAR
BEKBEEMEZRUFHEEEER
o AKEREREHRNETERERR
B MmF A M am AR EE /&5
MENE EERIBOTR) (ERE
HERHFRIBZEREEDE BEY
X IXPERLBEM - BEWEDS
HIRARFMR - AEEERIFEIFALH
EREEBR - ISR EAS B IE R i AT
AZ—F CHERAEEPRHER A
BRETRAEFEANEREZES (KE
%ﬁ%&%@ﬁ@)  PAR A R 3R
FTARMNEFBBELXLAFTOHTRE
ERSBENERERM -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The directors and senior management consider that the
credit risk arising from the loan and interest receivables is
significantly mitigated by the properties held as collateral,
with reference to the market values of the properties
which are valued by independent third party valuers as at

the end of each reporting period.

/mpa/rment assessment
ECL measurement

The Group measures loss allowance under HKFRS 9 ECL
model. The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e., the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and the exposure at default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECLs reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of

default occurring as the weights.

ECLs are based on the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.
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7.0 ERREEEERBER (&)

EERR (&)
EELRREEERS REBYF=
HEEMREREHREENDET
B BUEEFREMNEEENEERRE
RUAASEFRTE ERERG) MY
E K bEREE

B 18 A1

FREE B E

AR EREE S M %S £ RIS A
EHERBRRAGTERLEE - B
EREBLXNAERREBRZOME  E2Y
BRE(ABXEZRLEEZOFHKRN)
MEARRMAOGTE - BOMENED
[ Bz ik O E) BY Ak DA 2 BUBR R AR - I
LATREMEE SR AR - MHEREX
MR RER T BB R NS - KA
BLEEBONEEHERR SEERTE -

BEHRERBEREERNRESOENARE
BOMAAKNREIME RAKEEK
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YR HE R A HEE RO B IR N R AT o
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EMEEEZERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECL measurement (continued)

The Group calculates ECLs based on a three probability-
weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the effective
interest rate. A cash shortfall is the difference between
the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the entity

expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below

and the key elements are as follows:

The probability of default (“PD") is an estimate of the

likelihood of default over a given time horizon.

The exposure at default ("EAD") is an estimate of
exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and interest, and

accrued interest from missed payments.

The loss given default ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss
arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time.
It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral or
credit enhancements that are integral to the loan and not

required to be recognised separately.

EERR (&)

B FF S (A8
FEHIEHEXE (B)
AEEREBE=EBHENENBTRITER
HEMRBXL UtERBESER X
R BRARFR - BERRJRE
BHEXNTEBMNRERERERR
HEINBREREMEZLHENESR -

TR TR ERIERETERE B
EFEILEMOT:

BOBE(TEOBX]) RERERE
#ENE DA BE MR AT o

RUOERHD (EHEREKD]) 24
RIGRK BN ER - BREE
BN ME A BREARNEREL 0
Ao RS OMEE U RRBKEN S
A8

BHUBRX ([BOBRED) RERTE
R EEDONER T ERBRRNM
e EERIMHNANRSREEER
ABHERINBESREZHNER -
B ¥R B 3R AR AR 8 B KT A SRR B $E 3
SHAEFIER - A EEBER -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECL measurement (continued)

When estimating the ECLs, the Group considers three
scenarios (a base case, a bull case and a bear case).
Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and
LGDs. When relevant, the assessment of multiple
scenarios also incorporates how defaulted loans are
expected to be recovered, including the probability that
the loans will cure and the value of collateral or the

amount that might be received for selling the asset.

Elements of the ECL models that are considered

accounting judgements and estimates include:

(i) The Group's estimation of probabilities of default to

individual group;

(i) The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime

ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

(i) Development of ECL models, including the various
formulas and the choice of inputs over
determination of the period over which the entity is
exposed to credit risk based on the behavioural life
of the credit exposure, loss given default and

collateral recovery of the credit exposures;
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECL measurement (continued)

(iv) Determination of associations between macroeconomic
scenarios and economic inputs, such as delinquency
ratios and collateral values, and the effect on
probabilities of default, exposures at default and

losses given default; and

(v) Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive

the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Group's policy to regularly review its
models in the context of actual loss experience and

adjust when necessary.

The Group categories the credit quality of its loan and
interest receivables according to 3 different stages under
the ECL model:

Financial assets are classified as Stage 1 if:

(i) Repayment on schedule;

(i) Overdue within normal credit term (within 30 days)
with supportable evidence for repayment (e.g.,
communication records, draft/signed documents),

subject to individual analysis;

(i) No change in debtor's credit rating (market or

internal); and
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECL measurement (continued)

(iv) Significant credit risks and events (both economic
and industry-related) related to the debtor are not

observable or expected in the market.

Financial assets are classified as Stage 2 if:

(i) Delayed repayment;

(i) Overdue over 30 days but within 90 days, with
supportable evidence for repayment (e.g, communication
records, draft/signed documents), subject to individual

analysis;

(iii) There is a change in debtor’s credit rating (market or

internal); and
(iv) Some credit risks and events (both economic and
industry-related) related to the debtor are

observable or expected in the market.

Financial assets are classified as Stage 3 if:

(i) Delayed repayment;

(i) Overdue over 90 days, without supportable evidence

for repayment, subject to individual analysis;

(iiiy There is a significant change in debtor’s credit rating

(market or internal); and
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EMEEEZERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECL measurement (continued)

(iv) Significant credit risks and events (both economic
and industry-related) related to the debtor are

observable or expected in the market.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group monitors all financial assets that are subject to
impairment requirements to assess whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance

based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECLs.

The Group collects performance and default information
about its credit risk exposures and analyses all data
collected using statistical model and estimates the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are
expected to change over time. The factors taken into
account in this process include macroeconomic data such
as delinquency rate on residential mortgage and
residential property price index. The Group generates a
base case scenario of the future direction of relevant
economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. The Group then uses
these forecasts, which are probability-weighted, to adjust

its estimates of PDs.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group has monitoring procedures in place to make
sure that the criteria used to identify significant increases
in credit risk are effective, meaning that significant
increase in credit risk is identified before the exposure is

defaulted or when the asset becomes 30 days past due.

The Group has controls and procedures in place to
identify when the credit risk of an asset improves and the
definition of significant increase in credit risk is no longer
met. When this is the case, the asset may move back to
Stage 1 from Stage 2, subject to payments being up to
date and the ability of the borrower to make future

payments on time.

Default and credit-impaired

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

In respective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate. In particular,
the following qualitative indicators are taken into account

in determining the risk of default occurring:

(i) Probable bankruptcy entered by the borrowers; and

(i) Death of the debtor.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EMEEEZERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group uses forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort in its assessment
of significant increase of credit risk as well as in its
measurement of ECLs. The Group uses internal and
external information to generate a base case scenario of
future forecast of relevant economic variables along with
a representative range of other possible forecast
scenarios. The external information used includes
economic data and forecasts published by governmental

bodies and monetary authorities.

The Group uses multiple scenarios to model the
non-linear impact of assumptions about macroeconomic
factors on ECLs. The Group applies probabilities to the

forecast scenarios identified.

In applying the forward-looking information and
probabilities to the forecast scenario identified for
assessing the ECLs as at 31 March 2025, the Group has
taken into account the possible impacts associated with

the overall change in economic environment.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(continued)

As at 31 March 2025

R-E-_AF=H=+-—H

Lease receivables [EMRE N

Amounts due from security JEMEH T
brokers HIHE

Loan and interest receivables FEME R FIE

Repossessed assets BEEE

Financial assets included in BEAENRE  RE
prepayments, deposits and RE A U
other receivables MeERMEE
— Normal* —IF&*

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkHeEEY
— Not yet past due — KB H

Total

FHELEEFTEERQA
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FERER (&)

37. M EREERERBE (&)

REERARRFRLAERDE

(%)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12@ARH
EREX EEENAREREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
F-ER F-ER F=ER @ik &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TERT TERT
= = = 1,057 1,057
13,583 = = = 13,583
437,242 34,239 120,534 = 592,015
= - 134,463 - 134,463
3,466 119 4,696 = 8,281
682,206 = = = 682,206
1,136,497 34,358 259,693 1,057 1,431,605
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EMEEEZERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

As at 31 March 2024
R—ZFE-_mF=H=+—H

FERR (&)
REEBRUARRFEBER S

(%)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A & &
ERBX BEFERRHEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-BB F-BRBE F-BR  BLrE AEf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
Lease receivables JEMTR &R - - - 1,242 1,242
Amounts due from security JEMEH T Em
brokers R 9,341 - - - 9,341
Loan and interest receivables  FEME K KA & 595,963 49,744 95,787 - 741,494
Repossessed assets KEEE - - 103,035 - 103,035
Financial assets included in BEEENTE ke
prepayments, deposits and RE A U
other receivables MeEREE
- Normal* —EE* 3,949 323 2,972 - 7,244
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB2 EEY
~ Not yet past due - KB 518,251 - - - 518251
Total A&t 1,127,504 50,067 201,794 1,242 1,380,607

*  The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be "“normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be "doubtful”.

+ REEEMRE RS REGCEKR
B e BAEENARNAYEER
XFSBAENEERR G NHER

BEREE LI B

CEEE

A =5 H 3R

B AR R
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group's lease receivables and loan and interest

receivables are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from other receivables, loan
and interest receivables, lease receivables, amounts due
from security brokers and repossessed assets are
disclosed in notes 16, 17, 18, 19 and 20 to the financial

statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., lease receivables, amounts due from security
brokers, loan and interest receivables and repossessed

assets) and projected cash flows from operations.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. i EMEEEZERBEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESREK (&)
BIECFTOARITIRRAR - LA TIHEIAE
BRmESRzemas A

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2025
—EB-HE
Less than 3 to less than 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=f@A
EEZX DR 2HR
& =@ A T=f8A —-Z5f &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TEx TERT
Amount due to the intermediate  JEt i R AX A 7]
holding company ez 80,000 - - - 80,000
Lease liabilities MEBE - 22 68 75 165
Accruals JE 5T 5B - 2,249 - - 2,249
Other payables and deposits H i AR
received Bl e 351 2,919 2,051 1,209 6,530
Total CH 80,351 5,190 2,119 1,284 88,944
2024
—E-JOF
Less than 3 to less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=fEA
EEk PR EOR
B =@ A +=f@A —Z1F B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL THL TEL TEL
Amount due to the intermediate [ RHEAL A A
holding company IR 80,000 - - - 80,000
Loan advanced from a AEEMBARZ
non-controlling shareholder FEERBR
of the Group's subsidiary BNZER 24,087 - - - 24,087
Accruals JE & FIE - 2,054 - - 2,054
Other payables and deposits H i BRI R
received BlEe 317 5,863 1,057 2,620 9,857
Total Bt 104,404 7917 1,057 2,620 115,998
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
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7.0 ERREEEERBER (&)

Equity price risk B FE B 1R R BR
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity AR EE IS E e 2 e IR e EUK T R @R

securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group was exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 21)
as at 31 March 2025. The Group's equity investments
were listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and were
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the

reporting period.

The market equity index (rounded down) for the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, at the close of business of the
nearest trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and its respective highest and lowest points

during the year were as follows:

FABEEEIMENNEEI SN TE
BETHKHERR R_FT_AF=H
=+—H AEEFMEHHREERE
BIREDBEARATEEF AERZNRK
RREMERIRERE (MiF21) - A&
EHRERENBEBRZM LT - TR
RERREZTSMREETE

RBERARNRARZHLEERHEBER
B BEBMXAOMSREREE(TH
REY)  UERAFEEZENES
KA

255

31 March  High/low 31 March High/low
2025 2025 2024 2024
—B-FHE B/ —T-_mF =/
=RA=+-BA Z=B-Hf —A=+—H ZTZWF
Hang Seng Index (ERC=E=E 23,119 24,874/ 16,541 20,865/
16,044 14,794

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every TEETIENS M B ERETET

et R ERBHNERZERN  RER
BEENREMR I ERHASRE  BAK
BREEREZATFEESLERI0%E S
ZHREE -

10% change in the fair values of the equity investments
of the Group, with all other variables held constant and
after any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts

at the end of the reporting period.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued) MREEERR (&)
Decrease/
(increase)
in loss
Carrying after tax and
amount of Increase/ increase/
equity (decrease) (decrease) in
investments in fair value  retained profits
BRBRER
wWD,/ (Bm)
RERE AFEE RRERF
WEDSE &N/ Cdd) #m/ i)
HK$'000 % HK$'000
THT TET
2025 ZBCHE
Equity investments listed in REE ETH
Hong Kong BERE 11,424 10 954
(10) (954)
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
Carrying after tax and
amount of Increase/ increase/
equity (decrease) (decrease) in
investments in fairvalue  retained profits
BR 018 0 A
#m,/ Cg )
IR E NTEME K ARE g R
MERESE  Em/Chd) B/ CRd)
HK$'000 % HK$'000
FHT TET
2024 —E-mF
Equity investments listed in REE ETH
Hong Kong IR E 15,375 10 1,284
(10) (1,284)
Capital management BEXER

FHELEEEEERLA

7.0 ERREEEERBR (&)

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AEEEAER T ZBRABEREASE
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to B EKEME REEBSRERE R
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy NXFHHEEBIIRSKRREE -

capital ratios in order to support its businesses and

maximise the shareholders’ value.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to
Total
indebtedness represents a loan advanced from a non-

maintain the gearing ratio below 50%.

controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company and
lease liabilities. The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2025
and 31 March 2024 were as follows:

Loan advanced from a non-controlling
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary

Amount due to the intermediate holding &t R IE 2 7]
company IR

Lease liabilities HE&E

Equity attributable to owners of the RRARER ARG
Company s

Gearing ratio BREGEL X

FHELEEEEETRAA
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37. B EREEBERBE (&)

EXEE (&)
REBERBLBEGRGAREREERR
BRI ERERNEBIIMAFE -
REFHFABREREE  FAEEATRAE
HRRZIRE  MRRRLERFELT
IR AEBARINHBEMZ EMER
RERS -BE_T_HAFER_FT_MF
=A=+T—HILtFE FREEELXHN
B2 BRSIRELELIRED -

AEBEMNBEAEBBLRRERE
K- ERNERBELERBRBREBHRALRD
ABEAANEEELD AREZBRAE
BAREB B RGERFS0%AT - BEH
BEASENBAR 2 FEBRBERENZ
B3 BAFREZERABREALREE
BE-R-_ZT-_REF=A=+t—HK
—ECNE=ZRA=+-RHZEXEARE
Ja S (Il

2025 2024

—E-RHE ZEZF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FET

BR = 24,087
80,000 80,000

156 -

80,156 104,087

1,505,939 1,561,876

5.3% 6.7%
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from security brokers

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Due to subsidiaries

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Lease liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves (Note)

Total equity

FRBEE

M BB MR

KRB RARIZRE

BERBERFEE

FEAE A 2 Y s
MR A

FEREE E R

RBEE

JRE U 38 75 4 40 P B SRR
BAFIE - BZER

Ho A & Y AR K
WAFEERA
BamARERE
RehBReEEY

mBE ERE

REBAE
HEARE

HoAl A BR K e B At SRR

EAR N FNCIE /]
mEBABEAR
hREBREFE

FRBRE
HERE

BEFH
5

EBITRA
fet 5 (BT 5E)

EREsE

BX
G

38. AN A B B B 7 AR R &

BRAARRRRBE RO BN KD

2025 2024
—E_REF —TMF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TH&T
325 2,051
1,089,427 1,090,245
3,434 3,347
1,093,186 1,095,643
13,582 9,341
2,315 1,970
11,424 15,375
222,695 224,218
250,016 250,904
83 1,866

2,446 2,583
646,154 646,670
648,683 651,119
(398,667) (400,215)
73 -
694,446 695,428
14,451 14,451
679,995 680,977
694,446 695,428
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38. AR B KB B AR R & (8])

Note: Bt 5
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARIREEZBENT :
Share Share
premium option Contributed  Fairvalue  Retained
account reserve surplus reserve profits Total
i) BRE B# OTERE RE
RER e &tk & A Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FET FHET FHET FHET TR
At 1 April 2023 RZE_=F
MmA—A 354,993 5,068 162,587 2,205 163,853 688,706
Total comprehensive income/ KEE2AEYE/
(loss) for the year (B18) B8 - - - 362 (8,091) (7,729)
Transfer of share option reserve N e PR
upon lapse of share options HRERERE
(note 26) (M#E26) - (5,068) - - 5,068 -
At 31 March 2024 and RZZZME
1 April 2024 ZA=T-8Bk
i 12
mA—A 354,993 = 162,587 2,567 160,830 680,977
Total comprehensive income/ KEERHEWE/
(loss) for the year (EE) @z - - - 87 (1,069) (982)
At 31 March 2025 R-B-R%
=ZB=+-H 354,993 - 162,587 2,654 159,761 679,995
The contributed surplus of the Company arose from: RRRZEHBHBKE
(i) the reorganisation mentioned in note 27(i), representing () MWE7()Fritz EE AR R ARER
the excess of the nominal value of the Company's shares SEEAMETRNEAERBMKE
issued under the Group's reorganisation and the then MEARERZGEEEFR IS
consolidated net assets value of the acquired subsidiaries; )54
and
(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant to the (i) BE-—NMNANAFSNAZB#EITZRA

capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.

EAREMBEBRMDEERTED -
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38.

39.

40.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by section 54

thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. In the prior year, the
amount was transferred to retained profits upon lapse of the

related options.

COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Certain comparative financial information has been
reclassified in order to conform with the current year's

presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2025.

FHELEEEEERLA

38.

39.

40.

AT B R R (R

B - ()

BREBEBARZECIBIF QAR (BER]) &
ZOEDIESAMGTAZETBERT - ARFZ
EHBHADIKTRRE -

BREREeReRE EFTEZBERE
ZAFEE FIER M ®RE M 240
MAERNNR @FTHRE - FRE - R
EFE ReBRRNARBREANFERS
R F

EBEH
ETLBHBANEERHBUFEE
FREZ2IFR

B 3R R 2
BB REEN —_E_RAESA -+ ~H
EEEetENEETE-



A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements, is set out below.

RESULTS

REVENUE FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
FROM A DISCONTINUED
OPERATION

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7

RRCEXREL
BA

FEERERE
ERELN
wH /(B8

FEE-HERL
BEXBELN
wH /(B8

FRAHFA
BERFE
wH /(B8
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBHRE

AEEBE AN KEREHRE D TIRNE
ERHMBREMEE  AE  AEMERR
HRHBENT -

Year ended 31 March

BE=-RA=+-HLEE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
“E-HE —T-QNF —FT-=F ZF-- B S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHT TET FET
(Restated)  (Restated)

(E5)) (& E5)

(Note) (Note)

GES) (Fi5E)

90,263 88,291 80,068 80,741 100,360
(46,023) 25,688 16,855 49,614 32,390
- 9,303 (60,743)  (56,449)  (112,325)
(55,659) 22,413 (36,866) (1,501)  (56,712)

Note: The financial information for the years ended 31 March 2022

and 31 March 2021 has been restated to reflect the effect of

a discontinued operation during the years ended 31 March

2023 and 2024.

T HE o F-A=-+—HBRZ=ZT=_—

zﬁ_+ HIEFENMBERNDKE
CURBMEBE_S=FR-FAF
_HEJr HBIEFEr —HEKIEEEE

BHEE -

N
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FPRBHME

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- ~ AEE@EE R EF BFE &R E E H 3R K
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial EBZEEHREMNES  EE  BEMIEER
years, as extracted from the published audited financial fERBIEZWT - (&)

statements, is set out below. (continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BEEBERFERER
INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=ZA=+-H
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

—E-"HFE —E-_WNF —T-=-F =—T-F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTET TET TET TET

TOTAL ASSETS EELE 1,989,179 2,036,187 2,081,374 2,071,036 2,130,282
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEAE (109,468)  (134,262)  (201,900)  (153,282)  (164,390)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERES (373,772)  (340,049)  (331,327)  (338,050)  (383,351)

1,505,939 1,561,876 1,548,147 1579,704 1,582,541




INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

R

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),
Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong

BB AEOBEERT- 1150

ERESM T (B ZE) 23A% M

Ground Floor including its cockloft,

Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BANEEAKRBEEI015%
EEBMT (RIELEE)

Shop 5, Ground Floor,

Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
FRNBEE AEIT T HA3HR
BT T EIGH T o5k &

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHELEEFTEERQA

Annual Report 2025 F 3

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MEHE

31 March 2025

—E_hFE=A=1+—H

REWME

Use Nature

A& i
Commercial Medium-term
fEES leasehold
FHIE

Commercial Medium-term
[GES leasehold
FHIEE

Commercial Medium-term
(S leasehold
FHIFE

Percentage of

interest
LR
Bt

100

100

100
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description

R

Shop 3, Ground Floor,
Dundas Square,
No. 43H Dundas Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

FRNEE AET L HA3HR
BT LRSS T35

762/764/766/768

North Bridge Road,
Singapore 198730/198732/
198734/198736

15th Floor, Katherine House,
Nos. 53-55 Chatham Road South,

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

FBNERDERRERES3ES550

= +t+

EEES

1548

FHELEEEEERLA

REWME (&)
Use Nature
A& bi="
Commercial Medium-term
(S leasehold
FHIFE
Commercial Freehold
[EES KA FERE
Commercial Medium-term
[GES leasehold
FHIE

Percentage of

interest
hERZ
B

100

100

60
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